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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 26, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic Stability,
to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed $4,923,889
to provide workforce development services focused on assisting current, transitioning, and former
New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) participants in obtaining career advancement support services and opportunities that will
assist them in achieving continued upward economic mobility, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance, with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional
years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2026. 83% Federal Funds.
17% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Manchester Community
Resource Center, Inc.
^Manchester NH)

#153471
Manchester &

Nashua Region $1,825,347

Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc.

(Manchester, NH)

#177198

Concord & Laconia

Region and
Rochester &

Seacoast Region

$3,098,542

Total: $4,923,889

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget tine items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide workforce development services focused on
assisting current, transitioning, and former New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP),
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) participants in obtaining career advancement
support services and opportunities that will assist them In achieving continued upward economic
mobility.
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The Department seeks to support individuals in gaining skills, education, and workplace
experience to continue their career exploration and success, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance.

The workforce development services include:

• Workforce Development Services to assist current NHEP/TANF participants, in
obtaining career advancement, job development and opportunities that will assist
them in achieving continued upward economic mobility.

•  Post TANF Services for participants who closed TANF cash assistance, and
NHEP due to earnings, from the time of cash closure for a one (1) year period and
those participating in the Earned Income Disregard pilot program, to increase
employment retention, reduce recidivism, support ongoing training and learning
opportunities that will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction
of obstacles to gaining and retaining employment in efforts to avoid employment
loss.

•  Pilot Disregard Services for those actively participating in the 75% or 100%
earned income disregard, and for participants who remain eligible for TANF cash.
The disregard pilot is planned to end September 30, 2024, at which point, when
participants are no longer eligible for TANF cash, they will be eligible for Post TANF
Services.

Direct services are provided to participants by offering services in a fahnily-friendly office
or meeting space in the geographical region for which the participant resides, including the
Contractor's office, local libraries, community colleges, community resources centers, One Stop
Centers, and other establishments that are convenient to the participants. Services may be
delivered individually, in a group setting, via remote workshops, by telephone, and using email
and other technologies, including video conferencing.

NHEP focuses on closing skill gaps by ensuring job seekers gain and increase
competencies, earning the credentials that businesses seek of employees. Additionally, NHEP
promotes the upskilling of employees to enhance their eligibility for higher wage positions, while
addressing workforce development and overcoming obstacles to employment and promotions.
By doing so, NHEP aims to build a skilled pipeline of qualified employees to meet the needs of
businesses in New Hampshire, while fostering self-confidence and preparing participants to be
valued employees.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025, and
2026.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Participating in on-site monitoring conducted by the Department on an annual basis,
unless otherwise required by the Department for the purpose of ensuring
deliverables are met.

. • Completing onsite monitoring including, staff interviews, participant reviews, review
of program curricula and assigned activities as applicable, review of documentation
and data in the New HEIGHTS system.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from .December 18,
2023 through January 31, 2024. The.Department received nine (9) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheets are attached. The Department
did not receive any qualified bids for two (2) regions (Claremont/Keene and Conway/
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Littleton/Berlin). The Department re-posted a Request for Proposals to resolicit services for these
regions on March 5, 2024.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, recipients of TANF would not
have Job Development Services available to them to gain support for their economic
independence and mobility, and meet the needs of New Hampshire employers. The Department
would not be able to provide ongoing employment support to participants, which may result in an
increase in public benefits and a reduction in the number of families that could be given
opportunities to achieve economic independence.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

u lU)

for:

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner "

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-45-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES, HNS: HUMAN SERVICES-DEHS, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $218,645

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services T8D $1,382,895

2026 074-500589 ' Contracts for Program Services TBD $1,497,002'

Sub Total $3,098,542

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

State Fiscal

. Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $183,536

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $734,142

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $907,669

Sub Total $1,825,347

Overall Total $4,923,889

Fiscal Details Sheet
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID #

Project Title
IRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN

[Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Manchester & Nashua

Maximum

Points

Available

HMCNH-Health

Market Connect NH

MCRCnh - Manchester

Community Resources
Center, Inc.

SNHS-Southern NH

Services, Inc.

Technical

01 - Implementation Plan 200 60 ;  185 180

02 - Infrastructure Plan 100 20 90 80

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 15 90 80

04 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 30 90 85

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5 95 90

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 95 90

0 0 0

Subtotal - Technical 700 140 645 605

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration from the
evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150 . 86

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX 135 1.10

Subtotal - Cost 300 0 285 196

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 930 801

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,825,347 $3,199,345

Reviewer Name Title

1 [Gene Patnode

2jBriana Williamson
jWorkforce Development Administrator

3 [Joshua Kelly
jProgram Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Training
(Q

4 {Laura Ingram
uality Assurance Specialist

5 (Virginia Jones
IFinancial Manager

IProgram Specialist iV



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# }RFP-2024-DES-07-STRENr
Project Title [Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Concord & Laconia
Maximum Points

Available

HMCNH-Health Market

Connect NH

SNHS-Southern NH

Services, Inc.
Technical

01 - Implementation Plan . . 200 60 180

02 - Infrastructure Plan .  100 20 80

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 15 80

04 - Experience - Population and

Challenges 100 30 85

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5 90

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 90

0 0

Subtotal - Technical 700 140 605

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration

from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX . 100

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 250

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 855

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,565,857

Reviewer Name

11Gene Patnode

2IBriana Williamson

3lJoshua Kelly

4 {Laura Ingram

5lVirginia Jones

Title

■jWorkforce Development Administrator
[Program Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training
[Quality Assurance Specialist
[Financial Manager
{Prograrh Specialist IV



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# 1RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN
Project Title IStrengthenIng Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Rochester & Seacoast

Maximum

Points

Available

HMCNH-Health Market

Connect NH

. SNHS-Southern NH

Services. Inc.

Technical -

Q1-Implementation Plan 200 60 170

Q2 Infrastructure Plan 100 20 75

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 15 80

Q4 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 30 85

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5 80

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 85

0 0

Subtotal T Technical 700 140 575

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration
from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX 130

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 280

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 855

Reviewer Name

1 iGene Patnode

2 IBriana Williamson"

3 (Joshua Kelly

4 (Laura Ingram
SiVirginia Jones

Title

iWorkforce Development Administrator III
(Program Specialist II - SNAP Employmenf& Training
(Quality Assurance Specialist
iFinancial Manager
(Program Specialist IV'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID # jRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN

Project Title Istrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Berlin, Conway & Littleton Maximum Points Available HMCNH - Health Market Connect NH

Technical

01 - Implementation Plan 200 60

02 - Infrastructure Plan 100 20

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan ^  100 15

04 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 30

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement . '  100 10

0

Subtotal - Technical 700 140

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team

and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX

Subtotal - Cost 300 0

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140

TUaTOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST

Reviewer Name

1 iGene Patnode

2!Briana Williamson

3 (Joshua Kelly

4 {Laura Ingram

SiVirginia Jones

Title

iWorkforce Development Administrator III
(Program Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training

{Quality Assurance Specialist
(Financial Manager

(Program Specialist IV



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID#
Project Title

IRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN
jStrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Ciaremont & Keene Maximum Points Available HMCNH - Health Market Connect NH

Technical

Q1 - Implementation Plan 200 60 ,

Q2 - Infrastructure Plan 100 20

Q3 - Capacity/Staffing Plan ■ 100 15

Q4 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 30

Q5 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5

Q6 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10

• 0

Subtotal - Technical 700 140

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, It will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team
and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 )()()(

Subtotal - Cost 300 0

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST N/A

Reviewer Name

11Gene Patnode

2)Bnana Williamson

SlJoshua Kelly

4|l-aura Ingram

SjVictoria Jones

Title

jWorkforce Development Administrator III ;
iProgram Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training j

iQuality Assurance Specialist i
jFinancial Manager j
jPrdgram Specialist IV ^ |



DocuSign Envelope ID: ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11.36FBCFA7814B FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)
Subject: RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 / Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1, 1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street ,

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

434 Lake Avenue

Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-361-3038

1.6 Account Unit and Class

05-95-45-450010-61270000-

074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2026

1.8 Price Limitation

51,825,347

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert VV. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature
^•-~OocuSlgned by:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Renie Denton

CEO, Manchester community Resource Center,

1.13 State Agency Signature
/>—'DocuSlgned by:

Do.e:3/26/2024

1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory
,  . Kacen Hebert

Division Director
/

1.15 ApprovaV^y'lKe ̂ ^.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

1.17 Approval'^tlie'tjoVcmor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date;

.nc

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siale of New

ilampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(•'State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ('•Contractor'")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become efTective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Ser\'ices perfonned by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be perfonned at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Ser\'ices under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tennination. The-
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Ser\'ices.

5.3 The State reser\'es the right to olTset from any amounts
othenvise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has art adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
perfomiance or other equitable remedies against the Slate.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any niles,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement, these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affimiative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perfonn the
Ser\'ices, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws. ^
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 4 . t
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of Ihe following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule:
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, tenn or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early tcnnination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("'Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Ser\'ices under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
perfonnance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, sur\'eys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under .this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be

governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

perfonnance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the Stale or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the lennination
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4 . t
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Conlraclor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
conlinuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 coinmercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage fonn covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting OfTicer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide ceniflcate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal{s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference; The Slate shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
perfonnance of the Ser\'ices under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any-
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Stale of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the tenns of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement includihg any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES; This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any.
additional documents and take such further actions as. may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the.Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4)

■  additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective, action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services

1.1. The Contractor must provide seryices to assist Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF)/New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) participants in
obtaining career advancement, support services and opportunities to achieve
continued upward economic mobility. The Contractor must provide the services
outlined below:

1.1.1. Workforce Development Services, for all TANF/NHEP participants.

1.1.2. Post TANF Services, for participants who closed TANF cash
assistance, and NHEP due to eamings, from the time of cash closure
for a one (1) year period and those participating in the Earned Income
Disregard pilot program, to increase employment retention, reduce
recidivism, support ongoing training and learning opportunities that
will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction of
obstacles to employment in efforts to avoid employment loss.

1.1.3. Pilot Disregard Services (for those actively participating In the
75% or 100% earned Income disregard), for participants who
remain eligible for TANF cash, wilt receive services as described in
Section 2.3.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available and provided in the
Manchester and Nashua Regions, as outlined in Geographic Region Table
below.

Geographic Region Table:

District Office City/Town
Manchester Region

1050 Perimeter Road, Suite 501

Manchester, NH 03102-3762

Phone: 603-668-2330 or

1-800-852-7493

Auburn, Bedford, Chester, Goffstown,

Manchester, New Boston, and Weare.

Nashua (Southern) Region
26 Whipple Street
Nashua. NH 03060-9311

Phone: 603-883-7726 or

1-800-852-0632

Amherst, Atkinson, Brookline,

Danville, Derry, Greenville,
Hampstead, Hollis, Hudson, Litchfield,
Londonderry, Mason, Merrimack;
Milford, Mont Vernon, Nashua,
Newton, Pelham, Plaistow, Salem,
Sandown, Wilton, and Windham.

1.3. The Contractor must provide direct services to participants by offering services
in a client-friendly office or meeting space in the Geographical Region far^^hich

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01
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the participant is iocated.

1.3.1. The Conlractor must have an office space in each Geographical
Region where services are provided, and must also travel to
community locations including, but not limited to;

1.3.1.1. Local libraries;

1.3.1.2. Community colleges;
1.3.1.3. Community resources centers;
1.3.1.4. One Stop Centers; and
1.3.1.5. Other state-acceptable establishments that are

convenient to the participants.

1.3.2. The Contractor must ensure participants work toward achieving
identified goals in an individualized manner. Providing services in a
work simulated environment with identified structured curricula will be

used cautiously and minimally in this service delivery model.

1.3.3. The Contractor must deliver services individually, in a group setting in
which all participants have a vested interest or need, in person, via
remote workshops, by telephone, and using email and other
technologies, including video conferencing, individualized services
are crucial to the service delivery model and must focus on the six (6)
areas of workforce development ideritified by the Department; which
are as follows:

1.3.3.1. High School Credential Attainrnent.
1.3.3.2. Career Exploration and Identification.,
1.3.3.3. Training/Credential Attainment-Licensures and/or

Apprenticeship Program.
1.3.3.4. Completion of an Employment Portfolio.
1.3.3.5. Participation in a Work Experience or On-the-Job Training

(OJT).
1.3.3.6. Career Ladder Employment.

1.4. The Contractor must actively participate in monthly meetings with the
Department. Meetings will address enhancing service delivery, ensuring
accountability for specified deliverables, fostering collaboration on training
needs, promptiy addressing issues, engaging in discussions about
policy/protocol changes, and providing updates on the Contractor's progress.'

^ Other meetings with the Department may be required for a variety of other
topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.4.1. District Office meetings;

1.4.2. NH Works Partner meetings;

1.4.3. Community stakeholder meetings; and f
t
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1.4.4. Other meetings, as requested by the Department.

The Contractor must provide program information to the NHEP participants to
share the supports that are available to them.

The Contractor must ensure that their Workforce Developers complete. Job
Developer Training, either within the initial year of the contract or within the
initial year of employment with the Contractor. This obligation can be fulfilled
by providing proof of current certification.

The Contractor must participate in on-site monitoring, conducted by the
Department on an annual basis, or as otherwise required by the Department,
to ensure services are being provided in accordance with this Contract. The
on-site monitoring includes, but is not limited to:

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.7.1. Staff interviews.

1.7.2. Participant interviews.

1.7.3. Review of program curricula and assigned activities, as applicable..

1.7.4. Review of documentation and data in the Department's IT systems.

The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program
staff, as indicated in the Staffing Table, below.

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program
Manchester Region 2-3 2-3

Nashua Region 2 2

•  Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to
meet the needs of the participants.

1.9. The Contractor must provide the following staff to participant ratios in the
Staffing Ratio Table, below.

Staffing Ratio Table:

Timeframes
Ratios

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program
Effective upon G&C
approval through 6/30/2025

25 : 1 30 : 1

7/1/2025-6/30/2026 25: 1 35: 1

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01
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1.10. Scope of Services - Workforce Development Services

1.10.1. The Contractor must provide service to participants that are in
alignment with the Department Career Counselor's completed
assessment and employment plan, which includes immediate, near
term and long-term needs, and goals of the participant.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure that individualized, quality and equitable
services are provided to participants that are aligned with and follow
the workforce development areas which include, but are not limited
to:

1.10.2.1. Expanded Career Exploration. The Contractor must
provide training and support on:

1.10.2.1.1. Labor market tools, utilization and
information including: Occupational
Information Network (0*NET), Bureau of
Labor Statistics, Ecoriomic Labor Market
Information and other state and federal

assistance resources:

1.10.2.1.2. Career opportunities that are identified as in-
demand with salary range increases and
opportunities for upward career
advancement;

1.10.2.1.3. Wage projections related to specific
industries and sector partner initiative
evolvement;

1.10.2.1.4. Employment trends;
1.10.2.1.5. Working with employers to set up job

shadows and job tours; and
1.10.2:1.6. Administering and working, with skills and

interest assessments.

1.10.2.2. Training and Credentialing Attainment. The Contractor
must support and assist NHEP participants with:

1.10.2.2.1. Working with employers to identify the
training necessary to fill open positions to
address their employee shortages;.

1.10.2.2.2. Collaborating with employers and training
providers, such as the Community College
System and other educational programs, to
develop customized trainings to address the
employee shortage needs of New
Hampshire businesses; and ^os

V
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1.10.2.2.3. Navigating available opportunities
connected to apprenticeships.

1.10.2.3. Employabllity Skills Training, Community Service, and
Employment Portfolio Development. The Contractor
•must provide training and development on:

1.10.2.3.1. Resumes: Update to address specific
occupational/industry language.

1.10.2.3.2. Cover Letters.

1.10.2.3.3. Employment applications.
1.10.2.3.4. Interview skills and preparedness.
1.10.2.3.5. Utilizing existing labor market tools and

information.

1.10.2.3.6. Utilizing various job search training methods.
1.10.2.3.7. Interpersonal soft skills.
1.10.2.3.8. Collaborating and partnering with

community service agencies to increase
work readiness skills.

1.10.2.4. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must:

1.10.2.4.1. Develop work experience/internship
opportunities that are in line with participant
career goals.

1.10.2.4.2. Ensure work experience/internship
opportunities are no longer than 240 hours
and do not exceed 16 weeks in duration.

1.10.2.4.3. Monitor participant progress at the work
experience/internship site on a bi-weekly
basis..

1.10.2.4.4. Monitor participant progress at the work
experience/internship site on a monthly
basis with the employer partner.

1.10.2.4.5. Develop and execute work experience
agreements with both- employers and
participants.

1.10.2.4.6. Work with participants in collaboration with
businesses through the on-boarding
process.

1.10.2.5. Career Ladder Employment and/or On-The-Job
Training (OJT) Support. The Contractor must assist and
support participants in all areas of their employment,
including but not limited to:

t
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1.10.2.5.1. The on-boarding process.
1.10.2.5.2. Job retention.

1.10.2.5.3. Workforce development training and other
services related to employment stabilization.

1.10.2.5.4. Career development and advancement.
1.10.2.5.5. Wage progression.
1.10.2.5.6. Re-employment supports and services.

1.10.3. The Contractor must become familiar with and have a strong working
knowledge and understanding of the New Hampshire's Work
Verification Plan and how that plan guides service delivery based on
the twelve (12) allowable federal TANF activities located on the
Federal Register 45 CFR Parts 261, 262, 263, and 265.
https://www.qovinfo.aov/content/pkq/FR-2008-02-05/pdf/08-455.pdf.

1.10.4. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must provide
support services, as referenced in Attachment 1 - NHEP Employment
& Training Support (ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS &
Bridges and direct navigation with participants to address and/or
remove challenges to employment, including but not limited to:

1.10.4.1. Transportation. v .
1.10.4.2. Child care.

1.10.4.3. Family and work balance.
1.10.4.4. Other challenges to employment that may include, but are

not limited to:

1.10.4.4.1. Mitigating obstacles while employed;
1.10.4.4.2. Assistance with new employee acclimation

to the workplace;
1.10.4.4.3. Conflict resolution; and
1.10.4.4.4. Assistance with unforeseen challenges,

including but not limited to:

1.10.4.4.4.1. Carrepairs;
1.10.4.4.4.2. Necessary tools of the

trade; and

1.10.4.4.4.3. Workplace uniforms and
clothing.

1.10.5. The Contractor must collaborate with all State of New Hampshire
Workforce partners to broaden opportunities available to participants,
which includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.5.1. Agencies funded by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity
Act (WlOA).

1.10.5.2. NH Department of Education, Vocational RehabijlT^&n.
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials'*
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1.10.5.3. NH Employment Security, One Stop Centers.
1.10.5.4. Family Resource Centers.
1.10.5.5. Other community partners approved by the Department.

1.10.6. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce agencies and
partners to coordinate and/or blend multiple funding streams
necessary to support the NHEP/TANF population with tuition,
reduction in challenges to employment, and employment needs, in
order to prepare participants to transition from public assistance.

1.10.7. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce and training
providers to maintain current knowledge of the various credentialing,
training, on-the-job training (OJT), apprenticeship and direct
employment opportunities that are available, in order to offer those
opportunities to NHEP participants.

1.10.8. The Contractor must work in collaboration with employers.
Department Career Counselors, and participants to ensure that all
parties are communicating appropriately and timely.

1.10.9. The Contractor must report all participant changes, including changes
in employment status, to the Department Career Counselors within
two (2) business days.

1.10.10. Reporting Requirements.

1.10.10.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data into
the Department's New HEIGHTS system at least monthly,
that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.1.1. Employment data.
1.10.10.1.2. Service delivery data.
1.10.10.1.3. Any required documents.
1.10.10.1.4. Updates to participant contact information.

1.10.10.2. The Contractor must report to the Department's Bureau
Chief of Employment Supports or designee by the tenth
(10^^) calendar day following the end of the reporting
period of each month, that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.2.1. Number of participants referred for:

1.10.10.2.1.1. Work Experience.
1.10.10.2.1.2. Community Service.
1.10.10.2.1.3. On-the-job Training (OJT).
1.10.10.2.1.4. AjDprenticeship.
1.10.10.2.1.5. Unsubsidized employment.

1.10.10.2.2. Numberof participants that started in aj^ork
Experience/Community Service. ^

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^^—
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1.10.10.2.3. Number of participants that started an
OJT/Apprenticeship/Unsubsldized
employment.

1.10.10.2.4. Number of Work Experience/Community
Service agreements developed.

1.10.10.2.5. Number of Work Experience/Community
Services agreements, actually started.

1.10.10.2.6. Total number of participants in Work

Experiences.
1.10.10.2.7. Nurnber of participants in Work Experience

that led to OJT.

1.10.10.2.8. Number of participants in a Work Experience
that led to direct employment.

1.10.10.2.9. Number of participants in an OJT.,
1.10.10.2.10.Number of OJT's that led to direct

employment.
1.10.10.2.11. Number of referrals received from

Department Career Counselors in the
month.

1.10.10.2.12. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.10.10.2.13. Number of contacts with participants made
in the month, broken down by the following
contact methods, that include but are not

limited to:

1.10.10.2.13.1. Phone contact.

1.10.10.2.13.2. Email and other

technologies.
1.10.10.2.13.3. Video conferencing.
1.10.10.2.13.4. In-person.
1.10.10.2.13.5. In a group setting, iricluding

workshops and job fairs.

1.10.10.2.14. Number of participants who entered
employment.

1.10.10.2.15. Number of job losses in the month.
1.10.10.2.16. Any other data requested by the

Department.

1.10.11. Performance Measures.

1.10.11.1. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must ensure:

— OS

,
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1.10.11.1.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in a Work Experience/Internship within 60
days of referral date.

1.10.11.1.2. Minimum of 70% of participants transition
from their Work Experience into either OJT,
Apprenticeship or Unsubsidized
Employment after completion of either 16
weeks or 240 hours in the Work Experience.

1.10.11.1.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the
Work Experience is progressing.

1.10.11.1.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will
receive monthly communication in order to
assess participants progress, and to gather
information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experience to
OJT or Unsubsidized Employment. Each
monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.2. On-the-Job Training (OJT). The Contractor must ensure;

1.10.11.2.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in an OJT within 60 days of referral date.

1.10.11.2.2. Minimum of 90% of all participants will enter
into Unsubsidized Employment upon the
completion of the OJT.

1.10.11.2.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the
OJT is progressing.

1.10.11.2.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will
receive monthly communication in order to
assess participant progress as well as
gather information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experience to
OJT to unsubsidized employment. Each
monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.3. Apprenticeships. The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.3.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly to discuss how the
Apprenticeship is progressing, including
progressive wage gains.

k
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1.10.11.3.2. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
supported through all training aspects of the
apprenticeship and all credentials, training,
post-secondary educational achievements
will be captured.

1.10.11.3.3. Minimum of 95% ongoing communication
with apprenticeship partners. Each monthly
communication will be documented within

the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.4. Unsubsidized Employment for those in NHEP, the
Disregard Pilot and the Post TANF Program (as
appropriate for individual situations and needs). The
Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.4.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
.  . . reached out to monthly, to discuss how the

job is progressing, including a focus on the
following (as appropriate):

1.10.11.4.1.1. Workforce development
training, including
credentials, upskilling,
employer provided training
opportunities, etc.

1.10.11.4.1.2. Career development and
advancement including,
high demand industries.

1.10.11.4.1.3. Wage progression.
1.10.11.4.1.4. Job retention, related to

employment stabilization.
1.10.11.4.1.5. Re-employment supports

and services.

1.10.11.4.1.6. Mitigating obstacles to
employment.

1.10.11.4.1.7. Employment and training
assistance services.

1.10.11.4.2. Each monthly communication will be
documented within the New HEIGHTS

system.

1.11. Scope of Services - Post TANF Program Services for NHEP

1.11.1. The Contractor must make and document at least three (3) contact
attempts to successfully engage each individual offered services in
the Post TANF Program within ten (10) business days of re^^f of a
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referral from the Department, which will include the NHEP participant
contact information.

1.11.1.1. Phone contact.

1.11.1.2. Email and other technologies.

1.11.1.3. Video conferencing.

1.11.1.4. In-person.

1.11.1.5. In a group setting, including workshops and job fairs.

1.11.2. The Contractor must utilize the Department's New HEIGHTS system
to document all contact and activities with participants in the Post
TANF Program.

1.11.3. The Contractor must ensure that different contact methods are

utilized, in efforts to reach Post TANF participants and/or participants
in the Disregard Pilot Program, including in-person, at the home of the
participant (with their verbal permission), and/or in-person in the
community, when necessary and appropriate. Contact and/or
services should be provided no less than twice per month.

1.11.4. The Contractor must provide resource and services to meet the
individual needs of the participant to assist the participant in meeting
employment goals which may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Referrals for services;

1.11.4.2. Direct delivery of services; and

1.11.4.3. Authorization of payrrient for services.

1.11.5. Transitional Workforce Services:

1.11.5.1; The Contractor must ensure that individuals receive

transitional workforce services to assist them in transitioning
from one job to another or from one career area to another,
on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

1.11.5.1.1. Career counseling;
1.11.5.1.2. Workforce development training and other

services related to employment stabilization;
1.11.5.1.3. Job retention; and

1.11.5.1.4. Post TANF employment.

1.11.6. Stabilization and Support Services:

1.11.6.1. The Contractor must approve and provide payment for
stabilization and support services, as referenced in

fStff)port
t
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(ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges, on an
as needed basis in the following areas:

.11.6.1.1. Transportation allowances;

.11.6.1.2. Auto repairs;

.11.6.1.3. Dental care;

.11.6.1.4. Uniforms and tools;

.11.6.1.5. Eyeglasses;

.11.6.1.6. Child care;

.11.6.1.7. Tuition assistance;

.11.6.1.8. Technology and access to technology; and

.11.6.1.9. Other items approved by the Department.

1.11.6.2. The Contractor must provide supporting documentation
upon the. Department's request for all supportive services, in
accordance with Exhibit C.

1.11.6.3. The Contractor must coordinate with appropriate local
resources to connect participants, on an as needed basis to
the services and assistance that will support them in their
progression toward upward economic mobility.

1.11.7. High School Credential Attainment. The Contractor must:

1.11.7.1. Have a working knowledge of the Adult Education system in
New Hampshire and support participants in navigating the
services required to work toward the obtainment of their
High School Credential. .

1.11.7.2. Provide assistance and support to participants in all aspects
■ of the attainment of a secondary school diploma, High
School (HS) or High School Equivalency Test (HiSet).

1.11.8. Job Retention/Post-Employment Services:

1.11.8.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that participants
receive the following job retention and post-employment
services, on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

.11.8.1.1. Ongoing communication;

.11.8.1.2. Support with employment issues;

.11.8.1.3. Interpersonal skills;

.11.8.1.4. Workplace mentoring;

.11.8.1.5. Crisis prevention and resolution;

.11.8.1.6. Linkages with job training; and

.11.8.1.7. Occupational skills training to obtain, maintain
and upgrade employment.

1.11.9. Wage Progression:

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

B-2,0

t
Contractor Initials

Page 12 of 25 Date
3/26/2024



DocuSign Envelope ID: ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36FBCFA7814B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1.11.9.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive wage progression services, in the
following areas, as needed:

1.11.9.1.1. Self-advocacy and leadership skills;
1.11.9.1.2. Occupation and wage information;
1.11.9.1.3. Financial literacy training, including:

1.11.9.1.3.1. Household budgeting:
1.11.9.1.3.2. Methods to increase ©f—credit

scores;

1.11.9.1.3.3. Banking, including checking and
saving accounts; and

1.11.9.1.3.4. Interest rates.

1.11.9.1.4. Federal Earned Income Tax Credit and Child

Tax Credit counseling: and
1.11.9.1.5. Work Opportunity Tax Credits.

1.11.10. Re-Employment Services:

1.11.10.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive the following re-employment services to
reach their desired career goals:

1.11.10.1.1. Comprehensive workforce development and
job search skills;

1.11.10.1.2. Job leads and introductions to employers; and
1.11.10.1.3. Assistance with reactivating available benefits

during re-employment search phase and/or
durjng occupational training.

1.11.11.Reporting Requirements:

1.11.11.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data and
updates into the Department's New HEIGHTS system on
the day that contact is made with the participant and/or
services are delivered. Updated contact/service data must
include, but is not limited to:

1.11.11.1.1. Employment data.
1.11.11.1.2. Post-Secondary enrollment/achievement

data.

1.11.11.1.3. Client demographics.
1.11.11.1.4. Service delivery data.
1.11.11:1.5. Any required documents. .
1.11.11.1.6. Participant's contact data.

c—1.11.11.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly programmaic^port,
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 . B-2.0 Contractor Initials^^— .
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to the Department's Bureau Chief of Employment Supports
or designee by the tenth (10^^.) day of each month, to the
Department, monthly and year to date totals of the following:

1.11.11.2.1. Number of referrals from Department Career
Counselors in the month.

1.11.11.2.2. Number of individuals that became active

participants from referrals received in the
month.

1.11.11.2.3. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.11.11.2.4. Number of cumulative active participants to
date in the contract year (non-duplicative
count).

1.11.11.2.5. Number of contacts in the month, to include

contact type.
1.11.11.2.6. Number of participants who^ entered

employment.
1.11.11.2.7. Number of job losses in the month.
1.11.11.2.8. Numberof participants enrolled in education.
1.11.11.2.9. Number of participants who discontinued

education prior to completion.
1.11.11.2.10.Number of participants who completed

education.

1.11.12. Performance Measures. The Contractor must ensure:

1.11.12.1. Minimum of 80% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program complete an up-to-date employment portfolio:

1.11.12.2. Minimum of 75% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive
financial literary services based on the strengths and needs of
the participant identified on their financial literacy assessment,
completed at the time they started with NHEP, including
subsequent training in this area to date.

1.11.12.3. Minimum of 80% of participants who enroll in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive
contact and services from their Career Counselor on a bi-weekly
basis; or at a minimum of monthly.

1.11.12.4. Minimum of 70% of Post TANF Program participants maintaining
employment, Second Quarter after exit from NHEP.

1.11.12.5. Minimum of 70% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program maintain employment for the Post TANF Program year.
Fourth Quarter after exit from NHEP.

t
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^^
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1.11.12.6. Rate of TANF program recidivism of Post TANF Program
participants is 20% or less.

1.11.12.7. Minimum of 10% of participants who enter Post TANF Program
without an occupational skills training credential/post-secondary
degree/license will obtain an occupational skills training
credential/post-secondary degree/license while in the program.

1.12. Background Checks

1.12.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone;

1.12.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's
expense, and has no convictions for crimes that
represent evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement;

1.12.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to
RSA 161-F:49, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement; and

1.12.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to
RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating ho evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement.

1.13. Confidential Data

1.13.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.13.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business heed to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request.

1.14. Privacy Impact Assessment
OS

1.14.1. upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Depaftment

RFP-2024.DES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Conlractor Initials^
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in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor

must provide the Department access to. applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.14.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.14.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.14.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.14.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;

and

1.14.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.14.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

1.15. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.15.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this
Agreement, authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment
of this Agreement, must: ^

1.15.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH
DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
and guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as
required;

1.15.1.2. Use the Information that they have permission to access
solely for conducting official Department business and
agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at no time shall they
access or attempt to access information without having
the express authority of the Department to do so;

-OS

t
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1.15.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures,
and/or agreement relating to system entry/access;

,  1.15.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, develojDed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times must
use utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department:

1.15.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or designee;

1.15.1.6. Not install non-standard, software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

1.15.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department
of New Hampshire and to be used for business purposes
only. Email is defined as "internal email systems" or
"Department-funded email systems."

1.15.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
Doll policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.15.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.15.1.9.1.To only use a Department emaif address
assigned to them with a
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov";

1.15.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information
identifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member; and

1.15.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message
may contain information that is privileged and
confidential and is intended only for the use of
the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If you
receive this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and delete this eleq}fonic

t
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message and any attachments from your
system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.15.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email,
access or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a Department building/facility, must:

1.15.1.10.1. Complete the Department's, Annual
Information Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.15.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement] and the NH DolT Department
wide Computer Use Agreement upon
execution of the Agreement and annually
thereafter.

1.15.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures
and Information Security webpages.

1.15.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in
violation of any of the,above terms and conditions, sa.id
End User may face removal from the Agreement, and/or
criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a
violation of law.

1.15.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of
three business days prior to any upcoming transfers or
terminations of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges.
If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Department's Information Security Office or
designee immediately.

1.15.2. Workspace Requirement

1.15.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
determine requirements for providing necessary
workspace and State equipment for its End Users.

1.5.2 The Contractor must utilize the Department's State-owned loaned assets to
expand upon their personnel's ability to perform the scope of worlvrnfflined

It.
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in Exhibit B - Scope of Services. The loaned assets are outlined in Exhibit
B-1 Department Loaned Asset. Inventory, which is attached hereto and
incorporated'by reference herein. The Contractor agrees to the following
terms regarding the use of loaned assets:

1.5.2.1 Assets to be Used by User: Subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, the Department agrees to provide to User
with the Assets listed on Exhibit B-1 Department Loaned Asset
Inventory, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. This is a non-transferable right for the User to
use the Assets. The type of asset and quantity deployed will be
determined jointly by the Contractor and the Department. An
Asset inventory reflecting the deployed Assets will be managed
by the Department with input and validation by the Contractor
and will be updated as needed for asset management for the
duration of this Agreement.

1.5.2.2 The Contractor agrees to use and operate the assets only in
conjunction with the business use stated herein for
adrhinistration of the Exhibit B - Scope of Services, unless
othenvise agreed upon by mutual written consent, and with
written exception approval by the Department's information
Security or Deputy Information Security Officer.

1.5.2.3 The Contractor agrees the terms and conditions of the entire
Agreement apply to the loaned assets as well.

1.5.2.4 The Contractor agrees the loaned assets will not be taken out of
the contiguous United States nor will remote software be used
to remote into the device frorh outside the contiguous United
States.

1.5.2.5 The Contractor acknowledges the assets will be provided with
specific standard Microsoft software identified on Exhibit B-1
Department Loaned Asset Inventory. The Contractor agrees it
will not purchase for or install software in the loaned asset. If
non-standard software is required, the Contractor and the
Department's Division of Economic Stability's information
Services Lead will work with the Department's Security Office to
obtain appropriate approvals and security reviews prior to
software/application procurement and installation.

1.5.2.6 The Contractor acknowledges the Department's Security Office
and NH DolT will provide technical assistance or IT support in
association with the use of the assets. New HEIGHTS System
technical team, the system contractor, and/or NH Depaitoiant of

t
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Information Technology (Doll) will provide technical assistance
or IT support for the use of the system as applicable.

1.5.2.7 The Contractor understands the loaned assets may be replaced
by the Department or NH DolT over the life of the Agreement
and agrees to comply with requirements to return and receive
new devices as directed by the Department and/or NH DolT.

1.5.2.8 The Contractor understands and agrees that the Department
retains ovynership of the loaned assets and will return them to
the Departmenfin good working condition within thirty (30) days
of contract termination, inclusive of any amendments to extend
the contract term.

1.16. Upon termination of the Agreement the assets will be returned to the
Department's Information Security Office and the data preserved per the terms
and conditions of the Agreement and, if applicable, the Contract End-of-Life
Transition plan. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.16.1. General Requirements

1.16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from

the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department,to assume the.
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the new Contractor shall be known as

"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor.

1.16.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the

Recipient, in connection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT

■ Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems-of the

t
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Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient In
connection with the Transition Services.

1.16.1.3. If a systerri, database, hardware, software, and/or
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, and/or store Department Data In
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried
and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data Is
complete.

1.16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient In a timely
manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.16.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terrhs and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is

accepted as complete by the Department.

1.16.1.6. ■ In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.16.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product.

1.16.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the
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terms and conditions of the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.16.3.1. In the event the Department Is not satisfied with the
results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition process.
The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to

resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at "any time the Department shall be entitled to
initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.

1.17. Website and Social Media

1.17.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all

■  Department and NH DolT website and social media requirements
and policies.

1.17.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of
PHI, Pll, or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of
the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the
Business Associate Agreement signed by the parties, and all
applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements.
Unless specifically required by the Agreement and unless clear
notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

1.17.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.17.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including
copyright to all Data and information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire. The State of New Hampshire
shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user
interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the State of
New Hampshire's copyright.

t
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E,. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or. federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance
services, within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of the
Agreement, to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited
English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have
hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low
vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually thereafter, that all
personnel involved the provision of services to
individuals under this Agreement have completed,
within the last 12 months, the Contractor Required
Training Video on Civil Rights-related Provisions in
DHHS Procurement Processes, which is accessible on
the Department's ^ei)site

t
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(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
right-compliance-dhhs-vendors): and

3.2.1.3. The Department's Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
the Agreement. The Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist must have been completed within the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
right-compliance-dhhs-vendors).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services; with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures. .

3.3.3.2. .Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or

^Hity or

t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be,required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of

the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and. other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department

■  retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

t
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DHHS/Division of Economic & Housing Stability Bureau of Employment Supports
NHEP Last revised: 5.31.19

Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

Employment & Training Support (ETS) Services

The following information is intended for use by the NHEP Employment Counselors when authorizing ETS
services for eligible clients, using New HEIGHTS and Bridges systems for active participants.

If ETS services are funded by the Contractor for the Post TANF Program, adhere to the following guidelines.

Bridges/New HEIGHTS Activities Interface

, New HEIGHTS-SYSTEM BRIDGES

ACTr\/ITY CODE ACTIVITY CODE ALLOWABLE

SERVICE

ABE/GED Contract AB Education 02 01-17

ABE/GED Non-Contract GE Education 02 01-17

AWEP AW AWEP 08 01-07, 10-18

AWEP Concurrent A1 AWEP 08 01-07, 10-18,

Barrier Resolution BR Barrier Resolution 10 01,06, 07, 16, 17, 19

CWEP (Community Service) CS CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18

CWEP Concurrent C1 CWEP, 13 01-07, 10-18

Employment EM Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Employment 1st Concurrent El Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Employment 2nd Concurrent E2 Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

English as a Second language EN Education 02 01-17

English as a Second language Concurrent N1 Education 02 01-17

Family Intervention PI Job Readiness 10 01,06, 07, 16, 17, 19

High School HS Education 02 01-17

HomeCare Works HC OJT 07 .01-17

Job Readiness JR Job Readiness 04 01-07, 10-17

Job Search JS 1 Job Search 06 01-07, 10-17

OJT OJ 1 OJT' 07 01-17

Post-Secondary Education PS Post-Secondary 05 01-17

Self-Employment SE Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Self-Employment Concurrent SA Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Single Course SC Single Course 09 01-17

Single Course Concurrent SI Single Course . 09 01-17

Vocational Educational Training CT Vocational Skills

Training
03 01-17

Workplace Success (CWEP) JC CWEP 13 01-07, 10-17

Workplace Training - Secondaiy activity offered at
the Workplace Success OR any other secondary
training program.

TO Single Course- 09 01-17
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DHHS/Division of Economic & Housing Stability
NHEP

Bureau of Employment Supports
Last revised: 5.31.19

Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

• TANF Cash must be open, client must be enrolled in the Work Program, and meeting participation to receive ETS services

• All requests for ETS services must be preapproved by the ECS
• All ETS services must be authorized in the activity requiring the service
• Providers must submit bill no more than 90 days after ETS Service end date
• Transportation is the only ETS that can span two fiscal years

Sendee Code and Type
Payment Method
Form #

Requirements Service Codes Group
General Limits

Time Limits

01 Child Care Registration
PROVIDER

255-

• Authorize under.case head RID# . . ■

• Cannot be used for first week of CO • .

• One-time payment per child.per provider per SPY

01-05

. Combined- $500 SFV

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFV

02' Education/Training
PROVIDER

*255

1

01-05

Combined- $500 SFV

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY

03 Books & Supplies
PROVIDER

255 i*

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY

04 Uniforms

PROVIDER

255

• Must be used for uniforms only

• Must complete Clothing Request ApprovafForm 274T

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

. 2 month, 1 SFY

05 Tools of the Trade

PROVIDER

255'.

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2'month; 1 SFY

06 Auto Repair
BOTH

255

• Must be determined the auto is necessary to participate in NHEP

• Copy of valid driver's license/auto registration must be on file
• Review written estimate of the cost of repairs from an auto repair

business to include:

^ Name, address and phone # of the business
Itemized list of repairs including parts, labor, and associated costs
necessary to make the vehicle functional and safe
NHEP Roadworthy Statement indicating the vehicle is worth repairing

• Vehicle must be registered to client, other parent in 2-parent case,
or dependent child
(Written cstlmntc must be submitted in ndvnncc of service being provided except
in an emergency where the vehicle requires towing.)

06

$500 SFY

2 month, 1 SFY

07 Transportation
CLIENT

256

07&I7

Combined- $160/mo.

12 month, 2 SFY

17 Public/Private Carrier

PROVIDER

256A

• Can be multi:ride or monthly pass 07&17

Combined- $160/mo.

4 month, 1 SFY

08 Tuition

PROVIDER

257'

• Used for: Post-Secondary Education, or Vocational Training
• Before authorizing. The ECS must receive:

^ the name of the program,
proof of enrollment,

$1575 SFY

6 month, 1 SFY
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Attachment 1 -NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

08 Tuition (cent.)
PROVIDER

257

^ the class schedule, and
^ the expected start and end dates.

• Education & Training Assessment Checklist must be completed
• Vocational assessment must have been completed and

program match career goals
• All other sources of funding (PELL Grants, WlOA funding etc.)
must have been exhausted .

$1575 SFV
6 month, 1 SFY

10 Auto Insurance

BOTH

255 :

• May be billed prior to service provided
• Aufo insurance for only the usual and customary rates, not for

highef rates due to accidents, violations, etc.
• 'A statement of coverage & charges from the provider is needed
: • Must provide a minimum of 12 months ofcoverage
• May only be used if auto'insurance is a condition of employment

10-12,.14-16
Combined- $750

Individual- None

■  2imonth; 1 SFY

11 Auto Registration
CLIENT

255

• May be billed prior to service provided
• Client provides current registration as an estimate of

cost or an estimate from the cit)' clerk's office

• Client provides copy of valid driver's license
•'Cannot be used for vanity plates
• Vehicle must be registered to client, other parent in 2-parent case, or

dependent child

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750

Individual- $350

2 month, 1 SFY

;12 Driver's License Fees
CLIENT

255

• May be billed prior to service provided
• Recipient must provide copy of the new license

10-12,14-16
Combinied- $750

Individual- $90

.  2 month, I SFY

14.Work/Office clothing

BOTH

255

• Not'for uniforms

• Must be approved for activity appropriate clothing only
.♦'Must complete Clothing Request Approval Form 274T

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750
Individual- $200
2month, 1 SFY

115 Personal Care
BOTH

255

• Used for haircuts and personal care items
(Toothpaste/toothbrush, deodorant, etc.)

10-12„14-16
Combined- $750 ■
Individual- $25.

, 2 month, 1 SFY

, 16 E/0 Other
BOTH
255

• Requires FSM approval if:
> Auto repair exceeds $300'
> Incidentals (CBC, clothing, etc.) exceeds $60

• All otiier resources must be exhausted

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750
Individual- None

2'month, 1 SFY

13 Dental
PROVIDER
255

• Requires FSM approval if over $200
• All other resources must be exhausted
• Cannot be approved for Prophylaxis or Orthodontics
• Surgery covered under Medicaid

13

$1500 SFY
4 month, 1 SFY

18 Mentor Program
(CC Solutions)
PROVIDER
255

'

18
S800/Providcr

$1000 SFY
2 month, 1 SFY

19 Assessment

PROVIDER

255
•  V

19
$800 SFY

2 month, 1 SFY
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Exhibit B-1

Department Loaned Asset Inventory

Contractor Company Name:

Full Name of Primary Contractor Point-of-Contact (POC) for Assets:

Full Name of Department POC for/Assets:

Contractor POC Email Address: Department POC Email Address:

Contractor POC Phone Number: Department POC Phone Number:

Contractor POC Office Address: Department POC Office Address:

fKWFdimrTTrf!!:!?

Dell Latitude 5310 15,16GB DDR4 RAM, 256 SSD, LTE

(includes power adapter/cord, Windows 10)

Dell WD19 Docking Station (includes power .

adapter/cord)

Dell P2217 Monitor (includes power cable, VGA

cable, DisplayPort cable)

Dell Pro Briefcase

Dell KBl Wired Keyboard

Dell MSI Wired Mouse

Microsoft Office Professional

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date

t

3/2,6/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms
t

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 83% Federal funds, Administration for Children and Families, as
awarded on February 7, 2024, by the Department of Health and Human
Services, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program, ALN
#93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

1.2. ' 17% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR.§200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (.15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The,Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs including, time
sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable. The Contract shall provide the supporting
documentation:

4.4.1. With each invoice unless otherwise determined by the
Department.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to besinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street /—os

t
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 C-2.1 Contractor Initials^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBITC

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion dale specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without

,  obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gpv if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and. Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

8.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

t
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Exhibit C-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Resource Cenfer, Inc.

Budget Request for; Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility ■ Manchester & Nashua Region
Budget Period: Effective G<5C approval through June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 9-50%

Line Item
Program Cost • Funded by DHHS,- SFY

24

Program Cost • Funded by DHHS - SFY
25 " - /

Program Cost • Funded by DHHS • SFY
26

1. Salary & Wages $92,940 $426,611 $534,839

2. Fringe Benefits $23,267 $106,798 $110,738

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR

200-1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$7,042 $1,358 $1,435

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $2,936 $5,744 $10,068

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.{d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies - Office $2,821 $4,285 $6,090

6. Travel $860 $3,440 $3,640

7. Software $2,150 $7,800 $7,800

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $2,364 $11,420 $12,255

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $6,476 -  $6,932 $7,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 $0

Other (please specify) Postage $264 $1,001 $1,050

Other (please specify) Printing $834 $2,424 .  $3,151

Other (please specify) facility $6,534 • $26,136 $26,131

Other (please specify) ETS Funds $18,000 $62,000 $100,000

Other (please specify) Insurance .$1,125 $4,500 $4,725

Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0

Other (please speaty) $0 $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $167,613 $670,449 $828,922

Total Indirect Costs $15,923 - $63,693 $78,748

Subtotals $183,536 $734,142 $907,669

lOIAL . .. 51.825.347

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01

Contractor Initials

t

Date:
3/26/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505 .

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace:

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1, Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimina[j|lrug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucfT^nviction;

—^
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

I

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
. of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements DateHHHZZEIE
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12.of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shali complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering Into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.
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SECTION 0: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

-1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)

. determination whether to enter into this transaction, However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanatiori shaii disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
availaljle to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause,'have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://wvw/.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligiljility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/partT513.
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, rnaking false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one of more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the'
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to.produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

I

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a. provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law .103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, J
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law, 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award Is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
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FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the.
below listed questions are true and accurate.

X6RBVRK2VBD4

1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:
/

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

-NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?.

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

3/26/2024

Date:

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Resource center, inc

DocuSlgned by:

ei8Mwr-90fli;<*y:;r—i
Name: Rem e Denton
Title: Manchester.Community Resource Cerj^er, Inc
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.
I

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SStsI), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for

the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information;

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access, privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form, it may exist, unless, othenwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer .or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,

.  antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and'anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writjng at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor -agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
■ Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be cornpleted
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

Contractor Initials
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future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from '

the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
{45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
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d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other.instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed

using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Contractor Initials
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI.must be addressed and reported, as applicable,

in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor Initials
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

)

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement'(Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity," The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties."

The parties agree, to comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and -Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act. and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act." "Individual," "Privacy Rule,"
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who Is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including byt-ni©t
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable;

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. As required bylaw, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not. disclose, any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it

• is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI In accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer, at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer(S)dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate'Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privaey-c©r
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the.
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive,, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about ah individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to ffRT^n
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

VI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or.federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI;

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

s  I aws and Renulatorv Rafaranr.PR All lawQ and rpniilatinn« /TiseB
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a. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulations
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference In the Agreement, as amended to Include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. Change In law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as Is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Seqreqation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be glven effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f. Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the.BAA In section (3) g. and
(3) n.l., and the defense and Indemniftcatlon provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the. parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

—DoeuSignvd by;

Manchester community Resource Center, inc

Name of the Contractor

—D9CuSign»4 by:

—8iata«ag»MF«A?ii,

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert

Name of Authorized Representative

Reme Denton

Name of Authorized Representative

Division Director

Title of Authorized Representative

CEO, Manchester community Resource Center, inc

Title of Authorized Representative

3/26/2024

Date

3/26/2024

Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlaa, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

RESOURCE CENTER, INC. is a Now Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

April 16,2001.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 379869

Certificate Number 0006630583

P
%

5^

BDa

©

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of Now Hampshire,

this 25th day of March A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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MCRCnh CBDO Special Activities
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc
Community Based Development Organization
434 Lake Avenue Manchester, NH 03103
603 647-8967 www.mcrcnh.org

RE: New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Economic Stability - Bureau of Employment Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Pat Long, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected Chairperson for the Board of Directors for the
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

I certify that the following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. The Resolution was approved on March 13,2024 by a
quorum of the Directors. The Resolution has not been amended or revoked and remains in full force and

effect as of March 13,2024 and will remain In effect until June 30, 2026. 1 further certify that it Is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that Renie Denton
has full authority to bind the corporation.

RESOLVED: That Renie Denton, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized on behalf of the Manchester
Community Resource Center, Inc to enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its
agencies or departments and may execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments,
and any amendments, revisions, modifications, and/or extension thereto, as she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate. The contract and any amendmenp will be effective on April 10, 2024
or immediately following approval of the Governor and Executive Council; this contract will have a

Completion Date ofJune 30, 2026 with options for mutually agreed upon extensions.

3/3/z-Y
'at Long, Chairperson - Board of Directors

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough, State of '^fiw„IJ^Uy]pshire
The forgoing instrument was before me this 13"* day of March 2024
by Pat Long, Chairperson of t^B^^'cj^"rre<i^^or the Manchester CommumtyHesource Center, Inc

5  10^ 2025

Nota ry Public

Commission Expires: December 18,2025



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

03/27/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAMH*''^ Lindsey Goodrlch
(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

ADDRESS- n^3nch.certs(§crossagency,com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAica

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

434 Lake Ave

Manchester NH 03103-4271

INSURER B Technology Ins, Co. 42376

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

1?75r
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL 50BR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/PO/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DPhfYYYI LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTEC
PREMISES lEa occurmiKc)

MEO EXP (AflY one person)

PHPK2601148 11/01/2023 11/01/2024
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

WO-
JECTPOLICY □

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPjDP AGG

Professional Liabilily

1.000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000.000

2.000.000

2,000.000

1.000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddftni) 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2601143 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 BODILY INJURY (Par acddani)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
IParacctdanU

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000,000

PHUB881162 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 AGGREGATE 1.000.000

X RETENTION S 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
II vas. dascriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

YIN
STATUTE

OTH- ,
ER

TWC4325175 (3a,) NH 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 e.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000,000

E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000.000

Renle Denton is excluded from workers
compensation.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Rtmarks Schadula, may ba attachad If mora apaca Is raqulrad)

Refer (0 policy for excluskxiary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord " NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MCRCnh CBDO Special Activities
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc
Community Based Development Organization
434 Lake Avenue Manchester, NH 03103

603 647-8967 www.mcrcnh.org

Mission Statement:

The Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc (MCRC) Is a multi-service, non-profit organization
with the goal of assisting residents of Manchester In attaining self-sufficiency by providing access to
employment, education, information, and referral services in a multi-cultural environment

Programs are designed to promote the development of each individual's work-maturity competencies,
emotional growth and social development through the acquisition of appropriate skills, knowledge and
attitude.

Vision Statement

The Manchester Community Resource Center will provide appropriate employment and training
services to the underserved adult population of Manchester. The Center will maintain a safe, non-
threatening supportive environment that promotes stability and self-reliance. Through MCRC's
program, our clients will find resources to assist in overcoming their barriers and deficiencies. Our
clients will be offered the opportunity to obtain gainful employment regardless of age, race, color,
religion, gender, or national origin.

Values Statement

Our Board of Director, professional staff and dedicated volunteers are devoted to maintaining the
original spirit of MCRC. We believe that:

■ Employment provides opportunity for adults to develop themselves, their family, and their
community

■ Every person deserves the opportunity for gainful employment
■ Gainful employment of all citizens Is the responsibility of all citizens
■ Everyone that shows the desire to improve their life, deserves the opportunity
■ We are committed to honesty, fairness, integrity, and social awareness in all relations, including our
community, vendors, employees, clients, and sponsors. We will be fair and yet aggressive In our
pursuit to achieve excellence.

Diverse, Equitable, and Inclusive Statement

MCRC is committed to providing residents of Manchester with effective, equitable, understandable, and
respectful quality of service that Is representative of our cross-cultural populations, ethnic traditions,
preferred languages, personal obstacles, and other communication needs.
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INDEPENDENT AUPrrOR'S REPORT

March 13, 2023

To the Board of Directors of

Manchester Community Resource Center, inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Community Resource
Center, Inc. {a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material
respects, the financial position of Manchester Community Resource Center, inc. as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended In
accordance with accounting piincipies generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be Independent of Manchester Community Resource Center, inc. and to

meet our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design. Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Manchester Community Resource Center, inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditor's Responsibilities fortbe Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance
but is. not absolute assurance and therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from
fraud Is higher than for one resulting from -error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. MIsstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, Individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the frnanclal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures In the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Manchester Community Resource Center,

inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as' evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether. In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Manchester Community Resource Center,
lnc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain'
Internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.



DocuSign Envelope ID; ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36FBCFA7814B

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
March 13, 2023, on our consideration of Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on. our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The

purpose of that report Is soleiy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not. to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Manchester Community Resource Center, lnc.'s Internal

control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integra) part of an audit

performed In accordance with Governrnent Auditing Standards in considering Manchester
Community Resource Center, inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

0. CPA

prx>feii^onalAiioccatCoru
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

TOTAL ASSETS

UABIUTIESAND NET ASSETS

□abilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

TOTAL UABIUTIESAND NET ASSETS

241,823

2022

599

9,074
20,000

29,673

204,150
8,000

212,150

241,823

ASSETS

2022 2021

Assets

Cash $  147,000 $  134,304
Accounts receivable . 45,817 23,038
Prepaid expenses 8,431 7,964
Fixed assets, net 32,575 65,266
Promises to give > future use of building 8,000 20,000

250,572

2021

715

14,027

14,742

215,830
20,000

235,830

250,572

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENTS OF AaiVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRiaiONS

Support and Revenues

Grants from governmental agencies

Grants and contributions

Building management services

Rental Income

Miscellaneous income

Total Support and Revenues

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Support, Revenues and Reclasslfications

r

Expenses

Program services

Management and general

Fundralsing

Total Expenses

Change In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

NET ASSETS WitH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Change In Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Change In Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning ofYear

Net Assets, End of Year

834,468

12,155

16,000

3,999

105

866,727

12,000

878,727

832,800

49,577

.  8,030

890,407

(11,680)

(12,000)

(12,000)

(23,680)

235,830

769,606

41,496

16,000

3,999

831,101

12,000

843,101

803,064

55,694

7,706

866,464

(23,363)

(12,000)

(12,000)

(35,363)

271,193

$  212,150 $ 235,830

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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MANCHESTER COMMUNrTY RESOURCE CENTER, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

JUNE 30,2022

Community

Support

Workforce

Development

Total

Program

Management

and General Fundraising

Total

Support

Total

2022

Federal Grant Subrecipients $  400,758 $ $ 400,758 $ - $ - $ - $ 400,758

Salaries and Wages - 235,588 235,588 19,986 4,376 24,362 259,950

Payroll Taxes
- 19,032 19,032 1,615 353 1,968 21,000

Employee Benefits - 35,084 35,084 3,014 757 3,771 38,855

Building Maintenance - 2,574 2,574 229 57 286 2,860

Insurance - 12,323 12,323 1,095 274 1,369 13,692

Office Supplies - 11,114 11,114 943 206 1,149 12,263

Supplies - 25,214 25,214 19 - 19 25,233

Professional Services - - - 14,082 - 14,082 14,082

Rent - 50,850 50,850 4,520 1,130 5,650 56,500

Transportation - 568 568 - - - 568

Utilities - 8,747 8,747 778 194 972 9,719

Depreciation - 30,723 30,723 2,731 683 3,414 34,137

Miscellaneous - 225 225 565 - 565 790

Total Expenses S  400,758 $  432,042 $ 832,800 $ 49,577 $ 8,030 s 57,607 , s ■ 890,407

p

>
o
o

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

JUNE 30, 2021

Community

Support

Workforce

Development
Total

Program

Management

and General Fundraising

Total

Support

Total

2021

Federal Grant Subrecipients $  365,453 S $ 365,453 S - $  ■ - $ - S 365,453
Salaries and Wages

- 244,719 244,719 23,191 4,311 27,502 272,221
Payroll Taxes - 18,567 18,567 1,750 326 2,086 20,653

Employee Benefits 32,186 32,186 2,980 663 3,643 35,829

Building Maintenance - 1,685 1,685 ISO 37 187 1,872

insurance 11,340 11,340 1,008 252 1,260 12,600

Office Supplies - 9,489 9,489 938 145 1,083 . 10,572

Supplies - 27,613 27,63 319 - 319 27,932

Professional Services - - 16,862 - 16,862 16,862

Rent - 50,850 50,850 4,520 1,30 5,650 56,500
Transportation - 2,768 2,768 -

- - 2,768

Utilities - 7,488 7,488 666 166 832 8,320

Depredation "  - 30,428 30,428 2,705 676 3,381 33,809

Miscellaneous - 478 478 595 - 595 1,073

Total Expenses $  365,453 $  437,611 $ 803,064_ $ 55,694 $ 7,706 $ 63,400 S 866,464

1
p

>
o
o

-4

CD
O
>

•T1

0
tn

1
CO

9
CD
m

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITy RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation

Noncash contribution of use of building

(Increase) decrease In accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease In prepaid expense

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) In accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) In deferred revenue

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows for Investing Activities

Payments for the purchase of equipment

Net cash used for Investing actl\^ies

Net Increase (decrease) in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

$  (23,680)

34,137

12,000

(22,779)

(467)

(116)

(4,953)

20,000

37,822

14,142

(1,446)

(1,446)

12,696

134,304

147,000

$  (35,363)

33,809

12,000

7,248

4,211

222

3,679

61,169

25,806

(3,700)

-  (3,700)

22,106

112,198

$  134,304

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. (the Center) Is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation
organized under the laws of New Hampshire on April 16,2001. The Center opened its doors in October
1998 and became an Independent entity In 2003 with the goal of assisting residents of Manchester to
attain economic self-sufficiency and Improve the overall standard of living by providing access to
employment, education, Information and referral services In a multlcufturai environment. Programs are
designed to promote the development of each Individual's work maturity competencies, emotional
growth and social development through the acquisition of appropriate skills, knowledge, and attitudes.

The Center also administers a HUD based Community Based Development Organization grant that
benefit 13 organizations this fiscal year.

The Board of Directors Is comprised of at ieast 51% membership from residents and/or business owners
from this community. The Board of Directors established a Resident Advisory Councii, comprised of
100% residents and conisumers of the services, to offer program recommendations.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Pasl? QfRresgnt^tlon
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with standards of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations as promulgated by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. They are stated on the accrual basis and include all material
accounts receivable and accounts payable.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Center follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board as applicable to
not-for-profit organizations. Under these standards, the Center is required to report Information
regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as applicable: net
assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions.

Descriptions of the two net asset categories are as follows:

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that is subject to donor-Imposed restrictions (donors
Include other types of contributors, including makers of certain grants).

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions ^
The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
(donors Include other types of contributors, including makers of certain grants).
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A donor-Imposed restriction Is a donor stipulation (donors include other types of contributors, Including
makers of certain grants) that specifies a use for a contributed asset that Js more specific than broad
limits resulting from the following:

a. The nature of the not-for-profit entity (NFP)

• b. The environment In which it operates

c. The purposes specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents for an
unincorporated association.

Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on
investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without

donor restrictions unless their use Is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of
temporary restrictions on net assets, that is, the donor-imposed stipulated purpose having been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period having lapsed, are recorded as reciassifications between
the applicable classes of net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Center considers all unrestricted highly liquid
Investments with an Initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash
equivalents for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Accounts Receiyablg
Accounts receivable from grants and contracts are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from outstanding balances. Accounts receivable do not Include an allowance for doubtful accounts since

the Center believes all amounts to be collectible.

Contributed Services and Items

The value of contributed services of volunteers Is not reflected in these statements since the criteria for

recording was not met. Contributed Items are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date

of donation.

10
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed Assets

Land, building and equipment is carried at cost or fair market value at the date of acquisition or
donation. Depreciation is recorded on building and equipment under the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives. Expenditures for additions, renewals and betterments of buildings and

equipment, unless of a relatively minor amount, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences including vacation leave, personal/floating holidays and sick time are earned by
the number of years of service and employment status. Unused time cannot be carried from one year to
the next. Salaried employees receive payment for unused earned time up to 50% of their annual earned
allocation.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as without restrictions and with restrictions depending on the
existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor restricted support Is reported as an Increase in net assets with donor.restrlctions. When a
restriction expires (that Is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reciassified to net assets without donor restrictions
and are reported In the statement of activities as net assets that are released from restrictions.

■  Functional Aiiocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services are presented on a functional basis
in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Expenses are directly charged to the appropriate activity,
where feasible. The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or function. Therefore, they may require aiiocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. This basis included building use percentage and personnel cost allocations.
Personnel costs are allocated based on the estimates of time and effort.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Advertising expenses for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 were $53 and $473, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Center is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Organization has analyzed its tax positions and has determined that there are no
unrecognized tax obligations to record.

11
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3; UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Center's financial assets as of the statement of financial position date, reduced
by amounts not available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year. The Center's
working capital and cash flovvs have variations during the year primarily due to the timing of activities
and collections of accounts receivable. As part of the liquidity management plan, the Center produces an
annual budget that Is reviewed by the board, which outlines anticipated financial needs to support the
mission within the next fiscal year. To manage current cash needs, the budget is analyzed and compared
to actual results throughout the year.

Current financial assets at year end:

Cash

Accounts receivable

Financial assets available to meet cash needs

for general expenditures within one year

2022 2021

$ 147,000 $ 134,304

45,817 23,038

$ 192,817 $ 157,342

NOTE 4: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The majority of the funding for the Center Is received directly or Indirectly from the Federal Government.
Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from the State of New Hampshire.

NOTE 5: FIXED ASSETS

A summary of land, building and equipment follows:

Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation

2022

$  272,500

66,054

22,534

361,088

(328,513)

2021

$  272,500

64,608

22,534

359,642

(294,376)

32,575 $ 65,266

Estimated

Useful Life

10 years

5 years

5 years

The depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $34,137 and $33,809,
respectively.

12
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 6; PROMISES TO GIVE - FUTURE USE OF BUILDING

As discussed In Note 8, the City of Manchester provides use of the current facilities at a discounted rate.

The future value of this promise Is $8,000. The promise will be depleted based on the passage of time.
The value for the term is as follows:

For the year ended June 30: 2023 $ 8,000

NOTE 7: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRIQIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of promises to gh/e-future! use of the building In the amount
of $8,000. These net assets with donor restrictions will be depleted by the passage of time (see Note 6).

NOTES: BUILDING USE

On March 8,2013, the Center entered into a ten year operating lease with the City of Manchester for use
of office and classroom space. Thefair market value of the rent for this space was estimated to be
$56,500 annually for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. The lease calls for the Cente^to pay
$28,500 annually to the City each year. As a condition of the lease, the Center must provide
management services for the building. The Center has determined the value of these services to be
$16,000 annually for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. The remaining value of the rent, $12,000,
represents a contribution from the Qty of Manchester. These annual figures are expected to remain
consistent for the duration of the lease term.

In accordance with generally accepted accounb'ng principles, the contrlbub'on from the city for the ten
year period In the amount of $120,000 was recorded as Income for the year ended June 30,2013 (see
Notes 6 and 7).

A portion of the building was rented out under a month-to-month sublease agreement for a portion of
the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. Income from that sublease totals $3,999 per year. ■

NOTE 9: RETIREMENT PUN

Starting In October 2021, the Center sponsors a SIMPLE IRA plan and matches eligible employee
contributions up to 3%. The cost for the year ended June 30,2022 was $3,039.

13



DocuSign Envelope ID: ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36FBCFA7814B

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10: LEASE COMMITMENTS

In June 2018, the Center entered Into a five year operating lease for a copy machine. The lease terrn
called for 60 monthly payments of $195. Payments under this agreement aggregated to $2,599 for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and $2,602 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above lease areas follows:

For the year ending June 30:. 2023 $ 2,145

NOTE 11: CONTINGENT UABILITV '

The Center receives money from the Federal Government under various grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Center is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes specified in.
the grant proposals. If the expenditu res of the grant were found not to be In com pllance with the
proposal, the Center might be required to repay the grantor's funds. Because specific amounts, if any,
have not been determined by grantor agency audits as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, no provisions have
been made for this contingency.

NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaiuated through March 13,2023, which is the date the financlai
statements were available to be Issued.

The COVID-19 virus Is still present in the United States; however, the future potential impact and
duration of the virus' Impact on operations cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

14
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Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

Board of Director 2023-2024

BOARD CHAIR (4/2018)
Pat Long (2/2018)
State Representative & Alderman Ward 3

Manchester, New Hampshire

Anne-Marie Hafeman (6/2023)
Elliot Hospital

Director of Volunteer Resources & Community
Engagement

Manchester, New Hampshire
CT19/2

BOARD VICE CHAIR (12/2022)
Usa Walker (12/2017)
Self Employed - Attorney
Manchester, New Hampshire

John Rivera (8/2022)
Hope Tabernacle

Pastor

Manchester, New Hampshire
Cr 15/3

BOARD SECRETARY (4/2019)

KelleyHobbs (12/2017)
Southern NH University

Associate Director

Manchester, New Hampshire

Scott Ardlta (12/2022)

AmerlHealth Carltas

FWA Coordlnator/SIU Manager
Manchester, New Hampshire

CT19/2

BOARD TREASURER VACANT BIramSaidybah (4/2023)
NRSA Eligible Resident

Manchester, New Hampshire
CT 8/3

Manchester Community Resource Center, tnc
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER

Renle Denton (6/1999)

Chief Executive Officer

STAFF RESOURCE

Ryan Denton (5/2022)

Director of Operations

Board Members Must Meet the Following
Criteria:

•  Be an adult over the age of 18 years

•  Be a resident of or work In the City of Manchester

•  Preference will be given to eligible

residents of Manchester's NRSA

•  Membership must maintain the 51%

NRSA Eligible Criteria

Terms of Board Members:

■  Terms shall run for four (4) years or until their
successors are elected and qualified.

■  Members shall not serve more than three

consecutive terms for a total of twelve (12) years,
■  Members may-resign at will.

Term of Officers:

• The term of office shall be two (2) years.
■ Any officer may be re-elected by the Board

Members to hold Office for three additional two

(2) year term.

Meeting Schedule:

1

Board Members do not receive compensation for their time. The Board Officers donates an average of 3 hours
per month. All other Board Members contribute an average of 1.5 hours per month.
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Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

RENIE DENTON
CAREER HIGHLIGHTS

Administrative: budget development and management, contract negotiation and monitoring, staff

development and supervision, development of federal reports, program evaluation, management of

community facility and staff resource to Board of Directors
Program Development: design, develop, Implement, monitor, and evaluate a series of community-
based programs. Program development included: community policing, home based therapy & crisis
intervention, court advocacy, economic development and Job training, educational and personal

development, prevention/safety programs, housing and homelessness, food and nutrition programs,
alcohol and other drug prevention, adult services, youth services and family support services

Case Management: Coordinated complete case management for clients, conducted intake and

assessment process, determined client eligibility, developed individualized action plans to assist In
overcoming barriers to employment, provided supportive services as required, worked with a diverse

population

Fund Development: worked with residents of underserved communities, local business, government
officials and service providers In the development of numerous grant application and community
fundralslng events

Community Relations/Networking: developed a strong community network with service providers, local
and state government offices, volunteers, law enforcement agencies and merchants.

EXPERIENCE

1999 - PRESENT MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, Inc. (MCRCnh)

434 Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire 03103

Chief Executive Officer

Performs all duties related to oversight of the operations and management of this multi-service non-profit

agency.

1993-1998 CONCORD HOUSING AUTHORITY

15 Pitman Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Family Services Director

Designed and Implemented a series of support services Intended to promote the participants' Intellectual,
physical, emotional, economic, and social development

1974 -1992 MANCHESTER HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

199 Hanover Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Youth Services Director

Developed Manchester's second largest afterschoo! and summer youth program. Performed all duties

related to the operation of this youth program

Social Service Assistant

Provided temporary and seasonal assistance to all departments with the Social Service Division of the

Housing Authority

EDUCATION

Springfield College New Hampshire College New Hampshire Technical College

School of Human Services Business Administration Business Management
1986 1984 1979
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RYAN DENTON

DIRECTOR OF

OPERATIONS

Manchester Community

Resource Center, Inc

MCRCnh

PROFILE

Dynamic Director of Operations skilled in agency-wide management

program development and community engagement at MCRCnh.

Expertise In cross-cultural environments, program evaluation, personnel

leadership, and strategic partnerships. Committed to enhancing

participant opportunities and community impact. Seeking to drive

MCRCnh's mission through Innovative strategies and impactful

leadership.

SKILLS

Operations Management

Program Development and

Implementation

Team Leadership and

Management

Community Engagement

Career Development

Sales and Account

Management

Strategic Planning

EDUCATION

NCDA

Cert. Career Services

Provider

ACRE

Employment Services for

People with Disabilities

University of Southern ME

Business Management

EXPERIENCE

Director of Operations

2022-Present

As Director of Operations at MCRCnh, I assist with comprehensive

agency management, ensuring financial stability, guiding staff, and

driving impactful program development. Within a diverse setting, I lead

programs and staff to assess client needs, facilitating vital job readiness

opportunities. I excel In ensuring compliance, evaluating program

effectiveness, and driving continuous improvements. Known for

fostering robust partnerships, leading personnel, managing grants, and

upholding confidentiality. My focus Is on representing MCRCnh

positively, advancing its mission while flexibly adapting to diverse'

responsibilities to drive community empowerment.

Regional Account Manager ,

2012-2022 • .

With a decade of experience as a Regional Account Manager in the •

wine and spirits industry, I excelled In driving sales and managing

accounts across diverse regions. Skilled in building lasting client .

relationships, I consistently surpassed sales targets by'Implementing ■'
strategic marketing campaigns and expanding market share. My /
expertise lies In driving brand presence, executing successful '; .
promotions, and delivering consistent revenue growth through targeted
sales strategies. ' ' .
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KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.
(Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.)

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

NAME , . JOB TITLE

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

Renie Denton Chief Executive Officer 0.35% $79,156.00

Ryan M. Denton Director of Operations 0.45% $83,512.00

0.00% $0.00

0.00% $0.00

0.00% $0.00

0.00% $0.00
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Subject: RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 / Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

-  be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

1.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Pine Street,
Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-668-8010

1.6 Account Unit and Class

05-95-45-450010-61270000 -

074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2026

1.8 Price Limitation

$3,098,542

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
OoeoSiQ«»d by:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Ryan Clouthier

Chief operating officer

1.13 Siate'%^gency*Signature
[>oeuSlon*d by:

1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory
Karen Hebert

Division Director

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
OoeuSlgn«d by;

By: (S^vivto On: 3/27/2024
^  748734e44WH80...

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: , G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any stale or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the perfonnance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the tenn of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for. employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perfomi the
Ser\'ices, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar .days after the date of
termination, a report ("Tennination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Ser\'ices under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/PISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, inforhiation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Slate shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New .
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4)
additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

ftRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 A-1.2 Contractor Initials,

Southern New Hampshire Serwces, Inc. Paoe 1 of 1 Date^^^^'^^^^^
7.14.23



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to assislTemporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF)/New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) participants in
obtaining career advancement, support services and opportunities to achieve
continued upward economic mobility. The Contractor must provide the services
outlined below:

1.1.1. Workforce Development Services, for all TANF/NHEP participants.

1.1.2. Post TANF Services, for participants who closed TANF cash
assistance, and NHEP due to earnings, from the time of cash closure
for a one (1) year period and those participating in the Earned Income
Disregard pilot program, to increase employment retention, reduce
recidivism, support ongoing training and learning opportunities that
will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction of
obstacles to employment in efforts to avoid employment loss.

1.1.3. Pilot Disregard Services (for those actively participating In the
75% or 100% earned Income disregard), for participants who
remain eligible for TANF cash, will receive services as described in
Section 2.3.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available and provided in the
Concord, Laconia, Rochester and Seacoast Regions, as outlined in the
Geographic Region Table below.

Geographic Region Table: .

District Office City/Town

Concord Region
40 Terrill Park Drive

Concord, NH 03301-9955

Phone: 603-271-6201 or

1-800-322-9191

Allenstown, Andover, Boscawen,
Bow, Bradford, Canterbury,
Chichester, Concord, Contoocook,
Danbury, Dunbarton, Elkins, Epsom,
Franklin,, Henniker, Hill, Hillsboro,
Hooksett, Hopkinton, Loudon, New
London, Newbury, Northfield,
Pembroke, Penacook, Pitlsfield,
Salisbury, Suncook, Sutton, Warner,
Webster, and Wilmot.

Laconia Region
65 Beacon Street

West Laconia, NH 03246-9988

Phone: 603-524-4485 or

Alexandria, Alton, Ashland,
Barnstead, Belmont, Bridgewaler,
Bristol, Campton, Center Harbor,
Dorchester, Ellsworth, Gilford,
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1-800-322-2121 Gilmanton, Groton, Hebron,
Holderness, Laconia, Lakeport,
Meredith, New Hampton, Plymouth,
Rumney, Sanbornton, Silver Lake,
Thornton, Tilton, Waterville Valley,
Wentworth, and Winnisquam.

Rochester Region
150 Wakefield Street., Ste 22

Rochester, NH 03867-1309

Phone: 603-332-9120 or

1-800-862-5300

Barrington, Dover, Durham,
Farmington, Gonic, Lee, Madbury,
Middleton, Milton, New Durham,
Rochester, Rollinsford,
Somersworth, Strafford, and Union.

Seacoast Region
19 Rye Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Phone: 603-433-8300 or

1-800r821-0326

Brentwood, Candia, Deerfield, East
Kingston, Epping, Exeter, Fremont,
Greenland, Hampton, Hampton
Falls, Kensington, Kingston, New
Castle, Newftejds, Newington,
Newmarket, North Hampton,
Northwood, Nottingham,
Portsmouth, Raymond, Rye,
Seabrook, South Hampton, and
Stratham.

1.3. The Contractor must provide direct services to participants by offering services
in a client-friendly office or meeting space in the Geographical Region for which
the participant is located.

1.3.1. The Contractor must have an office space in each Geographical
Region where services are provided, and. must also travel to
community locations including, but not limited to:

1.3.1.1. Local libraries;
1.3.1.2. Community colleges;
1.3.1.3. Community resources centers;
1.3.1.4. One Stop Centers; and
1.3.1.5. Other state-acceptable establishments that are

convenient to the participants.

1.3.2. The Contractor must ensure participants work toward achieving
identified goals in an individualized manner. Providing services in a
work simulated environment with identified structured curricula will be

used cautiously and minimally in this service delivery model.

1.3.3. The Contractor must deliver services individually, in a group setti^ in
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which all participants have a vested interest or need, in person, via
remote workshops, by telephone, and using email and other
technologies, including video conferencing. Individualized services
are crucial to the service delivery model and must focus on the six (6)
areas of workforce development identified by the Department, which
are as follows:

1.3.3.1. High School Credential Attainment.
1.3.3.2. Career Exploration and Identification.
1.3.3.3. T raining/Credential Attainment-Licensures and/or

Apprenticeship Program.
1.3.3.4. Completion of an Employment Portfolio.
1.3.3.5. Participation in a Work Experience or On-lhe-Job Training

(OJT).
1.3.3.6. Career Ladder Employment.

1.4. The Contractor must actively participate in monthly meetings with the
Department. Meetings will address enhancing service delivery, ensuring
accountability for specified deliverables, fostering collaboration on training
needs, promptly addressing issues, engaging in discussions about
policy/protocol changes, and providing updates on the Contractor's progress.
Other meetings with the Department may be required for a variety of other
topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.4.1. District Office meetings;

1.4.2. NH Works Partner meetings;

1.4.3. Community stakeholder meetings; and

1.4.4. Other meetings, as requested by the Department.

1.5. The Contractor must provide program information to the NHEP participants to
share the supports that are available to them.

1.6. The Contractor must ensure that their Workforce Developers complete Job
Developer Training, either within the initial year of the contract or within the
initial year of employment with the Contractor. This obligation can be fulfilled
by providing proof of current certification.

1.7. The Contractor must participate in on-site monitoring, conducted by the
Department on an annual basis, or as otherwise required by the Department,
to ensure services are being provided in accordance with this Contract. The
on-site monitoring includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Staff interviews.

1.7.2. Participant interviews.

1.7.3. Review of program curricula and assigned activities, as appl^fefle.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contraclor Inilialsj^ ^
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1.7.4. Review of documentation and data in the Department's ITsystems.

1.8. The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program
staff, as indicated in the Staffing Table, below.

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program
Concord Region 2 2

Laconia Region 1 1

Rochester Region 2 2

Seacoast Region 1 1

•  Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to
meet the needs of the participants.

1.9. The Contractor must provide the following staff to participant ratios in the
Staffing Ratio Table, below.

Staffing Ratio Table:

Timeframes
Ratios

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program

Effective upon G&C
approval through 6/30/2025

25: 1 30: 1

7/1/2025-6/30/2026 25: 1 35 : 1

1.10. Scope of Services - Workforce Development Services
I

1.10.1. The Contractor must provide service to participants that are in
alignment with the Department Career Counselor's completed
assessment and employment plan, which includes immediate, near
term and long-term needs, and goals of the participant.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure that individualized, quality and equitable
services are provided to participants that are aligned with and follow
the workforce development areas which include, but are not lirnited
to:

1.10.2.1

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02
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Information and other state and federal
assistance resources;

1.10.2.1.2. Career opportunities that are identified as in-
demand with salary range increases and
opportunities for upward career
advancement;

1.10.2.1.3. Wage projections related to specific
industries and sector partner initiative
evolvement;

1.10.2.1.4. Employment trends;
1.10.2.1.5. Working with employers to set up job

shadows and job tours; and
1.10.2.1.6. Administering and working with skills and

interest assessments.

1.10.2.2. Training and Credentialing Attainment. The Contractor
must support and assist NHEP participants with:

1.10.2.2.1. Working with employers to identify the
training necessary to fill open positions to
address their employee shortages;

1.10.2.2.2. Collaborating with employers and training
providers, such as the Community College
System and other educational programs, to
develop customized trainings to address the
employee shortage needs of New
Hampshire businesses; and

1.10.2.2.3. Navigating available opportunities
connected to apprenticeships.

1.10.2.3. Employability Skills Training, Community Service, and
Employment Portfolio Development. The Contractor
must provide training and development on:

1.10.2.3.1. Resumes: Update to address specific
occupational/industry language.

1.10.2.3.2. Cover Letters.

1.10.2.3.3. Employment applications.
1.10.2.3.4. Interview skills and preparedness.
1.10.2.3.5. Utilizing existing labor market tools and

information.

1.10.2.3.6. Utilizing various job search training methods.
1.10.2.3.7. Interpersonal soft skills.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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1.10.2.3.8. Collaborating and partnering vyith
community service agencies to increase
work readiness skills.

1.10.2.4. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must:

1.10.2.4.1. Develop work . experience/internship
opportunities that are in line with participant
career goals.

1.10.2.4.2. Ensure ■ work , experience/internship
opportunities are no longer than 240 hours
and do not exceed 16 weeks in duration.

1.10.2.4.3. Monitor participant progress at the work
experience/internship, site on a bi-weekly
basis.

1.10.2.4.4. Monitor participant progress at the work
experience/internship site on a monthly
basis with the employer partner.

1.10.2.4.5. Develop and execute work experience
agreements with both employers and
participants.

1.10.2.4.6. Work with participants in collaboration with
businesses through the on-boarding
process.

1.10.2.5. Career Ladder Employrnent and/or On-The-Job
Training (OJT) Support. The Contractor must assist and
support participants in all areas of their employment,
including but not limited to:

1.10.2.5.1. The on-boarding process.
1.10.2.5.2. Job retention.

1.10.2.5.3. Workforce development training and other
services related to employment stabilization.

1.10.2.5.4. Career development and advancement.
1.10.2.5.5. Wage progression.
1.10.2.5.6. Re-ernployment supports and services.

1.10.3. The Contractor must become familiar with and have a strong working
knowledge and understanding of the New Hampshire's Work
Verification Plan and how that plan guides service delivery based on
the twelve (12) allowable federal TANF activities located on the
Federal Register 45 CFR Parts 261, 262, 263, and 265.
https;//www.QOvinfo.qov/content/pkq/FR-2008-02-05/pdf/08-455.Ddf.

1.10.4. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must^g^vide

fl
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support services, as referenced in Attachment 2 - NHEP Employment
& Training Support (ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS &
Bridges and direct navigation with participants to address and/or
remove challenges to employment, including but not limited to:

1.10.4.1. Transportation.
1.10.4.2. Child care.

1.10.4.3. Family and work balance.
1.10.4.4. Other challenges to employment that may include, but are

not limited to:

1.10.4.4.1. Mitigating obstacles while employed;
1.10.4.4.2. Assistance with new employee acclimation

to the workplace;
1.10.4.4.3. Conflict resolution; and
1.10.4.4.4. Assistance with unforeseen challenges,

including but not limited to:

1.10.4.4.4.1. Car repairs;
1.10.4.4.4.2.. Necessary tools of the

trade; and
1.10.4.4.4.3. Workplace uniforms and

clothing.

1.10.5. The Contractor must collaborate with all State of New Hampshire
Workforce partners to broaden opportunities available to participants,
which includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.5.1. Agencies funded by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity
Act (WlOA).

1.10.5.2. NH Department of Education, Vocational Rehabilitation. ■

1.10.5.3. NH Employment Security, One Stop Centers.
1.10.5.4. Family Resource Centers.
1.10.5.5. Other community partners approved by the Department.

1.10.6. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce agencies and
partners to coordinate and/or blend multiple funding streams
necessary to support the NHEP/TANF population with tuition,
reduction in challenges to employment, and employment needs, in
order to prepare participants to transition from public assistance.

1.10.7. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce and training
providers to maintain current knowledge of the various credentialing,
training, on-the-job training (OJT), apprenticeship and direct
employment opportunities that are available, in order to offer those
opportunities to NHEP participants.

fCRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 8-2.0 Contractor Initials
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1.10.8. The Contractor must work in collaboration with employers,
Department Career Counselors, and participants to ensure that all
parties are communicating appropriately and timely.

1.10.9. The Contractor must report all participant changes, including changes
in employment status, to the Department Career Counselors within
two (2) business days.

i.lD.IO.Reporting Requirements.

1.10.10.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data into
the Department's New HEIGHTS system at least monthly,
that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.1.1. Employment data.
1.10.10.1.2. Service delivery data.
1.10.10.1.3. Any required documents.
1.10.10.1.4. Updates to participant contact information.

1.10.10.2. The Contractor must report to the Department's Bureau
Chief of Employment Supports or designee by the tenth
(lO^'^) calendar day following the end of the reporting
period of each month, that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.2.1. Number of participants referred for:

1.10.10.2.1.1. Work Experience.
1.10.10.2.1.2. Community Service.
1.10.10.2.1.3. On-the-job Training (OJT).
1.10.10.2.1.4. Apprenticeship.
1.10.10.2.1.5. Unsubsidized employment.

1.10.10.2.2. Numberof participants that started in a Work
Experience/Community Service.

1.10.10.2.3. Number of participants that started an
OJT/Apprenticeship/Unsubsidized
employment.

1.10.10.2.4. Number of Work Experience/Community
Service agreements developed.

1.10.10.2.5. Number of Work Experience/Community
Services agreements, actually started.

1.10.10.2.6. Total number of participants in Work
Experiences.

1.10.10.2.7. Number of participants in Work Experience
that led to OJT.

1.10.10.2.8. Number of participants in a Work Experience
that led to direct employment.

1.10.10.2.9. Number of participants in an OJT. ✓—os

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials I ^
Southern Naw Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 8 of 26 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB158E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1.10.10.2.10. Number of OJT's that led to direct

employment.
1.10.10.2.11. Number of referrals received from

Department Career Counselors in the
month.

1.10.10.2.12. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.10.10.2.13. Number of contacts with participants made
in the month, broken down by the following
contact methods, that include but are not

limited to;

1.10.10.2.13.1. Phone contact.

1.10.10.2.13.2. Email and other

technologies.
1.10.10.2.13.3. Video conferencing.
1.10.10.2.13.4. In-person.
1.10.10.2.13.5. In.a group setting, including

workshops and job fairs.

1.10.10.2.14.Number of participants who entered
employment.

1.10.10.2.15. Number of job losses in the month.
1.10.10.2.16. Any other data requested by the

Department.

1.10.11. Performance Measures.

1.10.11.1. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.1.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in a Work Experience/Internship within 60
days of referral date.

1.10.11.1.2. Minimum of 70% of participants transition
'  from their Work Experience into either OJT,

Apprenticeship or Unsubsidized
Employment after completion of either 16
weeks or 240 hours in the Work Experience.

1.10.11.1.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the
Work,Experience is progressing.

1.10.11.1.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will
receive monthly communication in order to
assess participants progress, and to gather
information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experierrae to
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OJT or Unsubsidized Employment. Each
monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.2. On-the-Job Training (OJT). The Contractor must ensure;

1.10.11.2.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in an OJT within 60 days of referral date.

1.10.11.2.2. Minimum of 90% of all participants will enter
into Unsubsidized Employment upon the
completion of the OJT.

1.10.11.2.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the
OJT is progressing.

1.10.11.2.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will
receive monthly communication in order to
assess participant progress as well as
gather information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experience to
OJT to unsubsidized employment. Each
monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.3. Apprenticeships. The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.3.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly to discuss how the
Apprenticeship is progressing, including
progressive wage gains.

1.10.11.3.2. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
supported through all training aspects of the
apprenticeship and all credentials, training,
post-secondary educational achievements
will be captured.

1.10.11.3.3. Minimum of 95% ongoing communication
with apprenticeship partners. Each monthly
communication will be documented within

the New HEIGHTS system.

4. Unsubsidized Employment for those in NHEP. the
Disregard Pilot and the Post TANF Program (as
appropriate for individual situations and needs). The
Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.4.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly, to discuss
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job is progressing, including a focus on the
following (as appropriate):

1.10:11.4.1.1. Workforce development
training, including
credentials, upskilling,
employer provided
training opportunities, etc.

1.10.11.4.1.2. Career development and
advancement including,
high demand industries.

1.10.11.4.1.3. Wage progression.
1.10.11.4.1.4. Job retention, related to

employment stabilization.
1.10.11.4.1.5. Re-employment supports

and services.

1.10.11.4.1.6; Mitigating obstacles to
employment.

1.10.11.4.1.7. Employment, and training
assistance services.

1.10.11.4.2. Each monthly communication will be
documented within the New HEIGHTS

system.

1.11. Scope of Services - Post TANF Program Services for NHEP

1.11.1. The Contractor must make and document at least three (3) contact
attempts to successfully engage each individual offered services in
the Post TANF Program within ten (10) business days of receipt of a
referral from the Department, which will include the NHEP participant
contact information.

1.11 1.1. Phone contact.

1.11.1.2. Email and other technologies.

1.11.1.3. Video conferencing.

1.11.1.4. In-person.

1.11.1.5. In a group setting, including workshops and job fairs.

1.11.2. The Contractor must utilize the Department's New HEIGHTS system
to document all contact and activities with participants in the Post
TANF Program.

1.11.3. The Contractor must ensure that different contact methods are
utilized, in efforts to reach Post TANF participants and/or particiiaants
in the Disregard Pilot Program, including in-person, at the homej^f the
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participant (with their verbal permission), and/or in-person in the
community, when necessary and appropriate. Contact and/or
services should be provided no less than twice per month.

1.11.4. The Contractor must provide resource and services to meet the
individual needs of the participant to assist the participant in meeting
employment goals which may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Referrals for services;

1.11.4.2. Direct delivery of services; and

1.11.4.3. Authorization of payment for services.

1.11.5. Transitional Workforce Services:

1.11.5.1. The Contractor must ensure that individuals receive

transitional workforce services to assist them in transitioning
from one job to another or from one career area to another,
on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

1.11.5.1.1. Career counseling;
1.11.5.1.2. Workforce development training and other

services related to employment stabilization;
1.11.5.1.3. Job retention; and

.  1.11.5.1.4. Post TANF employment.

1.11.6. Stabilization and Support Services:

1.11.6.1. The Contractor must approve and provide payment for
stabilization and support services, as ".referenced in
Attachment 2 - NHEP Employment & Training Support
(ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges, on an
as needed basis in the following areas:

1.11.6.1.1. Transportation allowances;
1.11.6.1.2. Auto repairs:
1.11.6.1.3. Dental care;
1.11.6.1.4. Uniforms and tools;
1.11.6.1.5. Eyeglasses;
1.11.6.1.6. Child care;
1.11.6.1.7. Tuition assistance:
1.11.6.1.8. Technology and access to technology; and
1.11.6.1.9. Other items approved by the Department.

1.11.6.2. The Contractor must provide supporting documentation
upon the Department's request for all supportive services, in
accordance with Exhibit C.

1.11.6.3. The Contractor must coordinate with apprppri;
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resources to connect participants, on an as needed basis to
the services and assistance that will support them in their
progression toward upward economic mobility.

1.11.7. High School Credential Attainment. The Contractor must:

1.11.7.1. Have a working knowledge of the Adult Education system in
New Hampshire and support participants in navigating the
services required to work toward, the obtainment of their
High School Credential.

1.11.7.2. Provide assistance and support to participants in all aspects
of the attainment of a secondary school diploma, High
School (HS) or High School Equivalency Test (HiSet).

1.11.8. Job Retention/Post-Employment Services:

1.11.8.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that participants
receive the following job retention and post-employment
services, on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

1.11.8.1.1. Ongoing communication;
1.11.8.1.2. Support with employment issues;
1.11.8.1.3. Interpersonal skills;
1.11.8.1.4. Workplace mentoring;,
1.11.8.1.5. Crisis prevention and resolution;
1.11.8.1.6. Linkages with job training; and
1.11.8.1.7. Occupational skills training to obtain, maintain

and upgrade employment.

1.11.9. Wage Progression:

1.11.9.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive wage progression services, in the
following areas, as needed:

1.11.9.1.1. Self-advocacy and leadership skills;
1.11.9.1.2. Occupation and wage information;
1.11.9.1.3. Financial literacy trainihg, including:

1.11.9.1.3.1. Household budgeting;
1.11.9.1.3.2. Methods to increase of—credit

scores;

1.11.9.1.3.3. Banking, including checking and
saving accounts; and

1.11.9.1.3.4. Interest rates.

.  1.11.9.1.4. Federal Earned Income'Tax Credit and Child

Tax Credit counseling; and '—DS
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1.11.9.1.5. Work Opportunity Tax Credits.

1.11.10. Re-Employment Services:

1.11.10.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive the following re-employment services to
reach their desired career goals:

1.11.10.1.1. Comprehensive workforce development and
job search skills;

1.11.10.1.2. Job leads and introductions to employers; and
1.11.10.1.3. Assistance with reactivating available benefits

during re-employment search phase and/or
during occupational training.

1.11.11. Reporting Requirements:

1.11.11.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data and
updates into the Department's New HEIGHTS system on
the day that contact is made with the participant and/or
services are delivered. Updated contact/service data must
include, but is not limited to:

1.11.11.1.1. Employment data.
1.11.11.1.2. Post-Secondary enrollment/achievement

data.

1.11.11.1.3. Client demographics.
1.11.11.1.4. Service delivery data.
1.11.11.1.5. Any required documents.
1.11.11.1.6. Participant's contact data.

1.11.11.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly programmatic report,
to the Department's Bureau Chief of Employment Supports
or designee by the tenth (10"^) day of each month, to the
Department, monthly and year to date totals of the following:

1.11.11.2.1. Number of referrals from Department Career
Counselors in the month.

1.11.11.2.2. Number of individuals that became active

participants from referrals received in the
month.

1.11.11.2.3. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.11.11.2.4. Number of cumulative active participants to
date in the contract year (non-duplicative
count).

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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1.11.11.2.5. Number of contacts in the month, to include
contact type.

1.11.11.2.6. Number of participants .who entered
employment.

1.11.11.2.7. Number of job losses in the month.
1.11.11.2.8. Number of participants enrolled in education.
1.11.11.2.9. Number of participants who discontinued

education prior to completion.
1.11.11.2.10.Number of participants who .completed

education.
I

1.11.12. Performance Measures. The Contractor must ensure;

1.11.12.1. Minimum of 80% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF .
Program complete an up-to-date employment portfolio.

1.11.12.2. Minimum of 75% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive
financial literary services based on the strengths and needs of
the participant identified on their financial literacy assessment,
completed at the time they started with NHEP, including
subsequent training in this area to date.

1.11.12.3. Minimum of 80% of participants who enroll in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive
contact and services from their Career Counselor on a bi-weekly
basis; or at a minimum of monthly.

1.11.12.4. Minimum of 70% of Post TANF Program participants maintaining
employment. Second Quarter after exit from NHEP.

1.11.12.5. Minimum of 70% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program maintain employment for the Post TANF Program year.
Fourth Quarter after exit from NHEP.

1.11.12.6. Rate of TANF Program recidivism of Post TANF Program
participants is 20% or less.

1.11.12.7. Minimum of 10% of participants who enter Post TANF Program
without an occupational skills training credential/post-secondary
degree/license will obtain an occupational skills training
credential/post-secondary degree/license while in the program.

1.12. Background Checks

1.12.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone:

1.12.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's
expense, and has no convictions for crimes ̂jjthat

fC
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represent evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement;

'1.12.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to
RSA 161-F;49, with resujts indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement; and

1.12.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to
RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement.

1.13. Confidential Data

1.13.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.13.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance

with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request.

1.14. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.14.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/applicalion(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.14.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.14.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.14.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system; os
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1.14.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;
and

1.14.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.14.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

1.15. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

. 1.15.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this
Agreement, authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment
of this Agreement, must;

1.15.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH
DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
and guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as
required;

1.15.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for conducting official Department business and
agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at no time shall they
access or attempt to access information without having
the express authority of the Department to do so;

1.15.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures,
and/or agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.15.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times must
use utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department;

1.15.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or designee;

fC
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1.15.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

1.15.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department
of New Hampshire and to be used for business purposes
only. Email Is defined as "internal email systems" or
"Department-funded email systems."

1.15.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
DolT policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.15.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.15.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address
assigned to them with a
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov";

1.15.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information
Jdentifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member; and

1.15.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is,
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message
may contain information that is privileged and
confidential and is intended only for the use of
theindividual(s)to whom it is addressed. If you
receive this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your
system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.15.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email,
access or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a Department building/facility, must;

1.15.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual
Information Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.15.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and As^oJJse
Agreement, and the NH DolT Deipj^ent
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wide Computer Use Agreement upon
execution of the Agreement and annually
thereafter.

1.15.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures
and Information Security webpages.

1.15.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in
violation of any of the above terms and conditions, said
End User may face removal from the Agreement, and/or
criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a
violation of law.

1.15.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of
three business days prior to any upcoming transfers or

.  terminations of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges.
If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Department's Information Security Office or
designee immediately.

1.15.2. Workspace Requirement

1.15.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
determine requirements for providing necessary
workspace and State equipment for Its End Users.

1.5.2 The Contractor must utilize the Department's State-owned loaned assets to
expand upon their personnel's ability to perform the scope of work outlined
in Exhibit B - Scope of Services. The loaned assets are outlined in Exhibit
8-1, Department Loaned Asset Inventory, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein. The Contractor agrees to the following
terms regarding the use of loaned assets:

1.5.2.1 Assets to be Used bv User: Subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, the Department agrees to provide to User
with the Assets listed on Exhibit 8-1 Department Loaned Asset
Inventory, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. This is a non-transferable right for the User to
use the Assets. The type of asset and quantity deployed wilt be
determined jointly by the Contractor and the Department. An
Asset Inventory reflecting the deployed Assets will be managed
by the Department with input and validation by the Contractor
and will be updated as needed for asset managemenffor thenen^^
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duration of this Agreement.

1.5.2.2 The Contractor agrees to use and operate the assets only in
conjunction with the business use stated herein for
administration of the Exhibit B - Scope of Services, unless
otherwise agreed upon by mutual written consent, and with
written exception approval by the Department's Information
Security or Deputy information Security Officer.

1.5.2.3 The Contractor agrees the terms and conditions of the entire
Agreement apply to the loaned assets as well.

1.5.2.4 The Contractor agrees the loaned assets will not be taken out of
the contiguous United States nor will remote software be used
to remote into the device from outside the contiguous United
States. 1

1.5.2.5 The Contractor acknowledges the assets will be provided with
specific standard Microsoft software identified on Exhibit B-1
Department Loaned Asset Inventory. The Contractor agrees it
will not purchase for or install software in the loaned asset. If
non-standard software is required, the Contractor and the
Department's Division of Economic Stability's Information
Services Lead will work with the Department's Security Office to
obtain appropriate approvals and security reviews prior to
software/application procurement and installation.

1.5.2.6 The Contractor acknowledges the Department's Security Office
and NH DolT will provide technical assistance or IT support in
association with the use of the assets. New HEIGHTS System
technical team, the system contractor, and/or NH Department of
Information Technology (DolT) will provide technical assistance
or IT support for the use of the system as applicable.

1.5.2.7 The Contractor understands the loaned assets may be replaced
by the Department or NH DolT over the life of the Agreement
and agrees to comply with requirements to return and receive
new devices as directed by the Department and/or NH DolT.

1.5.2.8 The Contractor understands and agrees that the Department
retains ownership of the loaned assets and will return them to
the Department in good working condition within thirty (30) days
of contract termination, inclusive of any amendments to extend
the contract term.

1.16. Upon termination of the Agreement the assets will be returned to the
Department's Information Security Office and the data preserved perthe-terms

ft
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and conditions of the Agreement and, if applicable, the Contract End-of-Life
Transition plan. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.16.1. General Requirements

1.16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from

the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the new Contractor^ shall be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety :(90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor.

1.16.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the

Recipient, in connection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT
Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

1.16.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried
and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the.
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a typely

fk
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials '

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 21 of 26 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.16.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is

accepted as complete by the Department.

1.16.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.2. Completion of Transition Services

,  1.16.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product. .

1.16.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the
terms and conditions of the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.16.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the
results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition process.
The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to

resolve the disagreemerit or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to
initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.

1.17. Website and Social Media ^ds.
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1.17.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Department and NH Doll website and social media requirements
and policies.

1.17.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless

. expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of
PHI, Pll, or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of
the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the
Business Associate Agreement signed by the parties, and all
applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements.
Unless specifically required by the Agreement and unless clear
notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

1.17.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.17.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including
copyright to all Data and information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire. The State of New Hampshire
shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user
interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the State of
New Hampshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties. (—

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 8-2.0 Contractor Initials

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. Page 23 of 26 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hiampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

'3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance
services,within ten (lO)days of the Effective Date of the
Agreement, to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or .services to Individuals with limited
English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have
hearing loss; individuals who are blind or-have low
vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually thereafter, that all
personnel involved the provision of services to
individuals under this Agreement have completed,
within the last 12 months, the Contractor Required
Training Video on Civil Rights-related Provisions in
DHHS Procurement Processes, which is accessible on
the Departnient's website
{https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
rlght-compliance-dhhs-vendors); and

3.2.1.3. The Department's Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
the Agreement. The Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist niust have been completed \vithin the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-
rlght-compliance-dhhs-vendprs).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership'

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must Include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed an
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Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of fedecal, state,
county and municipal.authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physioal-Ddata

[k
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evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder. the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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DHHS/Division of Economic & Housing Stability
NHEP

Bureau of Employment Supports
Last revised: 5.31.19

Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

Employment & Training Support (ETS) Services

The following Information is intended for use by the NHEP Employment Counselors when authorizing ETS
services for eligible clients, using New HEIGHTS and Bridges systems for active participants.

If ETS services are funded by the Contractor for the Post TANK Program, adhere to the following guidelines.

Bridges/New HEIGHTS Activities Interface

New HEIGHTS. SYSTEM,. ■ .BRIDGES. •

ACTIVITY CODE ACTlVi-TY CODE ALLOWABLE

SERVICE

ABE/GED Contract AB Education 02 01-17

ABE/GED Non-Contract. GE Education 02 01-17

AWEP AW AWEP 08 01-07, 10-18

AWEP Concurrent A1 AWEP 08 01-07, 10-18,
Barrier Resolution BR Barrier Resolution 10 01,06, 07, 16, 17, 19
CWEP (Community Service) CS CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18

CWEP Concurrent C1 CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18

Employment EM Employinent 01 01-07, 10-17

Employment 1st Concurrent El Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Employment 2nd Concurrent E2 Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

English as a Second language EN Education 02 01-17

English as a Second language Concurrent N1 Education 02 01-17

Family Intervention PI 1 Job Readiness 10 01,06, 07, 16, 17,19
High School HS Education 02 01-17

HomeCare Works HC OJT 07 01-17

Job Readiness JR Job Readiness 04 01-07, 10-17

Job Search JS - Job Search 06 01-07, 10-17

OJT OJ OJT 07 01-17

Post-Secondary Education PS Post-Secondary 05 01-17

Self-Employment -  SE Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Self-Employment Concurrent SA Employment 01 01-07, 10-17

Single Course SC Single Course 09 01-17

Single Course Concurrent SI Single Course 09 01-17

Vocational Educational Training CT Vocational Skills

[Training
03 01-17

Workplace Success (CWEP) JC 11 CWEP 13 01-07, 10-17
Workplace Training - Secondary activity offered at
the Workplace Success OR any other secondary
training program.

TO 1 Single Course 09 01-17
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DHHS/Diyision of Economic & Housing Stability Bureau of Employment Supports
NHEP Last revised: 5.31.19

Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

• TANF Cash must be open, client must be enrolled in the Work Program, and meeting participation to receive ETS services
• All requests for ETS services must be preapproved by the ECS
• All ETS services must be authorized in the activity requiring the service
• Providers must submit bill no more than 90 days after ETS Service end date
• Transportation is the only ETS that can span two fiscal years

Service Code and Type
Payment Method
Form #

Requirements Service Codes Group
General Limits

Time Limits

01 Child Care Registration
PROVIDER

:255'

•-Authorize under case head Rip #

• Cannot be used for first week of CC

• Onc-tlmc payment per child per provider per SPY

01-05

Combined^ $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month,.1 SFY

02 Education/Training
PROVIDER

:255

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY
03 Books & Supplies .
PROVIDER

255

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY
04 Uniforms

PROXIDER

255

• Must be used for uniforms only
• Must complete Clothing Request Approval Form 274T

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY
05 Tools of the Trade

PROVIDER

255"
■

01-05

Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY

06 Auto Repair
BOTH

255

• Must be determined the auto is necessary to participate in NHEP
• Copy of valid driver's license/auto registration must be on file
• Review written estimate of the cost of repairs from an auto repair

business to include:

^ Name, address and phone # of the business
^  Itemized list of repairs including parts, labor, and associated costs

necessary to make the vehicle functional and safe
NHEP Roadworlhy Statement indicating the vehicle is worth repairing

• Vehicle must be registered to client, other parent in 2-parent case,
or dependent child
(Written estimate must be submitted In advance of service being provided e.vccpt
in an emergency where the vehicle requires towing.)

06

$500 SFY

2 month, 1 SFY

07'Transportation
;CLIENT

'256

07&17

Combined- $160/mb';

12 month, 2 SFY
117 Public/Private Carrier

PROVIDER

2'56A,

Can'be multi-ride or monthly pass
)  . , ,

07&,I7

Combined- $160/mo:i

4 month, I'SFY
08 Tuition

PROVIDER

257

• Used for: Post-Secondary Education, or Vocational Training
• Before authorizing. The ECS must receive:

V the name of the program,

^ proof of enrollment,

$1575 SFY

6 month, 1 SFY
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DHHS/Division of Economic & Housing Stability Bureau of Employment Supports
NHEP Last revised: 5.31.19.

Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

08 Tuition (cont.)
PROVIDER

257

the class schedule, and
V the expected start and end dates.

• Education & Training Assessment Checklist must be completed

• Vocational assessment must have been completed and
program match career goals

• All other sources of funding (PELL Grants, WlOA funding etc.)
must have been exhausted

$1575 SPY

6 month, 1 SFY

10. Auto Insurance

BOTH

255

• May be billed prior to.service provided
• Auto insiirance for only the usual and customary rates, not for

higher rates due to accidents, violations, etc.

• A statement of coverage & charges from the provider is needed
•-Must provide a minimum of 12 months of coverage

• May only be-used if auto insurance is a condition'of employmen t

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY

11 Auto Registration
CLIENT

255

• May be billed prior to service provided

• Client provides current registration as an estimate of
cost or an estimate from the city clerk's office

• Client provides copy of valid driver's license

• Cannot be used for vanity plates
♦. Vehicle must be registered to client, other parent in 2-parent case, or
dependent child

10-12,14-16;

Combined- $750

Individual- $350

2.month, 1 SFY

12 Driver's License Fees?

CLIENT

255

• May, be billed prior toiservice provided

• Recipient must provide copy of the new license

10-12,14-16

Combined- $750

Individual- $90

2 month, 1 SFY

14 Work/Office clothing
BOTH

255

• Not for uniforms

• Must be approved for activity appropriate clothing only
• Must complete Clothing Request Approval. Form 274T

10-12,14-16

Combined- $750

Individual- $200

2 month, 1 SFY

15 Personal Care

BOTH

255

• Used for haircuts and personal care items
(Toothpaste/toothbrush, deodorant, etc.)

10-12,14-16
Combined- $75Q

Individual- $25

2 month, I SFY

,I6.E/0 Other

BOTH

255

• Requires FSM approval if:
> Auto repair exceeds $300
> Incidentals (CB.C, clothing, etc.) exceeds $60

• All other resources must be'exhausted

10-12,14-16
- Combined- $750

Individual-. None

2 month, 1 SFY

13 Dental

PROVIDER

255

• Requires FSM approval if over $200
• All other resources must be exhausted

• Cannot be approved for Prophylaxis or Orthodontics

• Surgery covered under Medicaid

13

$1500 SFY

4 month, 1 SFY

18 Mentor Program
(CC Solutions)
PROVIDER

255

18

S800/Providcr

$1000 SFY

2 month, I SFY

19 Assessment

PROVIDER

255

)
19

$800 SFY

2 month, 1 SFY
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Exhibit B -1

Department Loaned Asset Inventory

Contractor Company Name:

Full Name of Primary Contractor Point-of-Contact (POC) for Assets:

Full Name of Department POC for Assets:

Contractor POC Email Address: Department POC Email Address:

Contractor POC Phone Number; Department POC Phone Number:

Contractor POC Office Address: Department POC Office Address:

IfSlihlirtTM
Pell Latitude 5310 IS, 16GB DDR4 RAM, 256 BSD, LTE

(Includes power adapter/cord, Windows 10)
Dell WD19 Docking Station (Includes power

adapter/cord)

Dell P2217 Monitor (Includes power cable; VGA

cable, DlsplayPbrt cable)

Dell Pro Briefcase

Dell KBl Wired keyboard

Dell MSI Wired Mouse

Microsoft Office Professional

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
3/26/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 83% Federal funds, Administration for Children and Families, as
awarded on February 7, 2024, by the Department of Health and Human
Services, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program, ALN
#93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

1.2. 17% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332. .

3. Payrnent shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-2
Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth {15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services. .

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs including, time
sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable. The Contract shall provide the supporting
documentation:

4.4.1. With each invoice unless otherwise determined by the
Department.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to besinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 C-2.1 ConJraclor Initials

3/26/2024
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 1 of 3 - Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final Invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist: .

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
.  and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor

shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

,  OS

u
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 C-2.1 Contractor Initials''^

3/26/2024
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 2 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of thefuiiding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

-D$

1^6
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02 C-2.1 Contractor Initials

3/26/2024
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 3 of 3 Dale
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Exhibit C-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Budget Request for: Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility ■ Concord s Laconia Region

Budget Period: Effective G&C approval through June 30,2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 9.90%

Line item
Program Cost - Funded by DHHS - SFY Program Cost - Funded by DHHS • SFY Program Cost - Funded by DHHS - SFY

24 25 26

1. Salary & Wages $57,082 $362,752 $373,285
2. Fringe Benefits $25,454 $146,824 $164,440

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR $0 $0 ■  $0
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies - Office $2,000 $4,500 $3,000
6. Travel $2,000 $7,687 $8,072
7. Software $0 $0 $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $1,000 $1,000 $500
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $2,000 • $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 $0
OccuparKy $12,411 $49,644 $49,644
Employment Training Services $16,250 $48,750 $80,000
Liability Insurance $340 $0 $0

Telephone $1,431 $8,901 $8,895
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0
Other (piease specify) $0 $0 $0
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $117,968 $632,059 $687,836

Total Indirect Costs $10,070 $57,748 $60,176

Subtotals $128,038 $689,807 $748,012
lOTAL $1,565,857

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02

Contractor Initials:

Date:
3/26/2024
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Exhibit C-2 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. '

Budget Request for: Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility ■ Rochester S Seacoast Region

Budget Period: Effective G&C approval through June 30, 2026

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 9-90%

Line Item
Program Cost • Funded by DHHS - SFY Program Cost - Funded by DHHS - SPY Program Cost • Funded by DHHS - SFY

24 25 26

1. Salary & Wages $36,149 $361,309 $371,823
2. Fringe Beneiits $13,646 $141,098 $158,390
3. Consultants $0 $0 $0
4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR $0 $0 $0
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0 $0
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy .  . $0 $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies • Office $1,061 $4,744 $3,256
6. Travel $1,000 $7,655 $8,037
7. Software $0 $0 $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $1,000 $1.0X $500
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $4,000 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 $0
Occupancy

$12,308 $50,705 $51,309
Employrrtent Training Servrces . $16,250 $48,750 - $80,000
Liability Insurance $340 .$3,500 $3,500
Telephone $1,955 $12,286 $11,911

Other (please specily) $0 $0 $0
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0
Other (please specily)

$0 $0 $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $83,909 $635,045 $688,726

Total Indirect Costs $6,698 $58,043 $60,264

Subtotals $90,607 $693,088 $748,990
lUiAL $1,532,685

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02

Contractor Initials:
5

Date:
3/26/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L.-100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. I,. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505

.  1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about.

'  1,2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimina[j|Jrug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucfTconviction;

,v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials

Federal Requirements Date^^^HZZH^

Page 1 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

•  Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the s,ite(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date^ZS?^?^

Page 2 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101 -121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date?ZZ?ZZE??"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://vi/ww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vo!1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligiliility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513.
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a'civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally pr civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12.. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13, By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lowertier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTtFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
. financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air. f „
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirerrients of 37 CFR Part 401. "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit

•  Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on-the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified ir) Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

ft6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date

Page 7 of 10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of. facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is npt already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
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FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beioNV listed questions are true and accurate.

hln:bcydgvm3
1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the ansv/er to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

3/26/2024

Date:

I

Contractor Name: Southern New Hampshire Services Inc

DocuSlgned by:

A4>KDSiee>lSMil3^ -T-T
Name: Ryan Clouthier
Title: chief operating officer

—>U>i
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A. Definitions
%

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user; etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

"7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

,  8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

'  information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inforrhation

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

-DS
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing .Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption.
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrvDted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

-OS
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End

User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection..
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, ' regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.' The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. . The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. I n the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law. •

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this. Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
/

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
Information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from-DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understarid that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and ,
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor Initials
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity." The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties."

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 (JSC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act," "Individual," "Privacy Rule,"
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an Individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the" BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
Identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is -
developed or endorsed by a standards developing Organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but-net

Exhibil F fC
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable;

I. For the proper management and administration of the Busine;ss Associate;

II. As required bylaw, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively Identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with'the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
Is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOffjcer@dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privaey-ior

Exhibit F
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

i. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How 'the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings In a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's com'pliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement. i

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I, Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PFfT in
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days fonward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fon/varding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

VI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been,
destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaai/publications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or. disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45

■  CFR 164.522, to the extent that'such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulations fuF|3,
Exhibil F

Contractor Initials
Busir^ess Associate Agreement

Page4of5 3/26/2024

V2.0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human

Exhibit F

herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA arid the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f. Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and

,  (3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
{P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

—DocuSign*<t by:

■■ M86<CEB1B<A< H...

Southern New Hampshire Services inc

Name of the Contractor

DocuSigntd by:

h4AO>466a«W«<..

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert

Name of Authorized Representative

Ryan clouthier

Name of Authorized Representative

Division Director

Title of Authorized Representative

chief Operating Officer

Title of Authorized Representative

3/26/2024

Date

3/26/2024

Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccretar)' of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New,Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on.May 28, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of State's ofTicc have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006209491

O&i

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Qrville Korr , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Cterk/Secretary/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. ' .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 11 . 2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthier. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Adberti.

Financial Analyst (may list more than one person )is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendrnent to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posilion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation^To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated

/^gnature of Elected Officer
^Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

03/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*''^ Dianne Soto
K (603)669-3218 (603)645-1331
ADDRESS' n^nch.certs@crossagency.com

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

PC Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108-5040

INSURER B Midwest Employers Casualty Corp 23612

INSURER C

INSURERD

INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR
TOUT

jm

suBtr

msL
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DOA'YYYl

POLICY EXP
(MM/DOA'YYYt LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES ̂Ea occufrencel

PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

MED EXP (Any ofi« p«f»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:□ PRO
JECTPOLICY

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

1.000,000

100.000

5.000

1.000,000

2.000,000

2.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Eaacekieni) S 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2670952 04/01/2024 04/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per acehJent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenl)

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000.000

PHUB905859 04/01/2024 04/01/2025 5,000.000

X RETENTION $ ^^.OOO
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

HCHS20240000534 (3a • NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000.000

Professional Liability
PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof Incident

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
(E>1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES
The Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

Helping People, Changing Lives,

MISSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-profit corporation chartered in the State of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to serve as the Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough County in compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hillsborough County and served the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
became the Community Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. In July 201 1, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), the
Community Action Agency serving Rockingham County, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Services. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides services to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties.

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent, federal legislation establishing the Community Services
Block Grant define our basic mission. Under these provisions the fundamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly, acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants, and the elderly poor to:

1. Secure and retain meaningful employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environment
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other programs related to the purposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

C. To provide on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related services, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among the
poor.

D. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in
the community.
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Financial Statements

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. ING

AND AFFlLiATE

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMiENTS AND
■ SUPPLEMTARY INFORMAtlON

FOR THE YEARS ended JULY 31, 2023 AND 2022
AND

UNDEPENDENt AUDITORS' REPORT AND
REPORTS ON Compliance and internal control
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SbUtHERhi NEW HAMPSHIRg SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATF

'GOMBINED'Fii^'ANGIAL'STAfEME^
FOgTHE Y^RS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022^
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Leone,

& Roberts
-CUR^RRb^URUC AXOIOTAWS;

DO\'Eiit'JWOLFEBOR0

INDEPENbENtAUDltbRS'.REPORt. ^RTHWyAr

to the Boarcl of Pirectprs pf
fSoutheiti NewiHamp'shife^e^ Affiliate •

iRoport on the Finahci^ iStetemenW

;bpiriion '

iVVe have audiled;tHe ;ecco"mpahying fjriah of Southern New Hampshire Services,:
Inc.- <and' Affiliate;;^(a. ■npnprdjit pfganizatiop); which 'Cpniprise. fte. combined VtatemeHs-of

'^finanq^J positlohV'as 6f July- and, the related combined.statements of
achyities and-changes ih 'netVassets/functip'nal^xp^ and 'cash flows for the yeare then;
and the related notes tothe c6mblned>financlal stkerhents.

iln^our'oplQiph, the/cpmOin^ p/esent fairfy, 'jnjall'niatenai respects,the;
'financ|ai;posltion of'$outhefn/Ne,w Hampshire'Seiyides," 1^
land' 20^2,"and ;the ■ change's ;in its net assbts ^bnd lts|, cash flows; for the years fhen .endeb 'In"
^apcbibince with ap^untlop pnbdip^ in the O.hited, States of Amen
' Basjs for bjalhipti

i)We: ■ rondubt^ < our .:apdits ;in'bccprdanc^; withj "a
^bn'ted.- .States^ of} America r arid Ihe 'standards' applicable' 'tp flnancjal' audits- .cdnta'ihed r in
:'bovemmenf;At/5rf/rig_.S berieral of.the United^ '^'6ur.
•resporisibilifles.bnder thos^^^ describ^djn,the Auditors' RespPnsjbH^

believe .that! the^'aiidjt eViden'ce; WeV have obtained is sufficient an'd apprbpnate 'to 'p;rpvide%a;
.basisfofouraud^^^ ' ^ . -

^ResponsiblliUes of Management^for the Financial S^^
;t'4ijt^anagemeht ' is^^fespbnsible rfori the/preparation \ and fair'i presehfation of these 'combined

';hiaterial misstatemehtrwh to .fraud'drerrbr.

•-I'
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!n preparing th^ cprribiried fihahcial statenients, managemeht is required, to evaluate whether •
there afe cohditioos or events^i considered In 'the aggregate, that'raise substahtiaKdoubt about,
^SbuthejTiiNewrRamiJsh and-Affiliate's abiHtyrto:continue ,as:a g6lhg'^^^^^^^
within 6he year*afterthe.date:that-the.financial statements,are available to:be Issued:

' Auditore\ Responsibilities^ of the;Financ|al;S^teni'ente

'punqBjectlves ;are "to 'Obtain reaspnaW a'ssurahcd;about whefter the. cbmbined-ifiriahbiaf
statements as awhoje a^^^ misslateitiebt, whether due to fraud or error, and
Vtb jssue ah auditors'- repp^lthat-ihclud bpjnipn: •Reasphable assurance Is a high level of
assurance. J)ut-1s not Jabsolute' assurance »and there.fore'is ho.f.'a^ guarantee' that an' audit,
conducted -In .accordance with gehefally a au'dlting. standards and; Gbvem/nen/ Auditing '
■^^Siandar^s will always detpcfa m'atefiai misstatement when it exists; The risk of hot detecting
a mateifal :mjsstatemen^ from fraud is fhigher than for one resulting frorn error; as
fraud rriay involve collusion' forge^^^ iritentidnal. dniissidns, misrepresentation,'or the override

•pf internal control.' MisStateniehtS-,rare'_c6^^ material If,there is e .substantial jikelihpod
'that, individlially pf.in, theaggregate, they would'ihfiuen'ce'the judgment ifnade ,by a':reasohable
^Uber'baVed:on theb'ombined financ^

'In peffpnhin^^an\audif;in e .with gehefally accepted auditing_ standards and
<'<5o vemme'nf Aud/f/ng

'Exercise .prpfessio.nat jud (maintain prpfesSibhal skepjicis/n'thrdughput the
raudit, r ■ ' ' ^ * . . / ' .

^ •' 'Identify.and assesfvth^ imatehal missta^rneht *of .the'com
;statements;:>iyhether;^^^^^ or; error.; and Resign and "'perfprm.a^^^
resppn'sive>tp.\th6s nsks:. ^'S.uch procedures' include examining^ pn "a 4est;,baSjs,

• 'evldehce'jegardlhgthe ani^d^^^ thepdm'bihe.d.financiar'state^ .
. -•f' 'pbtaimart'uhderstandjng -dfJpXeha' pohbpl felevanTto

/prbpedures-that yaTe: ;appr6priate'^in Cird.drtistances,',bu^^^ not* ■for, the /purpose pf'
;expfesslh9;ah:Qpihioniph;!theyeffect|yehess;iOfS6^^^ Inc;

■and Affiilatejs Internal cphtroj;*AOcprdjngly/np:s
■ i 'Evaluate'therapprpprjatenessJof.acQ^ 'dsed. and'the feesohdbleness .of*

islgnificahtpccpunting'CsJimst^s-niade'by imena^e^ well as/eyaluate the/oye^^^^^
•pYesentatiph'/bfthelfi^^^^^ " /, .

- •' .ebhclude 'wjxethe?f in'ourdudgrrient, /there are Condjtipns or levep^ ■cphsidefed 'in the'
:aggfegate.;that raise .substeritial .doubt labput Souths ■Services,^Ihc.;
and Affillate's'abiji^tpvcp^^ a^gbihg :cpncerh:fpr"a reaspnableperiod of. time.-.

Internal.cpntrpl-related matters that we jdeptifie.d during the a

:2V
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Suppiehiien^ry Information

OuraijdltVwasy^ of forming an opinion on ;tho cornbined',finahcial
^statements as .a^.wh'ole; Jhe accompanying schedule pf'expendltufes of federal awardi- 'as
required by ̂ t|e::2 '.U;S.'ppde'W Part 200, Unifoiw^Adminis^
Reguireme/its] C' dst'pnriciples^-d^^ Audit f^e'qulre'nients for-Federal Awards,, '/s.presehted for
purposes dfaddltlpnalahalysis ahtfisinqta / financial Statements.,

.'Additionally,, the- combining \sch^^^^^^ of, .financial ppsjtipn, *and cpmbinihg' schedules of.
■.activities are' presented jor addjtipnal arlalysis arid- are not a required partjpf the" combined
•.firianpiar' statements.' Additiobaljy, * the- ,;supplerTieritary, infdmiatibn as required ^ by' New
'Hampshire. Housing iis piresented for" additional;analysis arid is riot a required part^ofithe
bonnbi'ned financial .statements^* Such infomiatibn Is the. responsibility of nianagement and \yas

. derived ̂ from'and relates" directly to' the'uhderlyi^^^^ and other'records used to
' prepare 'the combin^^^ financial statements: 'The iinfprmation has- been subjected^tq'the auditirig
/"procedures applied in the.audif of :the combined statements and certain'^ additional
;:pfocedureV, Including oomparirig.and reconciling such ipfofrriatipn -^directly to the uriderlying
accounting and/O^ fecPrds used, to- prepare ihe combined financiakstat^ pr] 't6'the

, .■cqrhbined financiarstaterpert^^ therhseiyes',, and other ■additional procedu^^^ irioVcpYdancP with,
.'audftihg standards :genefaily/accepted.!in th^ United States pf^Am^efiCe jn pupppirtionr.the
infdrnridtipn lie fairly.stated,Yin;^all ma^^^ in reiatjon tq the ifinailcial isYatements.as a
Vhote.^*

'  Reporting Requi/ed' b^: GovernmentAuditin^^ Standards
In .acCpfdahpe with Goyemm.enf-^ud/7/ng;Srahdan:(s,.'we haye aisp^

, MPrch d 1,*"2b24;;6hpur 6iFSoutherh:Ne.w Hampshire^Seivices, Inc^^arid.Affiliate's -
■Ihternail . .cpnifol over ■fihai^cjahirepbrtihg and,'bh;i.our.- tes^ of Jts\cpnrip|iahcC\^'tH\c^
*?prQVisidns.of :laWs,. fegUl.airQris,x-cdntfacte^^ agreement,and other"'matters, "the
Jipu.fposeipf that report, is solely. tp'describeVthe. scope of-our testirig of ihtefnal.-cdn
'.financi^repprtihg arid pPmpliao'G^^^ and hot to provide ari .bpirilpn;
j' pn the.^'feffed.tjyeness;6^ Hampshire 'Seivices;^rnc:^ "Affiliate's intemaj ■^n'trpl'
' O^rfinancial. reportihgptdnc,6m That report is'ahr integral part df am
■jn.accofda^^^ \with Gpvenirhgrit Audiiihg-Stanldd^
■'Se'rViqesrlrtc-. ^n^.Affin^ Control pj^eV financial rdpgrtingranrtic^^ ' "

.ibd'yefi- Nbw^Harhpshrre;
Mar^t:?^;2C)24'^

:,3 '
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC..AND AFFtLIATE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSfTION ■
JULY 31:2023'AND 2022

ASSCTS

-2023 2022

.;cyRRENT:ASS^>
~'Cash^ ' " "
' Inyes^.ents;
.Grants re^jvatjle.
.Ac<xunts receivable <
' P^repald expeps^

;$ -^10.382.T55
10.b89;918'-
-4^657,945'
1 .'075.688 ■
-311,983

;$ 1.1.441'.623::
.9,696,836
•'4.456,963

949:902
129,210

•Totarcu'irentassets.. 26.517.689 26 676;5i4'

PROPERTY

^'|Land' ^ ■
»iBu'lldinSs aKd improVe^ente.
• Vehicfes apd equipment"

Totpjpib'perti'V'

4,6i0.574
^14.624;467'

.  ."1.748.'567
; 20.433,608.

3,575,086'
.13,636,225 •
4.470.617

:18,98.1,922'

: l^Lessi^accumuiated^ depr^iation • ••6.392'.579 ^ feTid.osf.

property! npt 14;"04T.029 .  ,12.261:'865

/Other assets'
■ Restricted cash. -  -.500;770t

TOTAL ASSETS. -■$..1(1,059:488.. -  S 39.450,'365. ,

'DABILITIESiANb NET ASSETS

XyRREHtyA^lLmES f: ..
Ourrent portrohjof tenji'clebt

'^Pcduhts'payable .
1'.Accrued pa^oirand'reiat^ expehses
1 ;Accmed'cdmpeh^jed absence
rpther liabljlties^. . ..
{Refundableradyan^S'..
T®nant;sectjr[ty defwslts'.

':$ <87.597.
• * .2';b53,767..

rt '.952.587
42i;706'
:235.652,'

<2.209;6iB
-  ..*-82;667''

'.''$ ^83,656
/99i;023,

•  • .i:64'e,T68:i
\467;125
'222;094-^

* 4:396.640
.  :95.757. '

■ Total current' liabilities 7,b42.'274 ..7,636j463"' '
iLpi^Gi^ifERM LlifkBiLITIEf . „ _ , . ^
"  Ti liL'bng iertn debl!, Iess':curtent pdrtion'BHbWn above .  ■1;389.230 .  "i;905.793

Total liabilities^
•  * . • .f • f; ♦

..8;431.564
*  . • •- -

9,742;256'

i^NET^ASSETS .
•^.Without donor restfldtions' -

" ' ' V L. • * ' >
^32i627;984t -i29:708jt09

tqtAi;CL'iABlLijLE0^^ .,4'i::o59:488 * V39.'45b.'365 <

V.;^^e)NotG8}t6'CprnbihodJ?inaXc Statempnts;^

'4'
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE^

COMBINED StAtEMENtS, OF'ACTIVltlES -
FOR THE YEARS ENDED^'jULY 31.-2023 ANbi6i2

.  '2023 2022:

;REyENMES,:GAINS ANDJOTH^R'SU^^
■GraritTey^^ ^ ' ■ '
;Pjx)gram "service fees''
ILc^I funding' •
iRerital Incorne _

' Gifts and other contributions.
^interest andidivldend iriconie;
' Ohrealized iosf ori Ifivestrrierits.

>  'Misc^iianepus" ' i - -
1n-kind*co'ntributi6n's
'IFofgiyeness of debt't
' Qain on disposal of proper^'.

•t

•Jotal revenuesj .^aihs ahJother supports

'EXPENSES .
';PrqgfaiTi.sefvlces

•CWld development.
•jCo^rrimunity-syryice^
'.Economic and-,wofl^orce.development -

'■■'Energy " ^ ' '" . - ■ "
;Language^and/ljtera.cy
' Housing an'd'hpitiOlesa

'^Nutrition and health-'
. Special projects'"^ '

^ yplunteervsefyice •
^ SNHS-.Managemerit'Cofpomtto^^

-■TpilJi prpg'ram'services^
—  "T

:Supp_b^ng acth/lti^
' Mahagerherit and^gerieral

^ Total expenses-■

, ;CHANGE(N N

'•NET'ASXETS^'BEGfNm .

•NCT ASSETS, END'OpyEAR^
V- - .f • 4

$^ 110.665:844 $ 13J;572.'939-
'804,331 930,848'
191419 {162.140

»1.134.22'9 f 1,248:788'
.286V973 . 375i2'3'1
463.090"' ' 463.230
(60,136)^ :• (1,101,886)
160.0^1 ':162.'429'

^>1.406.827^ ■991,197
-446,060 :960|000"

.  '495,109 ^.8,545

-.1-15i988,726
.  ■ ' ■ .—'t

;135,654.461

MO,344,050.
1,380,399 '
5,576.367'

21,655,560'
: 217,448 '

'65,332.498
'2,206;763"^

-■2i031.506;
119:653 i

.2.726.036

'9,709,703.'
i;365i889;

•4;855,48*8, '
'15.581i785'-

355;546.
;94.23'2.689
';2^i92.7b5
(1,798.981
.M6'9.'4dl ^

:2.''458.985-

' 116,990,M .

1.078.577.

. -1l3.668i851:.

I32;66l',p72-

. M,977;71.6-

134^638,788

1.91.187^5 - 1;6r5,673'.
.k'. .

.  _29.708.109
•  —?>

_ J^28;692,436.

'32.627:984, 'i$M9i708,f09r

:See Notes to Cornbm

5'
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR TWE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

Proiarani Services

EXPENSES

Payroll
Pa)TDtl taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers compensation insurance
Unemployment
Retirement benefits

Consuttant and contractual

Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
OccuparKy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment reritals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscr^tions
Program support
Interest

'  Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expense
Miscellaneous

lr>-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Enminatkms

TOTAL EXPENSES

.Economic and Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

Devetoement Services DeveloDment Enerov Literacy aftd Homeless Hoaltfi.

$ 4.667.629 $  - 531,680 S 2,009,063 $  1,938,088 $  203,503 $  1,431,041 $  857.455

349.470 40,180 151,567 148,475 14,563 108,336 64,713

1,443.535 86,342 440,413 503.989 20,634 295,713 210.743

82.617 5,964 3,854 10,384 4,371 2,874 21,143

13.237 1,219 5,089 5,495 549 2,692 2,398

342.791 46,717 153,650 119,927 5,789 67,638 58,784

50.990- 274.728 300,288 1,347.342 878 1,154.158 12,482

92,430 16,212 46,501 46,755 168 2,611 32,691

. 14,430 . 9,638 . • 830

706.464 153,012 508,703 136,509 30,171 190.186 71,981

134 5,915 6,628 - 25 - 75

303.547 22,767 16,260 130,317 4,592 71,748 283,941

3.605 911 8,610 31,905 443 589 27,842

23,033 45,759 2,720 22,872 - 8,572 4,317

86,959 17,736 37,596 36,512 4,561 45,272 70,491

1,402 . 1,010 36,478 . 16,742 2,468

3,026 5.272 - - • - -

. 696 • -

6.018 110,075 29.932 - - ■

6.411 . - -• -• ♦ -

182,997 20.641 43,484 8,534 1,968 6,627 12,983

349,924 11.366 1,737,805 16,521,194 - 61,950.040 521,950

316,567 2.113 108,073 26.625 • 2,503 2,379

14,710 1.003 1,183 4.215 25 1,879 2,527

1,406.627 . . - ■- •

10,474.721 •1.418.pW 5,586,497 21.113.878 292,240 65.3^,221 2,262.193

(130,671) (^.681) (lW30) (M.3i6)< (74.792) (24.723) (55.430)

S 10.344.050 .S 1.360.399 S  ;5.576;367 :S 21.055.560 $  217,448 S 65.332.498 S. 2.206.763

Seo Notes to Combined FInartcisI Statements

6



OOOiSlgA Envdep* O: PASSaSSS-lFIMTSTWUMO-ZZMMSStSSS,
NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. [MCvANDLAfflUATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

Pfdgram.Se^CTri
Support
Services

SNHS "'Manasemont '
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and 2023

Proiecta Servtcas CorDoratioh Services General Total

EXPENSES

Payroll -  '$ 64.397 i  78,563 S  702^669 S  12,504,086 $  1.329,230 $  13,833,316
Payroll taxes 4.773 5,550 51,177 036,804 95.465 1,032,269

Fringe benefits 2.551 25.583 211,953 3,243,456 176,241 3,419,697
Worlcers compertsation Insurance 306 145 10,911 142.769 4,432 147.201
Unemployment 135 233 1,392 32,439 2,884 35,323
Retirement benefits 5.715 6,920 53,840 863.771 130,495 994,266

Consultant and contractual 1.882.405 335 137,435 5,161,039 205,722 5,366,761

Travel and transportafion 3.699 3,910 49,033 296,010 4,893 300,903

Conferences and. meetings 5.972 - 34,047 64.915 1,074 - 65,989

Occupancy 12.000 689,228 2,498,254 59,745 2,557,999

Advertising . 1,047 1,574 17,398 25 17,423

Supplies 284 3.041 19.953 856,450 23,581 880.031

Equipment rentals and maintenance 22.835 13 18,642 115,595 5,989 121,584

Insurance 2.244 1.762 51.158 160,437 10,498 170,935

Telephone 2.750 3.751 31,762 337,390 17,767 355,157

Postage - 665 718 59.481 11,475 70,956

Printing and publications •- • - 8,298 8,298

Subscriptions - - 1.199 1,895 129 2,024

Program support 1,143 -• 89.936 237,102 r- 237,102

Interest •i - 45.072 51,483 .. 51.463

Depreciation 43,940 393,665 715,039 4,114 719,153

Assistance to clients 3.500 - 35.401 81,131,200 - 61,131,200

Other expense 11.879 424 12,233 482,796 400 483,196

Miscellaneous 252 3,328 96,859 125,981 66 126,047

In-ldnd expenses - . .  1.406.827 - 1.406,827

SUBTOTAL 2;070;780. 135,270 .2i740.p57 '111.450.915 . 2,084,225. 113,535,140

Enminalions (39.280) (15.617) •(14.021) (460.641) (5:648) (466,289).

TOTAL EXPENSES S- -2;bi31.500. %  119.653 $. :2.726.036- $ 110,990.274 '.%■ 2;078.577, S  113.068,851

Sm Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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En«b».iD: HAMPSHIRE SgRVlCESl'tWC. AND AFFIUATE

CORABINED STATEARENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENPm JULY 31. 2022

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxes
Frjr>g8 benefits
Workers compensation insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation
Conferences arrd meetings
Occupancy •
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Post^
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistance to dients

Other expense
Miscellaneous

In-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Eliminations

TOTAL EXPENSES

.Prograrh Services
' Economic arKl - '.Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

Develooment Services Develooment Enerov Literacy and Hofnelees Hestth

i 4,662,659 $  558.156 S  1,990,951 $  1,547,109 $  236.067 $  2,016,252 $  864,686

348,302 42,274 149,819 117,947 17,294 153,374 65,249

1,503,860 97.032 429,260 421,614 26,123 363.941 241.067

97,375 7,094 4,336 11,681 5,631 4,375 . 24^17

345,542 51,651 166,504 114,842 9.313 59,619 84,339

52,542 289,776 309,531 1,922,755 1,017 927,682 10,004

70.049 14,684 37,586 42,224 491 1,928 15,466
. 10,660 5.378 •- 1,016 825

634.228 147,065 554.837 129,718 29,924 52,641 56,192

1,188 - 1,660 13,322 100 50 150

269,441 24,269 15,592 105,391 12,122 81,566 254,026
17,789 3.090 5,139 12,244 10,403 18,919 10,377

19,075 47,462 5,982 23,078 2.463 4,717

71,994 17,062 37.827 40,509 3,114 24,751 79.510

1,628 7 1,432 29,767 246 25.363 3,753

1,488 4.588 16,531 645 • -

i •- 704 - r-

1,873 120.345 20,585 - 4,617

7,811 - - - -

133,424 19,673 44.930 8,533 2,906 - 13,778

238,519 23.297 1.107.003 11,032,479 -• 90.504.018 486,664

348,271 2,816 4,642 10.508 3,203 4.744

12,952 44,591 1,036 1,696 150 2,088 1,822

992.197 . . - - •.

9,830.207 i,^;6i2 4.8^.0^ MS;^.61'5 355;M6,. ;94';243;249 2.206,243

(120,504)' (159,723) • (12.579) (46:830)' (10,660): (13,5M)

$  9,709.703 !$• 1-365;889 S 4.855:488 ■i-15.581.785 S  .355,^ •S .94.232.^ i  2.192.705

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements

8



HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. IMC. AMD AFRLIAT^

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Contlmted)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

.Proflfam S«^<^

SNHS

Support
- Sei^cea.
Management

Special Volunteer Martagement Total Program and 2022

Proiects Servteee Co roo ration Services Goneral Total

EXPENSES

Payrol $  70,027 9  66,286 $  680,957 $ 12,693.150 $  1,258,823 % 13,951,973
Pa^l! taxes 5.334 4.777 51.278 955.646 91,302 1,046,948
Fringe benefits 5.415 17,932 124,330 3,230,574 172,052 3.402,626
Wor1(ers compensation insurance 631 146 12,763 168,249 4,964 173.213
Retirement benefits 5,651 5,739 51.873 875.273 123.402 998.675
Consultant and contractual 1,576,097 2,790 154,643 5.246,837 181,115 5.427,952
Travei and transportation 2.535 1.347 43,639 229,969 6,137 236,106
Conferences and mee^ngs 1.687 . ■ 36,679 56,425 2,276 58,701
Occupancy 20,274 . 653,118 2,277,997 44,863 2,322,880
Advertising 25 500 1,641 16,636 338 18,974
Supplies 9.264 3,099 22,434 797.224 44,635 841,859
Equipment rentals and mainter^nce 5,673 21 10.928 M.583 1,052 95,635
Insurance 3,706 1,762 46,929 155,174 18,931 172.105

- Telephone 2,770 3,137 24,285 304,959 14.673 319.632
Posta^ 7 752 766 63.721 11,966 75.687
Printir>g and publications r 1,477 24,729 - 24,729

Subscriptions -- 900 665 2,269 .1,029 3,298
Program support 3,336 73.105 223,861 -i 223.861
Interest - 47.746 55,557 . 55.557

Depredation 46,288 - 395,803 667.333 4,114 671,447
Assistance to dients 41.099 - 24.779 103.457,878 ' ; 103,457.878
Other expense - . , 7,175 379,359 1,539 380.898
Miscelaneous 120 213 66.702 131.370 209 131,579

lr>-l(ind exper^es . . 992.197 . 992.197

SUBTOTAL 1,8q2i317 IJW.itOI 2.Mi7i3 133.102,970 i;981>120- 135,084,390

Eliminations a:336> . f74.728) <441.8981 ■{3:704) {445.802)

TOTAL EXPENSES 'S v.798.98i $ • 109.401 :S' 2:458.985 $ 132,661.072 $  1.977:718. S 134.638.768

Soe Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444B815BE

SOUTHERN NEW SERVICES.ilNC: ANb;Ai=FILIATE

•"COMBiNED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 , 2222

■%c^SHVLbws;FRpMip^^^
'change.In'hel'assets ' - •
tAdJustmejitf to r^hclfe .change'In
^het {^ish,ffpm'pperating'a

•Depreciaiion^
' Gajn ph.disposal of property.
Unrealized loss W ihveslrnents,
'Fprglyen.eSs.of.debt,

.»Loss on cqnsifuctlpni..
'.Oed'ease (increase)' [n assets:
" ''Grants receivable •"

A^UiiU re'ceivable'
. ^PrepaTd'expefises-

. increase (dedease) iiitiab'ilitles:.
t'A^unts payable
.Accrued payroll ahd'.related expenses
Ad^Vd.cp'mpens'aled abseriM ~'

/other iiabriities ^ ^ .i . .
"i. Refuridable adv'ances-j '
.-'Tenarit security deposits;

. NETCA^H RROVIDED BY OPE^TING ACTlVitlE^^ •'  ̂ ^ - "V
■,PAsH FLpyVS/RpM (NVEST(NG ACTIVITIES

.purchaselbf property" ^ -
! Prp^eds ,'^rri dIspoMi ofprpperty

' i'pjirchase.qf jnyedniertts/reinveste^^^ and capital gains.

•NEtCASH USED.IN INVESjrNo'ACtiyrTIK
:a - V '

iCASHFLOWS.FRpMJINANCING^A^^^^^
'  sRepayrnent d Ipn^ leriTi " *
N^MSH USED FiKANClNG.ACTiyiTI|S

: INETJNCREASifoECREAsI) IN CASH^
-'XJASHANO^^RESTRI^TEp^C^ Of-YEAR-
^CASIHAND^RESTR END pF viAR

■ Supplemental bfsclbsuR^^^^
I-'Ca.sh paid 'duhngt.he yearTpf Jntere'd!'

ISUPPLEMENfALjjiSCLq^URES
' '..Building l^proyemehts In the.cuTeritVbar;.in accounts payabl'e

"1 ' '<-■
»-cMH-AND^iSlT^'CtEp

i;Cash *-^, ^ ^
.;,ResUictedcash •

. ■'Total cash^'ahdVestrlcted,cash'

r-i^iS 2.919,875; • ;$' .1;015.673

•719,153
;'(495.109)':
;  '60.13d-

.(446,000)

098,982)
• (125,186) •
,(182,77.3),

.  465,206-
.3b6.4i9'
•- '14.581

•12,958"
;(2'181;022),

'(13,750);

891 .add.

,(2r1-W,9pi)
•709i1.71"
(453,212)^

671,4^7. •
(8.545) *

1-,101;886
.(900.006)!

■ 70.044

■('l .66/324),
,'(17i,292):

7,48i

299,326-
•458,824.
(17,372)'

^••(21,028)
2,'966.502

-  /.v6.525

. ■4.472:150

(1,058,436)
.  ̂ 45.428-

-. -(402,006)

11;888.942). !.(1.415.014)*

'(72;d2"2) . (68.765)'

(72:622)'' '(68,765):

(i!67Q.bd4y :i.9.88;37i
■11.953.589. 1:8,^SW-
-l'0;883;525' ^SJI.&s'SiSSd,

zr »>

-vsir486:- . /ss.ssf:.

-567.471-'. j. - .

:$-10.382,755; •44T,623
>56o;776:- •* '5i:i-.966.

-  . " -7. .. *-•: .. :,. .v:
;$-16,883,525; . t$Mt:&63.589
rTTT

!.See Notes to Combined Flnahclal Statemehtei'
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
FOR THE year's ENDED JULY 31 .^2023 AND 2022

,NOTE;i ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY ORSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General , , .. .
■Southiernj - New, Hanipshire' Services;: Inc; and, affiliate, (the drganizatjon) is a-
nonprafit umbrella' cor^oralioa ;array of services To 'tHi ,^ldefiy;_

'disabled, «and Ipy/'-inqorpe.hbuseholds' in. New Hamp'shjfe's Jiillsborough fepunty.
iahd Rdckingh'aV'Qouhty. The 'Grganizatlph's program provide'assistance,.In the
areas of education, chiid ;deyelopmehY,'ernpjoyment. phergy and .Its consefyatioh,

ffipusing, 'and homelessness prevention^ Tfie ;drgan|2ation ,is. ■com
'prPvidingjrespec^^ services arid assisting individuals' ahd'Tarriilies in
jachieying sel^Mfficiency'by^.h^ therd' pvercprrie the causes;pf poverty. The
priima^ SQi^fce bf revenue's, is denved^frprti gpyernrnfental-contracts. Se'rvices are

""provided- .thfough ''Souther^ New Ham'pshire .Services, tinc:: and/SNHS
MaPagerrteriVCbrpp

Basis of Abdouritihg ^
'The vOfgahizatibn'pr^^^ Jts corri^ financiai/stateimehts'utilize the :ac6fual
J)asis'of^apcopr^tihg^^^^^ witb accdunttng,.principle accepted:
in the^Jnited^States p^

Basis of Prasehtatibn
■^he cpmbihed ,the Organisation'have b:een^pfepafed irt
accoTdphqe w generally accep'ted:accpuhting spriricipieV (US

.assets"are:de.termihed:by.the.presence;pr.;abseric,b^^^^

' Net .'assete without - donor restrictions !Net. assets that .are h6t-^ubjedt :tp ',
dphbf-imppsed"^^^^ ahd'rhay^be ^expended ToV'any .purpbse' in
ipecfprmmg ,'th^ .'of the ^Orgapizatipn., These'•net'^assets'
'iriay bemused, at ,the discretion; of the :6rga'nizati6h's' mahaqement-arid" the'
iBp^fd-Pfbjre.ctofs;.^ " "" .'"V. " _

'■QrgahizatiPh-puMu^^ dy\pass99e,fpf ̂ time.'pth'^
idpnb;. ;restricti6ns:aj:e;perpetuar ihJ heturev"^^^
THe-t^rfds'beriralntain ' ' " n-' ■ . . - • ■

fbdhdr'fes'tricted.^contnbutiohs.'aretreported' as an ihcra 'net:assets

■dphpr;re^trictipn;s,ih the's'tateideht 6

'it



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

southern jjEW ̂ AM SERVICES^INC. AND AFFILIATE

'NOTEiS JO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

1  j u * ~ "

■of'JuIy'*3ti :2'023 iahd "2022^ the prg'ahizatiqn ^had :nd net assets witfi. dohpr -
' restricti^^^ """ . ' -

Gbnribiried financial Ste^^
All^sighificant jnte^cpmpah^ items and transactions, have been eliminated from thd
basid'^mbined ^nancjal staterhents* the'combined financialistatements include
the. accounts; of' SNHis' Managerriehr Co^^ 'berause 'Sputhern New;.
Hampshire-Services/Jno^ than 50%-pf. the*voting power-.*.

.Southern NeW: Ha Jnc and ;SNHS: Management Cofpdratioh af.e
goye'rried, by' separate doafds of directors; and each Organization fi les its pwh fortrl
.99Q.with the IRS; Seecombining s^^^^ 25 ahd'26 bffhese fi n^^^
staternents.; * ■ - - - -- . :

Estimates. >
The''preparatibn pf .^mbined tirian6ial\statements^ jh cphfbilpitytw
ac^pted abcbuhtlng 'requires- »mahagemeht; to/ make ..estimates -ahd;
assumptions fhata^^^ repbrted-ahibunts.bf assets:and liabilities at the date
'of the finanbiaVstatei;hen^^^^^ TjlerrepPfled .amounts: Of Tbyenue.s;;arid:expenses
during thetepprted periodr^^ual re'sulf^may dife

■Cash ahd'Cash EduivaiehtS: . ,
tpnthe :pufposeVof Uhe .rombined.^sta^rhents ;bt ca^ the Elrgahizatlbn.
■;cbhsiders^al^^ hjghly\liqujd.debt instrvmehts purc^^^
jf^ree. mqpths/or/ less: .equivalents;, rThe P/gSnlzetion
:ebuiVajehts:as of J.uly'^

ClufrehfVulRerabiiihesOue to Certain Go^
,  Jhe prgjarilzatlpn Is pperated; iri a heay lly/egulated:environ^ 'the ppefatiphs.of/

the'Qrga*nizati6neresubject\o rules;'and:reguiatibhsoV
federals/state ,and' ,l6cai tegulat'ofy ;agenciesi • SucR .'admih'isjfativ4.&ire'6^^^^ fulls -

pqst;lncluding;the'additi6hal admiriistcatiye. bOrdenVto

Cbiiclntratibn Of Credit Risk , . ^ ^
:.TheVOfgahization rrhaihtaihsV its' ,cash.. balances; at ' several financial . iiristitUtiona/t

■eddltipn,''.pn.:Odpbe 2p08;the-OrgahizatjpnV.entered"m an::agreement.'withi;[ts^
■' .principal bank1fig,^artner.tp;c.6)ia,te^^^ i.
Jimitatiphpn.sbme ac^untS- the':balances/?a^ \
.by^lthe tDlcVahd;cbllaterall.zatip'b bpinioh of mehagemeht 'that/
there is ho sl^hifibaht .Hsk witbrespecf.to these deposits .at either. 'July ilV2023- arib
2om' ' " ■*

/12'



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE ■

SOUTHERf;j NEW-HAMPSHIRE SER<^iCES/lNC AND

' NpfES fO COMBINEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE VEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

'Accouhts ̂ nd Grants Receivable

All . accounts and ; grants receivable stated at .the anibunt rnariag^
expects;' to vcblled from "balances/:6utstSn at ;ye^r^end.' ReceivablXsV
Yecorded/bn"the,accftial basis;:of accounting .primarily; based ori ifeimbursabje'
cbntracts," grant's, arid |igfeeitierits. Balahbesi outs^ after marTagement :h,as
'used feasonable/TOilectionveiforts are a ̂ 'arge to;:bad deb\
expense\,and , a''b^ the applicable'accounts, receiya Mahagement dbes
nbt b^lieye' an allowance-for uncollectible accpuhts receivable isMiecessary at ,
'July.31.:2023:ahd'2^^^^^^^ ' ' - ^ . ■ •

•• t, , . .

Support and Revenue Recoqhitiori

■Contracts with Customers
'PrpgrafTi fees are reported, at the:ambunt?that ;feflects .tbb.Coh^
the].Organization' .expects to ibe^erititled. for pfpyidlng ^ 'services to,its!-
^clients/' ' ' -

^Caeneraiiy/theJ^ bills custbrriefs - arid third-party, payp seyefaldayS-
^theVseryices pr'e :perfp_rTned:;,ReVehue-".is 'recognized, as - perfbmiahce;:

bbligatigns;a!:e Satisfied,' Ferfprlrtahce-obligations are. determined based 'phVthfe
natyre/bf the'seiVices;pfoyided'by ith the; prganizatipn measures/
.the;gerformance bW^^ its •childcafe 'services to the' poirit'whentt ts^ri
loiiger. fequired .tpyprpyide sen/ices, to the. client, which is- generally, .weekly for
.Chjldc,afe;services^^ considered' to be ;a single !!p!erf6rmaa.ee*
.obligation:.

w  • ' ' 't • •• j

Revehue^ifbf'bfertonaahce'ibbligationssati recp'gnize'dt
.when seiyi(^s:afe!pf6y the^Orgahizati6n■d6es hotibelieveJt JS requifed:^
■pfpvHe'ad.dfttbha
»• » ^ \ " ' *1 ' • ' ^ ^
Ba^d "ph the hatu/e'pf services; bfoOided > by the prgahizatibri ihd;due tp ithertac
.that/all; of the..pfganlzatlp^ pbligations afe felated. to, Pontracfe with'
a. dbfatibriY'pfi'iess than, ipne iyeaf-, rthp.'p/gafiizatiq.n' :has; elected; to ppply vthe

pertprrTiahGe,-.pb!ig,atiph^ that/a;re;',Uiisatisfied.p'r.ipartjayy-p;nsaJisfipd;-^^^
the repbriihg pertod.'. " c - * ' '

The'; tranSactiori ; jDnce Tor. chlldcare ."services'^jsj.base^ staridard*; charges Tbr-v
seryicesVproyjde^ the/terms:bf the State; Hamp.shirb
pepartrTiefit.. ̂ bf; lilealth' bbd Puman; /S.ertrice.s -:''childcare- ̂ subsidy'' 'programs; ̂
^reirbbufsern;eiit;fbr.'chi!dG^^ maydiffer'frprrtestabiishbd'TateS>
Jsythe^ LOfganfealiO^'s';goiicV' :.tqTset .«its ifbtes to; b'b Vcbrisisteht 'with^ current'
Telrhbu tsemeht^raleV.: ̂ T^^erefqre^ ampUd
;c6nslderatidri.;s'ubje6t- to -;retrbactive revenue-adiustrrients due'-td/Settlenhent '6f
reyievys-and audits. • » • - - -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SQUTHERia KlEW HAIViPSHIRE SER

INOtES td'COMBINED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FO^ THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Th;e\ ;p/ganizatb ha's-ele'cte;d/tp^~a practica[ .expedient rallow^^
' fX$B .A$C ;606-10;^10;4rforvapp^ revenue stafidard. td xipprtfplid of ■

ppntraqts^wit^^^^^ The Organization.accouhtsTpr.ithex'dntra^^
■Within, each portfolio a|-a rallective group; -rather than individual contracts; based
on the pfiyrhent pattdro ex category and'the islmllar nature
dnd- characteristics, pf ,the clients, within' ea'chf/pdrtfdllo ■ The ppitfolios consist of
rndjdr paypr.d^ses ■fpr'childda^ Bdsed 'On histoncal collectiph trends
ehd-dthdr;.ana!ysis," th^^ Orgahtzation »ha's concluded, that revenuelfdr .given
poi^olip would not .different than if accounting for TeVenue on a
■cohtracL^ ' " - - - - - " ' ' ^

The -Organization: :ha>^^ apply thd ,practical expedient aHojyyed
.under FASB.'A0C^6O6f1O^32r18 ifdr fe.fjnancjhg component, a^ of
time-^between ..the^se^^^ prpvided^and;,the tlrne' that^heolient'or third;
'party^ payof pays;f6"rJh'e.seWice'Js ^

Rnvat^jGrant Revenue and Cohtributiohs
^Private 'grant \cdhtributrons ;a^^ f.ecoghized/when .'cashv ,securities; ■ or. other
assets,.an;Uncdhditiohal promise togivei or notification of a'beheficial jhterest'is.
receij/ed. .Cpnditionalprom^ are hot recoghized" until the;.Cdnditio .

^Whjch they vdepend hayefbeen subStahtially niet.;.Suppdrt that is restricted/byThe
^dohqr isTeportedl'as eh jricrease in. neVassets'without:don
■resfriptidri.expire^^ p'eripd'lri, which the^suppprt is:recpghJzed. ."All
pthef dohprrrestrte 'reported as 'an iincrease ijh ihetVossei's :wjth <
;;dohpr:re^ oh.the. nature of the testrictioh.' y^
expires; ;(that;isyiwheH:'a:itipulated'time.,rdstrictipn:dnds
'aqcptTiplished^^ withd.9npr'Tqetndipn.S\are,reclass^
'withpuLdprlpr restrictiphs-'and Tepprte ihVlhe^corhbiried staterherits" of'actiViti&.
as;;het;aseets:released !fr^

-f i. ' r' *

Gfahts 'indSubpori ; .
'.Grant, revenueJiS^denved .frof^ agYeeteents -and va
rs,tato^nd;priyateenV^!Rassthr6ugh':gfahfa^
.tendihg^Vupp6rt;..pf thej'pYgahizatipn's/p/pgte
.iPrgarilzatioh .ihcludihg'^ chlldcare',-; child .deye16pnienL :so"ciaiVhealth, ^hutfltiOri,

;agreernehts .against ^appjicable^accpuptjng standard.guidan^^ ^a^^
that'^ the. ^grant-f/agreements, .'ate^ ^,'(ndnreciprdca[ transactjbn)'
cohditiohed'Jupdil; certain berforhiahce. 'Tequi'rehfents.s,ah ' ihcurrerice'^ipf

provisions of thf. grant agreerhents;

•1'4.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11^737-AD40-229444BB15BE

' ̂ NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFlLlATC

NOTES t6 combined financial statements
FOR TrtE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

RefLindabje adyancies resiil.t fropf ynexperided balances^ from these; copditiphar
contributions; dhd,WiiLbp;,sub^equ^^^ recognized ias. cphtVibution reyenueivyheri
•dorig^^conditions " are "met? 'Federal arid ' state'/grant .ireyenue comprised:
approxirriptely -^7% of total .fevenue lri th'e.fiscal years "ehded JUly'iS.I'
'2p23.arid^^022;re^

Ih-Kihd Donhtioris.
'The"^P;gani?.atip"m records ryafipus;types ̂pf .jn\kjnd support including iprofessiPh
' services'^aridfnaterlalsl Contributed professional ̂services .are: recPgnlzed '.if ' the
:Seryice" received creates or'enharic«s ilphg-iw^^ or requires speciaifze'd skill',,
Jire pfpyided by ipdividua possessing thpSe skills, and wPuld/typically need to-be
purchased; ;jf- riPt ,provided' by dpnatipri. Contributions Of tangible ■assetsTare

',rec6gnized^af,fair'value received; Inrkind ifevenues and expenses-^ tlie^
yedr^ arided.duly 31, -2023;arid 2022 are il ;4,06,827 arid $992;i97/,fespectiYely

^i[See:N9te!l2y., ^ .

Investments. . , . , , , , .
The; ;Ofgariizatlpn; carries fjnye.stments lni ma securities ^Wrth jeadjiy.
dyi"eriTiinabJe-fair.vajaesaridlallVinyestrtiehts:in'debt tlx^r.fair.yalues,

■ In trie cpitibiried etaterhents of>finaricial ppsjtipn; .UnfeaJized. gains, a'nd '.ips'ses,
.are iriclud.ed/m in :net assets in th'e^'accornpanyirig :-c^
';stateriie;ritsp^ activibe^^^^^ ' . v . ■ - .k ■

' Property ■'
■ Rrpperty';^acquired-;byithe:^ iSj.'Capita!ized: at cpst. jf purcha
^'alueuf'dpriat^.Jt iS;the to^capitalize expe'riditdfdsif^
jteifisbh-exce^^^^^ Major; additjpnsa dapifa'li^ed
• repairs ;and.i;rtialnteriarice^are "dxpe^ ias.Iricurred:.ibepreclatiPri iIS calculated'
usfng theetfajgh dyer the/eStlmatedpseful jivei'qf jtie "asspts; .whipri,
farigeTrb'm Hhree'tO ifPr^ years,. 'Dep/eciatiori^ e'xperise ior'|he years„^ended July'
31i2b2ierid^0^2;w^^^ ■ '

^rp;pe^purChased;with:grantfunds are
^tbe■iprP'gi^^^^ iweie^'•purchased: 'Pr- iri/^ptfier future^'.authPnzedi
jbrograjes*^ HPWeyeCj'^tfte/variPos-fund
"Jh%:fixed,'assets, pgrcHased/Witb'grantTUri^^^ The :disppsitio'n of property,'-as;w^

es'the'owne.rshipof; any pmcee'ds^

Ad^ert|slriq:; .
■-■The..prganizab promote:. pTppYams'amon
serVesirrhe prbductiofvcps^^^^ adve'rtislri'g'are experised.aslricufred;*.
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SOUTHERN t^EW^AMP^HiRE

:N0TES JO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS^^ND^D JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Income taxes-
^Southern NeW Hampshire;Seivicesrihc. and-S Management CpmoVation

exempt from > F^ederal ■ income,Itaxes under Sectipn 501 (c)(3).::pf.thfe Ihtefnal
Revenue'Code and; are not m they are/ekempt
■income tax oh their ekemptfupi^ib^^^ v ^ .
l=uhctioneLAllocatiori of Expenses
The Organizatioh allocates^its expenses on :a:,functiohar ba^is emong its yanp'us;
programs^, and support services. Expenses that; can';be identified' with aTspecific.
program and ;suppprt services are allocated; directly, according jto their natural
expenditure'cia^^^ ^'Other expenses, .that are Common to .aeveraf furiptiops; .
are\aild:cated. ,by'man^^^^ oh effort. Supporting.-seiyicek afe'..thpse
relatedjto'operatihg arid rhariaging the prgahizatiph and Jtsprogramsph a day-tOT
day ba.sic; Supporting Services have'-beensO ' ' ^

MQn^geMehh^ Includes "all actiyrtieV'.related, to the 'Orgahizjtipriy.
Internal manag'em^ ' ' ' ^

Nevv Accounting Rroriotincement
In ■ iFebruary, .2016", '.tlie' Fin'aiicial^^ccounti'ng :;S Board' (FASB)'.'issued'

-Accounting Standards. Update (AsU). 2QtS-02, -Leases rnCrease ■
.'trahsparCncy'and/cornparabiiity'ainong orgaiilMiohs byre assets,
'and' lease^ liabllities.'on the i statement of ̂ financial pbsltich^ahd' .disclosing: key;,
infp^'rhatJp^■a.66ut■;.^d,asing^:arr^ ;!esseeS,artd' lessors,.: The
applies ,3: right of, use mpdol ;that.Te.qui'res,' -ail .'lePsPs with a lepse t^hivof-rhPre:'-
Jh;an'l2;months,tpirecognizean.ass righf to/usetheund^
assetfOr^theJpase/feim' an^^ paymentS't6;be reTO^^^^
adoption bl-ASU!2O10^ not ,haVe a m.ate^^^^ -'impact on'the Orgarijzatibn'Si
roei'ilfe .'/"tf 'nr»Ck'rorirkrte 'onH -/•aeh j"flrv\'A<e'f 'TThara" ikfiarA' ni-i .morarioi'

'2023, due'tp limltedleases: haying a term greatef than i 2 months:

N0TE^2> RESTRICTED CASH

maintain .separate;/accgunts,.^^^^^^ make. monthly'.deposits- into, certain' 'restncted'
Ceseryee^fbrjffi replacemerrt'Pf m pthe.fexpenditures.: iin ■;additipn,'-the
-■iOrganizaliorv; .isVre tO'^malrjtain, .sepafbte^.accb.unts '^for'-- 'tbn'ant, security/.
:depbsits\ahd,- ahy'surpius cash vtha^^ m'ayTesuit'lfrbrii anhuaT-'operatibhs-'Th^ese"
..j-.f-.. —ir' .'h. \ -X. '•i-is.'i ■ ' i k"'-" ~ •'-•"li • . '.if-

funds'ca.ri occur;.
j

•iig. i



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F1M737-AP40-229444BB15BE

southern; NEW.HAMP^^^

NOTES TO COMBiNED FINANCIAL STATEMENfS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 3. iFAIR VALUE IVIEASUREMENr

The! vframewprk .foT m'eaVuring./fair va fair, .\/alue'hierarchy/
.;phoritizes;the inputs 'torvaiuatipn, te to measure fair valuer "ffie'
Ihier^rchy gly^s'the ,highest;^ 'to unadjusted quoted phces ja a^iye'markets •
■forjdehtlcal;assefs;or li^^ (Lev^el 1; measurertiehts) and,the lloWest ,priority/to
^hobseryable jnputs '(l^eyel: 3 iffieasurements); Valuation techniques, maxirtiize the, •
Use of/elevaht'observa minimize the.u^e of unobseivable, inputs. ■'

-  . .p
.f -The.;three;levels:q.f the -fajr value hierarchy under Financial-Accounting Standards

Board lAccountingrStandards-'Gpdificattbn 820, Fair Value. Measurements; are
"described as

.Level i: 'ihpuTs,td"the';.valuatidh methodology are uhadjustedcqUoted prices;:.for
identi^l assets;pLliabjlitiesYn active markets thattthe brganization"has the ability.

jtpaccess.atthe^m^^ . V '
J_>Ver2;4hpute'othef"thahqubted. pncesXncj.uded.,Wtthih%eVei I that are
Tfbr the .asset drliabijity, either dir^^^^ ^

■^.•■ Qupled pqces fprsimj)ar:as$ets:pr liabilltieSiiri ac^^^^^

Qudted'pficesTor identical or aimifariassets pr\'liabllities';1n.'ihaj:tiye'
^markets: - • ■

•• Inputs otherLhan ;qu6ted pbsefvable^fbr theasset 6;

■> lhpu)s.:'t]iat: .'are .derived pfincipally-rfrom dr .corroborated, :by,
■■ pbsehiiable^-marketdataiby correlat^^^ ^

ff Jhe:a.$!setdfJjabi|ity,has;a;spePified^'{epntractual)"-teitfi,.'-theL^el-2
.pbseryable/or.eubstantially.theTull.term.pfth^^^ '

►  ̂ ^ ^ • ' ' • - - •

leye|'3;iJnputs''thatare,uhobs>n/able;for-thdass
-8. ; " » . . - - X ^ Jf, ^ K
'The Jqlipwing is-a' description -of the. yaiuatipn.-- meth.odolpgles^ used ̂  for•^assete -
trieasufed 'ai:;fair ;vajue.' There • have -.been'^hb' changes. iri-the methodblbgieS'used
^t July;3J,:2p23:^^^ ^ ' ^ ^ ^ v; . ;

MuiudlPund^^^ the net .a'sset-yalue rpf;a,hares,:heid 6h4he
.: last'tradingdayibfthe,'flscal yeari, which 'is the-basisTof,tfahsactiohs '
^ at'thatclate::; ' .

The.vfbljowihgNtab^ fprth 'b/ le'yei; .withlnijthe.-- fa'ir\Value i;Kferafchy,.^}itW
.Grpanizatjoh's'assetea^^^^ " '
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SOUTHERN I^EWThAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.

' NOTES TO C'OIVIBrNED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
> FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

irdtal mutuai ifCJ.hds
at fair value

Total rnjjtual funds
at fair value

2023

Level t level 2 LeVel 3

Level 1

$ 9.696.836 .

2022

Level 2 Level 3

Total

, .t_ 4..>

^ 1

Total

i :£ ■ 9:696-636

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

tteOrganiizatidrt's investmenis; are presented In the^.'fihanciar staternent^^^
a^g^gateiktTair valud and consisted oKtte follow

MutualF^undSi

2023

Market-
Value. ̂

S^1Q:q'89.91B,,:

2022

Cost.

Markei
Valuei Cost

m ̂ 9:696fi336:^-^ i

the 'Ofganizatioh 'had.. uhVeailzed. l6ssesv,on ihvesthiehb.'jof
:$.lt01;886/atjulyf3tv^^^^^ v - -

;the;- activities, of 'th;^ ■ Organizatipp's >ihvestm ^account, arei 'spffirhariked
[fpllows-:-,' " . ■ - ■

2023

F.airvarue:^ b.egifi.oing"'pf^year-

2022

' -$;. SiSge.SSe ■ !;.$ -l P,-396;71^6 ■'
'  *

" iDlylciepdXand .cap^
''OriVeallzed'ioss'' -

Fairval&e/-;ehd;pf;ye

^ r. r *

■453;2i2-
- Y60:i30f . :(il01t886)

isi
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES/^W

'NOTES Id COMBINED.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOR THBYEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023'AND 2022.

NOTE 5.'
I  -*»-?-

the Organization^ for;expenditure,^that is/wilhpu donor'
Johother-restrictionslimiiihgMheir'u one y.ear of the,statement of ,financial
"p6sitipn:date cjDrhpriseithefpjIow " '

,2023 ; 2022

Cash'
Investrrients..
Gfahts receivable.
Accbunts: receivable

'$i0;382,755' $11.441:623"
•ib.089.918 9.696;836.
4,657,94.5 • ;4,458.963
T.075.b83v <949.9d2-

Total fihan.cjAl A^s^ts. ayajlab one year .$26.205:706 • '$^6.547:324 •

^^tiibne :ofThe financial;' assets are subject to 'dbnof of other contfactuai. restrictiohs.
;AcGprdihglyV alj "s.u^ are eya.ilableTp.meet the needs pTthe Organization in ■
The next^2 rTiphths?jri additipo,jthe Or§ahizatioh.maintains'several;reserve fu
for prpper^^fa)<esv'j^Su^^^ expenses, end repair and Yeplacement of pmefgency,
"needs .which^afeTequifed by financing'authWties, These funds rifiay be v/ithdrawn
•on|y/with The .eppfpval '"of the financing authprity-and a/e not corisidered by^the
Prgahjzatipetphave'd "

The ;Ofganiza^^^^^ manages; its ;iiguidity.<by developihg .erid adopting: afihual .
.pperating budgets that .proyjde. sufficient funds for general expenditures in; rnee^^^ i
'its liabilities :and;pther obligations'aVthe^ " " ' '' / "

notes' LONd term DEBT\

the Ipfi§;temifde6t'at'^uly 31 , ;2Q23 ahd 2^

.  / . . ■ 2023 > :2622-
"SNHS-.dhc.- . .

.^^ jytprtgige payablefo.banK, secured ̂by^real -estate ■
fbcated>^Ch^"jei^ple.-; St/,. NashuaV

""TriphthiyJnM.aijhiehts'pf'i^.tS^i^^
^2'030.-.'.:lpteYest 'is: at- 4;0d°/o-,'af*"; July, 31;. '2023 ■ and'
5022: ' ■" 16^6.5^' vf ;^82i63?\'
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SOUTHERN NEW HAiViPSHiRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO "COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:FOR The years ended JULV 31. 2023 AND 2022

'2023: 2022

rSNHS'Manaqement'Corporation

Mortgage ̂payable Gity of, Manchester, s^^cured.
by real estateiocated'in Ma NM, A baliobn-
paynient of' $1 on June 30, ; 2010;

llrtterbsV 'iis ' at, 0 06?o., SNHS, ind.. currently
^egptia'tirig twith the Gi^. Of Mancheste^^ . ;
Tprgiyeness: - - -- -- - 1,1,275" ■1.1^275'

■Mortgage payab[e itp iNew- Harhpdhire Housing;,
secured iby real 'es^ located;ph Pleasant 'St,,

.Epping;, iNH,^;payab|e in.■•rTionthly' 'installments-'of
|l,084. jhcludirigjinterest througH 2042! Interest is

:at'3.50%f ■ ' ^ ■174,866 l6ii569,

Mprtgage^payabie.^ Gity'pf-NaShua secured by,
'iaa! ;e$.tate jbcated! on, yinV St-, ;Nashua,''NH.
.IMbrtgagel.wJII'be.*^^^ bhTy^ifTe■al'esta.teT

Ipwc-incdme ' housing Cfpr '30i ■ years. ■ Jhterest!' is-at ■
0!6b%\ .annually; if jfequire^^^

-bafrier was jrhet -dufing tfie'year-; ended ^juiy-iSi;
;,2023':'a.hd/the mphgage.:vyas fprgl^^ fult and ,
re.cog"hi2edjntdjn^^^^ - ^ .;26,66p

^Mortgage'payable* tp,:New;Ha.m
fLqah ;Fuhd secured "Estate Ipcatbd brj,- Vine f
ISt' iN'ashua;/'NH.;MPrtgageJwiil ibe^forgiven only ijf l
feal/e^tate ifPfhaip.s/Jlpw-rhb^^ for ;36}f

;yearS:: Interest' tjs t at ■1p^.0_d%," fahhually ""If
'fepuirernehts ,afej:nbP^ Th|sr b'afrler -was. met '
Jd.ud.rtg/lHe- .yeab ended' 'July - pyi, ■2'02'3: .arid' the^
^odgage/was-fpfgly^^ jVecpgnized' into _ ^
|nebma;(Sea;N'p^^ " ' v ■ ;25p;QQ6.

,Mbrtgb|e,^ payable ;{6 i.b'ahk^ Secured 'by ;fe:a|, estate;
\A/^'of Doori bi ; Klo^l^i'io' 'M LJ ' I AA ,

-=Thib'b'arfibr^y^as'met)ilurinb;thV^
;io"23iand:;thb;^mp?fgage\was .tbrgi^^^ 'in ,full ancl!
recognized iintpm^^ dTQ'.OOb

20 i
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. IN6. AND AFFILIATE^

,l^bTES tO COMBirJEb FINANCIAL STAtEMENT^^
FOR tHE YEARS ENDED JULy 31. 2023 AND 2022

.2023 2022

."Mortgage ■ pfyabll to IMH Parsons; and Sons
.E;unr»^er,,'sec^ real estate Iom on' Ciystal
-Aye'..VPerry,; NH; payable'jn /nopthiy'installs of -
$3;715 indluding: iriteiast tthrough 2p31: Interest is-
|it-5.5P%- -. - ' ■^?5,4i?3. 42^93
Julortgage \payabte ,t6 !.New Manci'pshtre Housing
secured by ;real e |oMfed.1p peerfiel^

iriterest through 2d33/Tn is at.7,p0%. ;289,789 ■•30S,698

Mortgage' payable "to 'New, . Hampshire ;H6using
rsecured by Teaf^estate;.^^^
JibnualjprindpalTepsyn^entSjebual to25%^^
Surplus; du%thr6ugh4p32 '392^925-

.l\^prtgage payable'.fo Newi HaVpsbire ^Housing
'seCured-b'y real ekate locatedlin .Deertield, NH with
iinhualiprincipai :repayment^^^^
sQrpius due through:2032;.jnterest'is at;0.00%. 50.000 - 150:000
' " :i^;'476,827' l!989;449.
L^si.qufrentjportiphdu^^ , . 87.5971 - „-j83.656.

MS 1.389:230: :$ 1v9Q5.793'v

The bbhedule. of»7tiaturibes' bfjong .terrn debt at uuly.31 i'*2023: is asTolloWslJ

^Year-Ending,.
I'July 31 % Amount/

.^024/ 87,597'
^'2025: - 8tf,4;9lM
.;2026- •84;89V
:2027: "sdibe^'

- 4028 -J94,4^ t
Thereaftef^» . 1:039 .>778'

:S4>478.82'7-'^

21;
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES to COMBINED FINANCiAL stATEliflENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7. OPERAtlNG.LEASES!

Jhe COrgahizatibn Ibases vvanous facilities;, under severa^^ operating lease's;" Tb'tal
. lease' paVmerits .for: the ybafs;ended'July 31 ̂.2023 and' 2022 equaled >-'$923,323
ari8/$8M;"0.53. .reapeetively; The leases expire :at 'vario.us tlpies thrpugh ;2025.^
'Sdriie; of the/leases fcpntaih renewal options that are contihgerit iUppV federal,
.funding,./artd^sPme bp^^ renewal' pptions'^ subject to rehegptiatip^^ of lease
i terhTS. Annual leases with the .'drgahizatiph for the y ended July ;31^2b23 and
^2022>t6taled. $22.9i188 and. $221,737,^ respectiyely,. These leases have been'
•eliminated in the cprnbihed^financial ■ v - • •

""the; Schedule pf- -future minimum jease payments at July, 3'1,f :2j[)23''^for/the
operating (leaseSis as fbllpws:'. ^

Year Ending
j^Jtily 31 '

^2024

total

.'Amount

•=$i 78-16T

•^2.524

NOTE S/ ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

AtvJuiy ■3t,','202'3".anb^ Grganizatipri:accruedfaJJab!lity/^q^^
^jedve- tiibe ^that jts^'-ehiproyees^had' amount'*pf',$42.1,7.06/,and,
';$4b7;125,^respectjyery.- Any hpurs^ by fhb pnd of the calehdat year afe •
rforfeited • ■' - ' *

NOTE 9; ^RETIREMENT BENEFITS

'the iOrganizabdh hasahiEm^^^ 403(b) pian^pffering .cpvefage td^^
■of.-its\emplpye,est^ i^articipating~'e'mplpyees.mustrCp
'wages: while.fthe, 'OTgahization'-cbntHbute's -:i.6.% '.df thelrvwa'ges-. ̂  The r-retiremerit;
{benefif-expense fbij'-thevyeais* en^^ p"2023.and'2022-^a's and; -
;$.99,8;675,vrespectiyely^^ ■ ' "" ' ■ . * * ■ ' "

■  \

'NQTE JIQ. .FORGIVENESS OF DEBT '

DUHng/theVbshbnd^ 2023,.the'Organization'realiize^
fdebf jnco'me jn-conhectiph^with three'hipdgage^paVabled^^
-the real I estate, located in NashuaV'New'.Harripshire rerhained.asilow4ncortie

i22:
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s6uTHERN:NEW;HAMPSH]RE SERVICESsiNC. and'AFFILIATE"

;NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE'YEARS ended JULY 31. 2023 and 2022

During ithe'year ended/Ju^^^^ the Of^ahizatiph realjzed jfpfglveness 'of'
;debt Ihcbrhe- in''conhection',with a"mortgage;payable'to, Jhe* Cjty',df Nashua. Ttie
, real estate Ipcated'dn:Virie. St. In Nashua. New Hampshire remairied ias: .Ipw-
'incbme housingfofSOyears which satisfied.theycri^^ fordebtJo'rglveness,frorn
'the'Gity of Nashua j-Forgivehess of "debt income totaled $900;000 .fordhe''yearv
ended J.ulyi31 ;/2022-pn th'e accpmpanying cprtibihed stajenieritpf.activities:

iNPTEH; RiSKSlAND^UNCERTA^ •

Cotton Mill Sqiiafa.
In ,2015.'SNHS; Management Corppratibn entered into a.pontract as part pf the;
:.Cpt;hrnunity, Developrnent ilhvestment^Tax-Credit Program with'the Cbrhm
Deyeloprtieht Finahce Authority (CDFA) and'Was awarded .$1,000.000 to provide: -
Tuhdihg 'fdrfhe deyel^^^ and .adaptive leuse'-of ahpabanddned-his^^^ cotton
"fnill Vln'-downtown iNashua.vNew 'MampsH pr"ograrn,*'thef;Project-
' (Gottdh- Mill iSduare) icrdatdd 109 units; of housing rand was ;required. tp"!r.eiefye l55.'
'of these'Oniti.fprJpwifemP^ ^ .

^Al: stipulated-by .thp^c^ and.aftera :20?/o :pfdgran1.fed retained by'thP:'O.DF^^
iMahagement}'C6rppratlon enfered"^^^^^^ with thpU

'"oWners^of,,the :l?fdjdct'(Cotton- MH^ provide a pfprriissdry-note ah '
;mopgage oTthe/remainJng.awar^^^ amount of $80.0;O0d."The;^ yeaf.notelo.cdttbn *
,fyijli Square LLQ: isTr\pn^iritere^t bearing and the-prinPipal is forgiyable at .a ratp .of "'^
5%.each yeaKiftfe^^ (Maintains the. r^uired minirfiurn of 55 Ibwfo.rnpderate.
l.ncohie'hp.useh6Jd.Ohi^ . '

the epttop Mlif .Square Project was,t awarded.ithe;ce)tifica.te ;^^
A,ugust;22,t2pt4'and;Te in fuil.'corh'pliahce wjth the fequifed regOlahdhs;a.s.,6f
Juiy; 3 it2p23^and'2d22 !;-S N H S'':rv(ahag^^^^
jj,nlikeiytthP(4h>;iPrpjecrwjlj'ifall'int6:hdncgfnp ;Therefdfe,y
'RKllbci, MahahAmianf T'^hrnnrftti . nnt' rjabnrripH. flnv' nnhtlnnp»nt reOeiVablG.'or *

fall out of.GQmpliahce>

!rn[Oct6b'er.pt26l7,4he;subrecip|ent 'agfe.ennehiwjth Goto
'arhehdeddotbease^^^ ddbf ■forgtyenesd.'Thismpdifi'cbtid
KoidV'thb piomlssot;y;OPte\ba|ah^ nOyvjDetprgiyen
the;.ehd of ithe ̂ agreement astlbhg; as ithe. Pf.oject maintalnSVcOmpliah ^With ithbu.

■  T^ls d^.pdification did' -not .chahg^the; 'cbntlhgeht
,feoeiyafe(4:9rt!abi(tty;.With:SN.H ■" -

Ndtkijf lN-klNbb'QNfRiBiUtlbNS/S
Th^'ibrganlzatlg^^^^ :rp6dfds/Jthe ^\^|ue, .Of - jh-kind cpritiibutipns, ■ acdbrding; 1ta.-!the.
-dccpuntirig'p:plibies-de^^^

23
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>NOtES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IFOR THE Y^RS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The,|aif,i/alJe; pf :gifts jh kind iriclud^d cphiribtjtions. in-the financiaj jitatements and
the corresponding' the yea/: ended Uuly 3.1. ■2b23.arid'2022/ is
as\follbws;. ■ *'- - • ' • -

.  2023 2022^
/.Vbldnteen hours , .

HeadiStart and Early - $1r:^66i827- $992:197 •
Head sW ' v

'NOTE'13. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassificatipns' Have been made to jhe prior Jrear's firfancial.sktemehts,
'Whicfi .were taReh 'frarti the juiy '31, 2023 finariqial statements,; to conform /o, the ■
cJrtent year presentaiti(^^ * '

NbtE14; SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ManagemehT'Has'^iniade/'anlevaluatrorirbf-.subsequent .I'l,
Jb24^^which"^ repi'esents :the -date on .which-the combined financial'statements
were;ayai|abfe-tp':be Issued .and'.determjhed'that.any^subsequent events fhaf
would require/repbgnitibri pr.'d have'b'een.consideWd jn the preparation.
:bfthese:combined.fihanciafstatements.

■24
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE
'Schc^uh A-

CUfWENT ASSETS

^.Cash 'l.'J"''-,.
inve'stments
Grants roceivabter
Accounts receivaUe

■ iPrepaiciy^v^es "
,'Pue_^fr6rn relate partiw

Toi^ current assets -

PROPERTY

'iana' ,
'Building's ai^ ifnp'rovemartts
'.yehides and.^uifment»
'Total property^ •"

iLess:;acc^muiat^ depredallqn

Total properly, net! '

.OTHER ASSETS".
■  ■'RBSt(!cted rash .•

TbTALASSCTS,.

'CURR^T UABIUTIES.
-»■ .(^rfenl'portion of lor>g'te;fTti dabl-

Acraiinls'payable*. . ^ "
^Accryed payroll end related expenses'
■^'Accrued compensated.absences,v
iOUietilabllltles'' . " " '
Refijndabie advances ■
Te.n8frtsecurily'deppsU8 <

tdirc'iat^ plftipb
-> V
•TolaicUm <68 >

•'NpNCURRENtUABlLm^ J
Long terni dabi'less current p.prUpn shown above

ffolal liabilltlra:

'.NET^SETS^^^
\\iMthput donor resliiClJo.nai.

fTOTAl'LlABILltlES'ANb NET ASSETSvi

COMBINING SCHEDULE bF.PINANCl<^ POSITION
^  .^MLY 31/2023'-

I'nc: ,
.. SNHS'

' Managetpertt«
'Corooratlon "SubiTotal • "Elimlnatldh. 'TdteJ

ASSETS,

•$ '-1.261 ;357

4,613,855.

;2S1'467
•5:288.049'-

ij ,'■0,121,398^
10.089,918

■  . ■ 44,090'
.i;075.b88-
'■•'60,576

yf2.672.032)

5.! 16.362.755
'10.089.918
'4;657.945
1;075.688
'311.983.'

2.616.017

%

-.'f2'.616.6l7)', '

■j;i6.3'82/755
^.10.089,018

•14.857,945
1;67S.688

.<31.1.983

-11.414.^3 17.719.638^ 20.133'.766. ^26.517.689

•646^805'
■S969.256

'•1.498.975-;

:  's.aiSTeS".
10,655.211'
-:249,592 •

4'f060:574
'14.624.467

1.748.567

.4;060;57V
141624.487.

• ' 1748:567
" "6.115,036

' 8 we
' -'14,318.572

'a
29.433.608-

*-
120,433,606

-Jl:949i023 4.443:277' .  •'e.392.57'9 •61391^9

4.165.734 •■9.87S296 14.041.629 ji -?4-.641.629

.  ;3d;781 .469.989* •56o';770' -•5(k).77d'

•$: ;T5,611.183 S 26.064,322 -43.675.505-
V  's

..
■  '

<UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS L

$ - 19.966 67.63t .$■ .87.597 ••87:597'
'  :1;'892;132 ' ■ ' 1161.575 - ■" ;2.653.707- . ■  •2'.053.707'

280.588' <T.e7i;999. 1,952.587. - .1.952,58'7*
=^.421.706 '.421.706 '  i. '421.766-

,212.307- 22.745 .235'.b52 '235.052'
1.694^548 515.072^ -•2i269.618 >  / ■ 2.269',6i8i

•■;29,'459 52.548' . 82.007.- V ' '82.007'^
2.672,032.; .•■<56.015)"' •  :2,'6l6.dl7- ,  f2.S16'oi7) J  -K.

A

' •,6.801,030. ,2.857.261 • ■ ?;65B;29.1
!» ' 5-

;(%6t6,Si7): ►  7.042.274.

-•142.649' - 1.2"48.'581. -V.38'9.235 •l':389".23d^
"  » t . -

•.6.943.§7fl 4.l03,M2. Ml,047,521
••

f2,616,0J.7): -  -;8,431.504.
%  -r*

•. ."8.667.504' ■•23.98b.480: '3i627.fi84'' ■ 3l62'7.984
.  -<4 ... ,• •: •4. ^ ' *■. t'.

•.$:M5.61i:i83. :$ 28.064.322. S r43.675;505 f,$-<2i616.017)' -S 41.059.488

:25- •
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'Sch9duleB

■ SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICESJlNC. AND yFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTTViTlis
■ 'FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2023

/'revenues.;GAINSi;ANbbTHER,SUPPbfn*
Grarirr^hue., " ' ' •' • .

" Preiram servja fees
.Local ̂ hdlng'
•/Rental tta^, ̂ ^
./Gifts arid other.Mnlributloni-

<  arKf dMdenti incofne'^
''.Uiiti^llz^ loM on investments'.

'! Mjscella/^^i' i ̂ '
Forgivehewof.debl^

'/Gain m dlispdSel.of ̂ operty;
"inrkind cphtri^fi^s

' Total revenues; galnis'.a;^ other support.

"EXPENSES'^
' i Prognm services

''Child deyetopmeht^
'Co^ufiityservlces . ,
Ewn^teertiwprk^ '
•En^gy^ ■ ^ -

' '(t/angiiage and ijte'raicy,:
I'Hpusing and hprhejessi '
Nutrition and health' '

'S^al prpl^s^ ̂
'yoluhta'er seiyldes ... . .
^SfyHS.tohagefT^l Corporal!^

Nl^otai pm^mnvse^c^

' Supporting a^itlet.
' • (^ansg^ent ̂'gen^rS.

«4

toOie^r^fc

' vCHANGe fN NET ASSETS;

i '.NET ASSCT5, BEGINNING pF"yE^..

♦' NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR'

.  SNHS
Management'

:SNHS.Inc; /Qgippr^tlpn Sub-Total Elirhlnatlbri iT^i

I .110*665.84^ 8' ' . ,8 .110.685.^/ - s 8 ji 10,685,m
.  ';275.039\ ^ 768,363 -1.041,432' .(237,101) .,:804,33r

162.419 <192.419 .. -162.4.19'
.  . ■- 1,383.417' 1,363,417 '(229.166) 1.134,229-

• 266.926 -•20.047 266.973« ..... .^286,973'
•  620 462,470 463,090' - ' 463.090\

(60.130) . ^(60;i30)- - ■^(60.130)
124.603"/ '35.431 .160,034' - '160,034'
'  . .i- -440.000' •440,000/ - <440,000

.478.800 ' 4fl5.10"9. .495,109 .
1,406.827 1.406.827- ,  - -'1.406.827 "

,112.758.160 •3;698:8S5 116.458".0V5 .  '(466.2891 • .115.988J28-
•

-10.474.721
410,060

'5.588,497
21,113.'876'

'292,240-
•65.357,221 •
'2.262.-193-
.lo'70.78b

135,270. •
V;740;657"

10.474.721
1.416,060

, ; 6.586.497 :
•2f.113;87,6 j
■- -292,240.
*65,357/221'

; 2,262/193 •
2,070,780
' 135.270'

2.740.057'

■:(130,671)
,{37i68i)
.'(id,130)''
.(58.3.l6)"t

':(74,792)
'.(24.723)'
1(55.430),
.;(39.280)

. • 15,617)
((14.021)-

•16,344.6s'6'.
■1.380.399/*■

: "6,576.367-
r<2r.055,5e6

-  ;217.4^I'
^s6l332,498 .

, 2.2()6J63
'.2,631,500"
/.j119,653V

.-■2.726.038 "

108.?1'6.8S8 ''2,740.057 111:450/915'
i-

: (460,641) • iYo;e96/274.

_. 2.084.225 .  2.084.225" '(5.6481

i

"2.078.677.

..110.795.083 2.740.057 • '"113.535.140'.' -:_:'(468.28flV ,.'_/l13/068,85k-

■ 1-981.077 ■•95^*798 ■ -T .2,919.875. i2.910.875.

*/29;708!i09'..- v.6.706;427. :23.6oi.682'" /  29.768,109 ■>.

8 '• 8.687.504' .8' "23.660.480 .8 ^->32,627.1984/' JI  ̂1 i',3'2.627.6&4
.. ....

26'
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WHISPeRINgPINESII . .
^FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HQUStNG ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS
... 7PRQJECTNO..A199991-O46r ^ "

•«* «

- .St^TEMENTS.OF. FiNANCiAL POSITION
JULY 31.t202lAND 2022

ASSCTS

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid e)^en^s

Total ciJiTehi,'assets^>

:2023

$: ^18,114;,.
.  ' 9:492. ■

'27.606

2022'

^61249
-6:648'

— :22.897:f

^RESTRICTED CASH,
' j'nsufehce'BSCrpW

Tax/escrow'"^ "
tReplacemeri! reserves
pperatl rig reserve

Xqtirrestricted.Msh

PROPERTY
Land.. . . . -
iBuitdlngsahd Imprpvem^^

*

Total pr'opertf

' Less ;accurnuiated Idep'reclation

i pVbperty'. lieL

tptUER'ASS^S',
Tenarit'^unty deposits

'itOtAL'ASSETS'

•ii074:
-4.767
' 42.339.
*55,427.

103,607

.166,600.
598.178-'

•764,778

MM,
/653.966'-

^'i3;504-

-3il2b'
r4,959;'
27;778
;79.495

;T15.352/

\166.600
/598.178

:9'3;216:-

■■67i.562'

'14:643

'824.4S4'

'LIABILITIES AND NET'ASSETS
'C.URRENX LIABILITIES;^^ '

' " Current; pprtfoKpif rnbrtgage
,Ac^urits';payablVv^
. Accrued Expenses.

, Total wrfent liabilities. •

LongTERM LiABjt!^.p.s. .
^ .[pye tqaffiliate:-' . • -

' Mortgage note payable,- iKsrcunent p ai shQym,abp,ve
TenanisecUntyd^

tplal.ldng term'ilabiHties^

itqialllabiiltie^
'NET A^ETS.WlTHOUTDONOR RESffi^^

— ^ V

iIJOTAL^LIABIUTIES AND. NET'ASSETS

hi.i -'7;0i6,jn
' 4.364 •

' 328

»:$t s'6i769'<
•'5.448'

-  I'VAQ

.  ..-AyiOly, .. ~T2;266:'

.47.697 •
•'167,790

13.504'

.  -'228.'99t.

.;24p.693."

.... . .557;99b"".

■'29.575'
i174.80b

-  :T4'.643 .

^219:018. .

'23.1;2£i4.:»
.-.'593:170.;'

798.683;. J' i - ■824:454.

it
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- . ./WrilSPeRINSPINESn

- ̂-(PROJECT NO;a199991:046^

. - . STATEMENtS'OF ACTIVITIES. . ,

• FORTHE YEARS ENDED JULY.31.2023 AND 2022

•2021^ :2022!

INCOME -

i.

''Rental iricbme 171,-902, .$:» '4.7^309^
•iht'eresrincome ; <8 •  \h'
Interest Income restricted ';2.537' ' .172>
pih'ef ipqpfne""' ; " " ' 3.680 : ̂'5,400

' Tptij iriconie" 'i7e:-i27* '180.8^.

OPEF^tiNG E)tPENSES^ ,

' Administrative'- 43,135 ■ >39,45t-
iLitilities ■ ^*42.357." 745,744-
Mairitehahce 74,601 < •62,802'
;Gerieral ] -■29.371. .'26i246.

Total operating ek^ .18M64' -  ■i74i243

INTEREST Ew£nSE • " .  ;S.247' '

i^jCQME iLOSS) BEF.O.RE DEPRECIAtI^ ■'fl7,5W),' ' -'176
J'

' Depreciation
T—

-  17.596 . -- 7:494.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ^ .•(3.5480);» (17,324)'.

NETASSETSj-BEGINNJNG OFjY^
-H-

. ■ :593.ib' ' .610.494-

NEt'ASSEtS, END QF Y^R -^ :$■ ^ -  t'557:990 ■$': ■ -"593;'170:'-

2«
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,  WHISPERING PINES II
'/FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR-HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPV

fPRgJECTNO.A199991.04fil

SCHEbULES'OF RENTAL bPERAtiONS EXPENSES.
V FOR THE YEARS ENDED July 31.2023 AND 2021

AbMiNiStRAtiVi 'EXPENSES.
i Management.fee'
: Salaries'arid wages ■'
' Fringe.tenefits

. Inyestnierit and .management fee
Telephone • - .

;pthec,adi^1nist^^^^^

'Total administrative expenses,

.utiutjEs:
* • Electricity i
•iFuel.

' '.Waterand'sewer.*
'pthei^ulillty.expens

'T btai ,utlli_tyjexp,enses^

^MAINTENANCE^
* Trash femovi,
* :;Sridw.Ternpyal. . . ^
. '.Elevato/irepalrs .arid contract"
PustpdiaT'siipplief' ' '''
' '||Repa.irs;matenate
^RepalrC cdrilract,

Totaji?haihtehanCe'';^^^^

iNTERESt, NH.H MORtGAGE:N »
/'■si- . s ' -a 'v • ■ •

.pjERRE&AtiO'N

'"R^reatatelaxe^^^
'^ipiyrpiKtaxes'
'.Retirement b'eriejits^ ^
'.Workriian's cdmpens

•j Insurance.'- -
* li* '. * • ,

M"d|al;'9^rieraj:,expense.

TOTAl RENTAL.fepERATlbNS'EXPENSES'-

2023 ^022^

$; H4,46() "i •  i4.4do
.11,803 .6 . 816 f
^^.376. •2.0:43
.4-.443- -,.3:97,1

N  ■ . .399.
>0, i4U '
.1,6'87/

.  {•8.714; '  : •4.414 '

43.13*^ :39.451

17,2f6' -17.0^6 ^
'12'.2l8' 'T5.57'9
'12:913 -il".636;

_ . . ■ ..t;479 '

.  .__42.357 _' 4'5.744'

":2,512- ' 2,533
M6;214' -12;498>

.r3.482 ■3,756 V
'i15> : 295^

'44;68D' ':.35.522
.  - -^698 . 8,200-

.  . . '74'601' ■  • 62,802^

-  ■6.247-
•>

.  _.L''6.479:'
.  "V*," ' •" <

--niV.'sgB'; .  ,7?,7.494

.i0;392"
..902 '515 ^

i.orV '  •'•50 •
^,553' . ',351

-  6;450 ..;-'5-682.

; 29:371] -;-26.246

li* '213^36^ ■- ':i98.2'16 -

*29'
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.  . • . . . WHISPERING PINES IC .... _
rPORMERLY: EPPtNG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES UMITED PARTNERSHIPS

•  " - fPROJECTNQ.A199991^6y.

'icHioULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENtS
iFOR THE YEARS'ENDED JULY 31. 2023'AND 2022

^SOURCES .0/FUNDS:
'Rerife! bperations •'

INCOWE.v ■

' Tenant paid rent
• HAP rent subsidy.

'Jotarrentdi reMipis;;

I 'lnler%st:lncbme'
' Servlce lnMnie •

^01her Income

'Tbtal.renlal operailons receipts..

'EXPENSI^''. ̂
,  '. Adrninistrative-v

^;;U(ilides
' Maintenance'
•!6enefal.'

Total rental'b^mtlons disbursernentS'

CASH PROViOEb BYr^USED IN) RENTALOPEFMTIO'NS BEFO'RE-
"  *.AMOJ^TtZATiON

■AMOOTIZaViON of MORTGAGE.
.  '• * " a ~ .

. CASH USED IN .RENtAL;pRER>\TlpNS AF^R DEBt SERVICE'

V,6fHER SsBURSEiyiiNTS
•".'Net recelpls\(payments)-frbm managem^

Net withdrawals'(be^j»slU)'Jr0mi^8yrv^^
•>Wfchase,of property'

'.NEJ.INCREASE/rDEC.H
fjCASH, BEQINNIN^^ 0^

«  IV* ..-tC

'cash, END

'$

2023"

157,554'
-*14.348:

-.5-

•2022

•■157,675
*17.7?4-

•1:71.902;;

:2.345 -
- 1:335 ?

'176,309'

■ Tal-
;2;635
•2.765

/176;127

•43,213
•  '43;42'6;'
.•.7i259v-

• 32;2i'5-
' /8:247 ^

_..'180.892

'39,008
41'.718

^63.138'*
»25.53'9
':-6.479'

•199.360; •■175.882'

■(2;1;233) ,

-(^769). .

'5.010;

~(8,M7j

.{28,002);

rt 8,l22^
-■ii;745

^•Ii5?7)

'(6.128)
- 46.070)

•.1.865;

v16.249'.

-S.: >rt18.'114'.

*
'.mr!—^ '

•36.530;-

<'$v,~.>-li-249:

:30-
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WHISPERIN6 PINSSII-.. . .
^FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS .

■  fPROJECTNO.A19999;[.0-^^

S.CHEbULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS ̂
i FOR^THE VeARS ended JULY 31/2023 and 26^

^  • Deposits Withdrawals.
DESCRiPTlbN OF^FUND:: . - .

.  Balance Balance

Beginning of Funding of. interest lEnd of'
Restricted Accounts: ' Year' Reserves iEarned' Expenditures Year'

. S- J - ■ h • ' -

For the Ywr Ended-JuW 3lV2023

Operaling,reserve. ;$ .79,495 % -- $. 1,523 :$ ■(25,591)^ ;$ ;55;427

' . InsUrance'escrbw; .3,120: , 6.204 114, ;(8.36^) -1,974 ■

Tax.escr.oW, ■4:£I59, 20.527 139i ;{20.858). '4.767

''RepiacemiBnt^^res^^ ■
i  - « - ^ A.

TOTAL RESTRICTED dASH
: RESERVES AND feSCROWS.

27,778- :.13;86b .•■76l.. - ;  . .m1339

;$ -■ 116:352: ■$ -:40:531 S .2.537- - if>4 813^ ;s loi'eof

FbMhe:Vear;Ended Julv 31;-i022'

' 'Operating reserve i ■$" :79.375 :$
--

•122 '% 4  ■79;495;

.tllnsur'ance escraW.^  j t.- . * ■
-6.443 ■ ■5' ;(6;239V >3;,,120'

'Tax escrow.' V5V228^ .i9;oio • '9 ;(19,288); ■.'4,&59.;

I'lRepiacenhent^ fesen/'e. -  ■*2ii712" . .. --■1'1i850- --- -36: --J(5;820) .v27,778'
. • . . » • .a

' TOTAL'RESTRICTEd CASH r
. i RESERVES AND ESCROWS ■i"■i09;224^;5' 3^03. S ■^172- s;-

•  *

ife352

'■31
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WHISPERING PINES li

YFORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

■YPROJECT NO.-Al 99991:046V

SCHEpULES OF SURPLUS CASH
FbR THE.YEARS ENDED JULY 31.'2023 AND 20^

Net loss'

■Add:
''pepreciatidfi:

'Deduct:-

Interest [ncomeTrpmVeservC
•Required prtncipal payrpents

• •Required paymentsto.yeplaoeW

■ Add other NHMFAaoDroved items:

'Ihvesbr.se'ivicds'fee ■

;;C^h deficit

-2023

■(35,180)

1 ;7.'596,

:(2f537);
(6,769)

(13.kod)"

!2d22:

■$i \{^74W,

''17i'494' '

(6.537)-
•{j-1.8505,

^ .-.'e.iid ■

•$:- (40,690^: • 1.(12.269)

32'.
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WHISPERING PINES-li

^FORMERLVVEPPiriG SENiOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP^

^  /PROJECT NO. Aiagggi^fiV

•,Y^R-T0^ATE COMPILATION.pF OVVNERS* FEE/P]STRIBiniOr< .
•FOR THE YEARS ENDED July 31. 2023 AND 2022

.! ■

'Maximum

. Allbwable Dlstributibhs

r 'Year. Distribution
*  ' * t

'Received* 'Balance

■12/3:1/200.1, :$■ 243,855" s $■ "243,855'.
^1^f/26oZ ■243.865; - :487,"7,10
l'2/3V/20b3., ■243.855 f5.895"' ,725.670
'i^^,i;^pa4 '243,855. '7.260'" 982r325

:243.855 -• 1.2M.-180
'12/31/2066, ^243,855 6.126 V;44i915'.
'i£'31/2007 243.855 r -1.687,776
•1^31/20.08:. 243.855 1,931.625^.
12/31/2009' - 1243,855 r .2>i;75'.48.0

''1%/26iO. 243.855 ; ■ .2;4i9i35 *■
12/31/2011 243,855 r. ^loes.'io'o

-■12/3.f/2"012' 243:855' rc' ■2,907.045
12/3.1/26i3> i2"43;855: 7^200 ,5.143.760 '
12/31/2d'l4.^ -J'243.855.- ■3'.M7,555
•12/3172015 '243;855, ■ '3,631 ;4ID i
7/31/2016\ '.142;249 3;773.659' -
7/31/2017 243,865;.' ;4,017:514
7^1/2;0l8' ■243;8557 -• v4;26y.36"9
■7/31/2619; .243;855: '4i505:224- -
7/31/262.0' . 12^3,855 ■4,749,079. =

,7/31/2021. 243,855 ■■ .. . ^4;992i9^;,
■7/31/2022- '  '243.855 ^ V * ,5i236.7'69'.t
7;3.1/2623 •243V855. * 5:4801^4

•33.'



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD4&-229444BB15BE

.fFQRMERLYrJ.B.M'LETTEUM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSltlON
JULY 31/2023 AND 2022 -

ASSETS

-CURRENT Assets-
' ■• Cash' - ^ '

[.prepaid axpepse^; '

* Total curfenl assets:

;RESlTRiCtEpCA ,
tax-eMrbw,'

: Replacement reserves
'■'O^rating'reseiyes '

total resWcted.^sh

property'
Lahd'r

* "^uildinps'^hd jiViprbvemVnte; &
' Tolaipfo^e'fjy''

' Less aixumula'ted 'depreciation

■ Property, net

sbitlEliASSEJS^ .
Tenantsecuritydepps^

iTOTAL ASSETS
■5 T- 5 % ^ r-r

• CURREI^l'TUABILlflES
' "Accounts'payable.

Total curroni'liabiiities

1 LONG jlRiyi LIAW
•  'pue/tp ^liate'-

iMpdgage^nole payablp-.
•jTenant'-secupty deposits'.

Total long ierm'liabllitles.

•tbtal'irsBllltiifS'.r

LIABILITIES AND^NET^ASSETS-

iNET ASSETS^VyiTHOUT'DONOR RESTRICTIONS

tat AL LIASilmfis ANb'N^^ .
•  * • - -I.' .J A VJ

12023

■$ is.eis ■
•  -.-12.694

0 2022'

■$■ 20.017.
r- ^ -10.768

31i322-

9t522.

: 97.522-

.176,000.
.  '.1.191,515

4.367^515-

.  22d.V05

■ 17;977v.

.30.785

' 6,556
il5.i584
-70.051

'■192,191

.-176:000
1.-174.605-

1.350,606/

^185.773

f1;l'64;832'

.48.'4Q8-

S ■ 1.294.231 r ■S '1.4Q6:216.

-.5.23£
. ,1;287

jn

3i944.'
iMOS-

.6;519

••il9,42T-

.  ■17.977. „

•137,4P4'

143,923;.
-1;.15b,30'8i:

4 ■ . 11 f

^ . '•5i049--.

•119i262'
ifoVobO'

■  '.18:408

-407:610 ■

_^9^57?.

TS'1:4Q6.21B.

*34



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

.  .. -J B-MILgTTE MANOR .
fFQRMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 3t. 2023 AND 2022

JINCOME.^
" 'Rental income^
'interest income»'
Jntbres't Incomei re^icted
/Othe'rintonie

Tdtaiincdme;

PPEJWTING EXPENSES-.
Admlnistratiye^

•.Utilities "
i Maintenanbe
•General •

' *

Total opj^rallng .expends
. - .*■ .. .i _ . .

loss BEPORE DEPRECIATION AND FORGIVENESS^^^^
** * .* " • - ' *

peprecidb'pn'
Fpfgiyene^ df;debt,

:6MANGE IN N^'ASSEfs:«
NET. ASSETS,BEGINNING OF

'"^ET /iSSETS>E,ND OF.YEAR -

: 2023

$. :2d9T38'
^  ̂ 12.

i68,
1.683:

■ 2022'

)l"95.796
*  -10

'93.
t.S85

2i0.901'' _  -496.884

89,901 74.'425
' 66,959. -59,878
.93,611. •59,321
39,347 .37;821

'289.818 . ■23.1,4'45

,(7^.917).
''(34.332). ;{32.741)'
-270,000 . '900,000.

^i56i.75.1 632,698

■993.557 .160-859 .

S; M,156;368- 993:557

.33'



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

. ; . J.B. MILEtTE MANOR . . ,
/FQRMERLY^J.BVMILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPV.

SCHEDULES-OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
.'"FOR THE y^RS ENDED JULY-31.2023 AND 2022 .

.  . .. *

2023 2022 1

.■ApMIN'lst^Tl>^_EX^^^ ~
"  ;Managementfee< }$ • 17,688 • ,$\ '17,688 •
^Saiariesand wagef; 50,761. (( '42,968.
' 'Fringe'benefits^ ■ ' .5;9'l2; 3:643^

^^Legai * ' " ;6.1.72" ' 4,563
"iTele'phone - '1.^0
' OtherVt^ditnistratiye expenses • :9i249 3i823

Tota] adfTiinistra'tiye exf^nses^ !89,90i: 74,425

:  .UJILITI'ES.
•■ 'Electricity. '29,620- 'SOig^G

■ Fuel , 24,853; ^15.424 4-
^Vydter, and sewen 12,486^ ''-l.i.SI^^
.OtheV-Utility expeVise' , -1;613'

- -A

fota[,Utility eX^nses- - 66,959; . '59,878 '
MAINTENANCE:

"■rVash/removal ■3;265 2;969-
• 'SnpwVemoval _ *16,956 *9,360,
.Elevator repairsandconjrac^^ ii,079' :;^5,789
Custodial supplies. ' .543.- ■ ;'826

»' Repairs,fmateriaYs ■ ■ ■66,772 ̂  ;.33?72
^'Repalrs;;CohtKact^ ■ ■ - 5,996',. , - . ; '6,605

Totai.maljitenance^ - *^93,611 . . . '59/321..

Depreciation - 34.332. -32.741:

iGENE^L^ -
Realestatejaxes' ■.19,563. ,h21;.938,

tipayrojl t^es 'S.BTl ''^3,281
* I.Retirement'benefits^^ , ■ "2.436; , ^2.677
*' Workman's'compePsat!^ .'1,648:
'ilnsorarice ' " - -- -11'.629 - --S,638."■  - ■ _ - s

Jdta.!,g§'nfe'ra1^8Xp^n^ ■ *^39,347,' :

'iTp.Tfl^'RENTAbo^^^ !$(^/-3Z4,i50' , :$<-■ -"^64.-1^

tse.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

.. . i/.B. MlkSnS MANPR ■
fFORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!

'SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
^FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 20^

"• SOURCES of FUNDS
Rental operatibhs'

•'■ji'

2023 2622^

Income _
' tenant paidjent
•;HAP'fe^ts^lb*s!5^V.

179,903;.
.29;235'

■4. :'172,359'
1  -•23;437.

Total'rentaJ r^lpis;-. ■209,138'

• Jhleresl Income
JSerylce income

•SO. '
1.683.

lbs"'
985;

'Totdl rental:p"peralions receipts.. --210.901 —-.igeiSBii'

■EXPENSES^^
'Administrative
''uiilittes- ■
•Maintenari^i
•.General

/ ■'89.155
'64.3U''
95.'63i
•4H.273

■..74;68b
•:6b.931'
156.276

.  . . 39.512-
<

.  'Total nantaloperatidns disbursenients . 290,274;' '231.405

<C;^SH USip IN RENTALpPE^^ • .  •(797?73) ► (34;521)^:
■ • Other DISBURSEMENTS
"  ' Net re;ceipts from manbgenient agent

^Net withdrawals (deposits) frorf) resei^ accounts
transfer tp/enani~sectjiitV deppsU
Purrtiase of property/''

225,
:94i669'

*  / .

(16.910)'

-'69.492
■(15:695)'

•'17
_ ('17.275)

^ ;net in'cr^se'(decr^?|)tn:ca8H; ■(1.389):- ■■':2;9i8^
■CASH, BEGINNING.OF YEAR.'
-  ' ■ ■■■

:."2C).oi7. , " - 17,9991
i  ■" — ' • "

"CASH. kND '^9 year) -  ■.i8;628:/

'37/



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

.  J.B. MILETTE MANOR
iFORMERLYi J.B. MILETTE LlMITED PARTNERSHIPl

SCHEDUUES:OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS -
'■ FOR THEVARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

DESCRIPTION OF FUND: •
Deposits. fWitHdrawals.f

Balance . •;^laAce
^  Beginning of Funding of Interest ' 'End br

' •Restricted Accounts:-, ' Year • 'Reserves' 'Earned ;ExpendiWres' "Year:

For the Year Ende'd duly 3'ir20iZ3

''OperaWng reserve; ■.$' ',70,'051 -• ■$. ,20' ■$' '{76,071^'■i ' -

Taxrescfow? 6,556' - -2" '('6.558)-

'Repjaceme^tr^e'se™^ '1'15.'5&4' — -15,600' ^ , -46' -.(33,708)' —.'97;522.

hTOTALRE'STRIctEDOASH .
■ fRESERVES AND ESG^^^ LjMil , j _ -IS.SflO' S - - RH t 97S??.

For-the Year Ended July 31.'2d22 '

^p^ratlng.reserve. •$ 70,015' 36 5 " 'io.OSI-;
7^X:escrbC .'6,552 .4 ; ^!6;556;-
^'Rep!a^me^t res i99.929; -, .IS.feOQ < - :55 . i iiis.SM'

TOTAL AESTRIC.tED CASH*-
■ RESERVES AND ESCRpWS , LdZSiSfi I

;38'.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A568538-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

Net loss-

J.Bl MiLETTE MANOR

/FORMERLY: J.bI mILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

-  . ;SCHEDyLES,OFSURPLUS,CASH -

. FOR THE YEARS^NDED-JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022
.2023

-156.751 •

:2022

v832,698.

.'Add:'' . . •

•bepreciailoh' . ^
Re^eK/e for replaMmSritwithdie^is

'beduct:' . .

Interest income frprh/eserve accounts
■" Required paymentsAp repjacemenf reserve®:-

.Add othen^HHFA apbrdv^itenisr
;lforgiveness,ofde6t in'cpme.

•Cash deficit^

;34;-332,
■33;'768'

(68)'
dX^O).

(276.000)'

:32;74i,

'(93)
•(15:600)

(900,000)

y- ..:(66.877)-' M56>54);.

'39



DocuSign Envelope ID: gA56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB158E

. .. .. .. SHERBURNE WOODS
^FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMltED PARTNERSHIPS

-  - ^-fPROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901-02-051

, STATEMENTS OF FINANGIAL POSITION
' July 31.2623 and.2022

.ASSETS

CURRENXA^ETS;
cCash.''
Prepaid expenses'

Total-current assets •

2023

52.1 i'si:
:.9.378

:61.497-

2022:

•  -r

■$• 99.295':
8.70 V"

i67.9%-

RiESTRICTED/CASH
' "Insurance «cfbw'

Tax es'cipw'
•Replacement rwe'iyes
-Operating r^e.ryes •

Total;r^icted ^sh.

•950
'•5,728

213,685
.69,^1

289;964

^2,761.
. 6,414
207.873-
68.049

-.285,097

PROPERTY-
•''Lafid - . • „ .
Buildihgi'ahd'.imprpve^

.Xptal propeHy

Less accumulated depreciation*

*P^Rert]?, net ?

rOtHERASS^S
" TenantisiKurity deposits.-,

TOTAyAssets-

.211;00b
932.700:

i;.i43i7pb

•124:370

,1.019.330'

4 211,000
■ 932.700

.-1,•14.3,700

.•99.515

_j .644.1 as''

M6,"l59' .^:16r26t

UABILlflES AND NET ASSETS
S 1.386.890. S -1 453 539

.CURRENTtiABlLiTIES.

'At^urits payable^^'"
A<xrued .^penses

■. befeTred'rwenue
' t ' w

'TotaJ cufreht liabilities.

!;$' ;20.275 ■

<552-

.21:798'

;  ' • 18,908 ;.
: 29,355.'

- 823
-  -"17.695

v.. 60.787

! LJONG TERM LJABIUTIES
/'*Puerto'affiiiate '

'' Mpilgage note payable,' less,t^rreriypbHion'a^ sh'(wn abpVe;
ifenant Security

Tptallpng terrpJIablliiresL.
•  ' ^ p '.S**

4  4*

'Totel liabilities'. .
-d. ^

' NET ASSCTsMTHOljTjD.ONOR' RESTRJCT^
»*. ;r , . • V ^ •.. "" • ^ I ^ 1 . ;•*? 9 T.»

(TOTAL utetUTIES:AND NET AS.S^:»

'•73;732;
•;8i2.439,

■^16;'159'-

902,330-

•:924.128>
,* f \ '

462.762:

'S

tl84.358»
•8"32,7>I5'

.  '•16,26'7.

-:933:334

•994,115v

*459,424.

'.S^ 7451536'



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444B815BE

SHERBURNE WOODS •

^FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LlWtTED PARTNERSHIP

'  " - jPROJECT NO. HAP PBA 9Qi-02.Q5^ " ■ "

. _ ' STATEMENtS OF ACflVttiES
>FOR THE Y^RS ENDED JULYx31.'2023 AND 2022

ilNCOME

RehlanhcomC
^Interest incbme
' Interesllhdqme rest'rid
btherjncome'

.t- . , •

Tote! inwjTie ■

•OPERATING EXPENSeii.
' •AdministraUve

..Utilities r.
'Maintenance ̂
;.General\

* /

Tptarppe'rating expenseis*

INTEREST EXPENSE'

INCOME BEFORE PEPj^CIATION ;

Depreciation
I  . ...

PHANGXiN NEjr A^l^S-

'NET ASSEtSr^EGiNNING QF- YEAR .
■* 1 .. - > fc w- . .

'NET ASSETSf END OF YEAR'

2023

:260.356
' ■ . -37-

,6.079'
3;950':

.;270:422:,

'52,690..
,37.'5.10
92.'814 ,
38:206 •

.221,220'

.:2T.009"'

28,193-

-24.855.

..3i338

• '459.424'

12022;

$.t 267.614
■

435
:3;876:

■ •■2TT.9.69'

•45,122
35.471)
76'.135
3l936

189.663

_ 22.284

■.60,022 '

23:580..

36.442

':^22.982

'462;762 . 459r424

^41



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SHgRBURNE WOODS

{FORMERLY; SNHS DEERRELD gLDERLY HOUSINQ LIMITED PARtNERSHIP^
"  ' 'fPRQJ^CT N.P- HAP PBAgPH2-Q$l . ^ ' -

>SCHEDULES."OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES.
•FOR tHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 ANP'2022-

• tptal;"mainten^'n'M
r  . -i e

(NfERESr

DEPREClAtibN

_  - - ~ 2023^ r2022
AbMiNisfFwti'\^:^
♦'Adye^sihg; '$, ,500 .. :63'
^Managen^ent fee^ '■1®'?^?'
Salaries and page's* ,24,180' '13,605;

' Fringe benefits' ' ' "'66t '2.476
•  ' • " * ^ r: ;:506

■Jelephohe' . • _ . _ .-237. - 2",'18P'
. QiheV admihistratiye expensesi . 9.112 -.-8,292

fotel admlQislratiyelexpe;! ■52.690' . * 45^1^

utrcitiES-
. Electricity, - '119,092: :20,M 71

• Fue{ ' ■ . •12'.381> "9,693
■Water'and ^weri' 5,664
'dlher utility;expen^ - -- , - - .^^42■

'•Tdtal^Jlility'expenses'' 37,510. ' 35,470.

MAiNTENANCE
Trash're'rndya!
'S'npyy removal • -
I'Gustddial.suppliea-

' Repajrs,,'materials*
' Bep'aVf.^'cohlracV

/:2;737, 3.007'
i25.370. ^27,^185

*T. •  '-396,
50,691 -.31.512

.  :.i4.bi6' 14 0:^5

92,814 -  ::.76,*i35

' -.21.009"
r  »

-  ':!22.284

24.855' .;23.58d

:genei?al:expense
.Realdstatetaxas'^' . ,'  ,RealdstatetaxBS^ ,-26,'817' 'flS.AAp-'^
lP"aymir\axes\ ■; Vl.849i , '.1i041

>' Reti/elrienl Behj^^^ ^ . '3-.34? - '
vJrYorkmanjs ^mpe^^^ "l-.is/' : '70f
insurance^' " ~ ' T;23'4' > _ 5.695.

Total gehBf^IexlCidn^^^^ 38.208 '■32,936'
vT0TAI::RENTAU OPERATIONS.EXPENSES: •>$ : . :267.084r : •$• --. 235,527;



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

• , •SHERBU.RNEWOOPS^ . . , -
rFQRMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!

.  - - ^ - ' (PRgJEQT NQ. HAP PBft 8Q1-02H>S) '

:SCHEDULES OF RECEiPTS ANO DISBURSEMENTS

■ FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 3i: 2023 AND 2022'

<

iSOURCES'^bF FUNDS:
<Renta[ppera()bns'

2023 ■2022^

VtNCpME;"^- _ .
•feharilpaidreni.

i^HAP,rent subsidy'.
'S .l'24.06d;

'  < 124:601
',137.382
•141.927'

Totarrentai receipts 248;661' 279,309'

• Interest income
' -Seivicp Inwrne

Other income;

■:6.ii6'
•2,510.-

-  •1.440'

.,479-
-.•2.435
:i.44l

fTotal rental operations receipts - .258i727- 283,'ew ■

' EXPENSES
'^AdmihisTreliye.
^Ullliiies

» Maintenan^ •
'General
' Interest!

^52,-989^
39.292'
93-.861''

/38.di0
■^^21,009'

>45:102
.33.401'
'75;725 '
.33'.759'

. ■•22r284'

Tpbl rerital opei^ohs disbur^ments ■246.061, -210".27i

/CASH PROVIDED BY RENTAL OPE'RATIONS BEFORE!
.AMbRTlZATI0N.PF,M6|rfGAQB^^ ' 12,666 ;73,393

- AMpRTI^tlON.OF MORtGAG^,' - '(18.909) -(17.633)'

ICASH PROVIDeB ay (USEb iN) RE^iU OPE^pONS after*^debt service ■ (61243)' \55;76p'

:0fBER DISBURSEMENT . . .
''Fixedjsse't additibri pjacM jh seryi^ prior year.paid in'currer)t,yBar

;Nel paymenU.frpm'managenient egent
"^Net.deposils from reserve accounts-
' Trarisferlenahl'secunty deposits •

.(25.^00)^
'(10.626).
'(4,807)' ,

V . «^v

/(10^504)'
..(26.827)
v.1(50)

^NET.INCREASE (BeCR^^ IN CASK '(47.176)' ' 18!379

\c^h;beg]nnin^ ;S9.295 . _ •J8'b';dl6-

/CASHyENDOF.VEAR: !.52;1'19 ' H

'43",



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SHERBURN6WQQPS
fFORMERLY:SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

fPRQJECT NOlHAP PBA 901^2-05.

SCREOOLES OF. RESTRiCTEb.CASH RESERVES AND E^ROWS

: Deposits . vinthdrawals -
DESCRipflON OF-FUNb:''

.  -

~  ' Balance.. 'Balance

,' Beginning of Funding of.' Interest' :Ehd of*
Restricted Accbunts: Year Reserves Earned. ExoendituPes 'Year

♦

ipor Ihe.YearEnded Julv 31.'2023
-  • • ^

' ppieratil^reseirt/e .68,049 $ '1..492 $■ - 'I" '69.^1, ,

yiisuran^ esaow^ 2.761 5,483. '101: (7.395) :9'56

'Ta^i-^escrpw* '6,414 ^25,876' ' 174 ;"(26,736) .5,728-

:ReDlacementreseive. < '.^207;873 .27,000 -'4,312, . „ .:(25.5Q0)^ . ... 213:685:

rT6tAL;RESTRjC:fED CASH';»
;RESERyEf AND ESC^^^^ £ 285.097, •£> .58:359 i ',6.072 £  -759.63l f '.£ '289.904.'

• F6> the Year Ended Juiv 31; 2022'

.'Pperatjhg reseive, ► ,$• '167^945 ■$ : .$ -i04; -■ ■.$ ,68;049'

insurance eici^^V :3.Q^6- .5,230' 5 <(5:526)i 2.761V

tax/esCTow' '*6,707 ^26.82ii '25' :'(?ziT46), '6:^14'
:Replacement'reserve .180,572 ^27,000' ;"301 -207:873:

tbTAL RE'stRiCfE^^ ^ .
: Reserves and'esProws ' ^ ■£-258.27d' :£.^- -Sfl.osfl-; ■i'l - -'435^

V  . « «

$' ■ i285.6§7.

44.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56863B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SHERBURNE WOODS

/FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMjTED PARTNERSHIPS
/PROJECT NO. HARPBA 901

cSCHEOULES OF SURPLUS CASH ,•

FOR tHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Net Ihcpme

Add:

• 'pepreci^jorf

Deduct:''

interest income',froiti' reiserve'accou'rits

'Rectuired 'principarpaymehts

' Ri^uired payment ib replacement r^erves;

:Ca8h,8urplu8 (deflcjt)'

■.2022-.2023

$  ,3,338 1$ 36;442

-24.855^

,(6;079)
(1'8|909)'

23;580

,(435)-.
,(17,633)

■(27,000). . _ . (2J.000)

:$. ■(23,7-95) ,$ i4;9M

■45'



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F11-4737-AD40-229444BB15BE

SHERBURNE WOODS

fFQRMERLY:SNHS bEERFIELD ELDERLY HQUSIMG LIMITED PARTNERSHipV

^/PROJECT NQ.HAP-PBA 901^2-05

YEARrTO-DAtlCOM 01: QVVNERS*. i
#OR'fHE y'^RS ended JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

'Year

^1^31/2603'
1^31/2004
^'1/2005 ■

■•12/3^/200?
■1,2/3i;^bg7
12/31/200,8 '
;i2/31/20pV
12/31/2010;.

;12/31/20'11>
'l2/3J^/2bi"2
:i2/31/20'13;
;i2/3i/2bi4
,12/31/2015
1^1/2016
•12/3t/2bl7
'7/3l)2bl8>
'7/31/20'l9>
■7/31/2026.
'7/31/262f
7^.1/2622^

Maximum
.Allowable,

Pistrlbutldn

$ i113i85b
■i 13,'85,0-
1.13,856-
113,850
11 sW
113,850
113;850
i'l3;850'
<113.850..
ii3.850'-
'113,85tf
113.850
.113,850
1'13;'856
■113.850

66:413
■1l'3b50.
110;B50^
'113,850'
{13,850 ■
,113,58b;

pistflbutldns
Received •

$,

Balance ■

^  il"3.86b
22.7.700.'

■'34ij550.
-.455;40p^
^9.256'

. 683J00'
'joeXsg

J ^pio.eoo;
1;q24.650.
t;i""38,50d.
1.252;350;
1;366.2o6
iUsO.oso'
1,593.906:
V,707,750'
.i;774;163"
1,;888b\3.

.2,001.863"
2,-lY5i7"l'3
^"269,^3
2;343.i43
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SOtfTHERN KEW HAMPSHIRE SERWCgS. INC. AMD AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EKDEO JULY 2023

FEDERAL GRANTCm

PAS^THROUGH GRAffTORffROGRAM TTTLE

U.a. DcMrtwent of Aarieuttur*

Spedai Supplefrwfital Nutrition Program for
Woman. Intents, and Chidtan (WIC)

Child and AduR Care Food Program
Pood Distrlbutfen Cluster

Commodity Supplementef Food Program

Chfld Nutrition Cluster

Summer Food Service Program for ChBdten

Total U.S. Department of AgrlcuRure

U.S. DepartTtient of Houstno «t>d Urban Developmem
Emergency Sohrtiom Grant Progrvn
Secdon B Project-Gased Cluster

Section 8 Moderate RetiabtBtelion Single Room Occupency

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urtian Development

U.S. Deoaitineiit of Uber

WlOA Cluster

WtOAAdutt Program

Totel U.S. Department of LaborfWtOA Cluster

U.S. Deoirhnent of Edticstten

AduR Education • Basic Grants to States

Adult Education • Basic Grants to States

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Deosrtmfrt of Treasunr

Emeqjency Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

10.557

10.558

10S65

10.559

14.231

14.249

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

State of NH. Depanment of Health S Human Services

State of NH. Depertmenl of Educa^

Community Actiort Program Befknep-Menlmfick Counties

State of NH. Department ot Education

Slate of NH. OHHS, Bureau of Homelexs A Housing

GRANTORS NUMBER

FEDERiU.

EXPENDITURE

Coronavtrus Stale end Local Fiscal Ftecovery Funds

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

'  8m Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Fedtril Awards

17.258 State of NH. DepI of Resources end Economic Development

84.002 State of NH. Depaftmenl of Education
84.002 Stats ot NH. Depanment of Eduction

21.023 New Hampshire Housfeig Auttrorlty
21.023 New Hampshire Housing Authority

21.023 New Hamps^ Housing Auttuyity
21.023 New Hampshire Housing Authority

21.027 New Hampshire Housing Authority

214NH703W1003 3 1.308.419

843,295

2a2220Y800544 28,648

135.114

3- 2.315.478

E-21-OC-33-O001 3 130.864

464.891

3  . .  595.755

02-6000618 3 2.831.564

3 2.831.564

87011 -ABE Manchester S 52.865

67011-A8E Portsmouth 33.449 86.314

3 86.314.

ERA0012AND ERA0435 3 19.781.952

ERAE001Q 41,364.660

ERAE0018 1.327.099

ERA0012 AND ERA0435 84.903 82.559.714

ERAE0019 2.900.423

3  ■ 85.460.137
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SPUTHgRM NgW HAWPSHtRE SERVICES. INC. ANP APPILIATE

SCHEDUtJE OF EXPENDTTURES Of FEDERAL AWA5%0S

FOR THE YEAR eWDED JULY ai. 2023

ASSISTANCE

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS.THROUGH GRAKTORff>ROGRAM TTTLE

USTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME GRANTORS NUMBER

FEDERAL

BtPENDTTURE

Civnorsthwi for Nadomri and Commurrttv Services

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total Corporation for Natloctal and Community Servlees

94.002 20SRANH002 % 127.813

■
$ 127.813

U^. DeDartmeirt of Enerov

WeatherizaUon Assistanca lor LAvJncome Persons 61.042 State of NH, Office of Energy & Pfenning DE-EE0007935 -3- 1.067.1^

TotN U.S. Department of Energy $ 1.067.179

UJL Deoartment of Haatth & Human Services

Aging Cluster

.  Spedal Programs for tfe Aging, Title III, Part 6,
Grento lor Supportive Services end Senior Centers

93.044 State of NH, Otflca of Energy 6 Ptenntng ieAANKT355 $ 13,113

Temporary Astistance for Needy FemWes
Temporary Assistsnce for Needy FamSes

Low Income Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistanoe)
ARPA-Low Income Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistsnce)
Low Income Home Energy As^stance (BWP)

Community Services BfocA Grant
CV- Corrununlly Services Stock Grant

Commurdty Services Block Grant • Dtscretiofwy

93.558

93.558

State of NH, DHHS

Stats of NH. DHHS

22NHTANF

23NHTANF

i  2.003.232

135.412 2,138,644

93.568

93.568

93.568

State of NH. Office of Energy & Plannirtg
State of NH. OfTice of Energy & Plantdng
State of NH, Oflico ol Energy & Planning

21G1NHUEA

UHEAP ARP22 & UHEAP-US-OHHS

2301NHUEA

13,433,743

3,749,189

477,892 17,660.824

93.569

93.569

State of NH, DHHS

State of NH. DHHS

2201NHCOSR

2201NHCSC3

1,430,571)

959.710 2,390,280

93.570 State of NH. OHMS 2201NKCOSR 45,083

Low irrcome Household Water Assistsnce Program (UWAP) 93.439 State of NH. Office of Energy & Plannlrtg 2201NHLWCS« 247,834

Head Start Cluster

Head Start/Early Head Start

ARPA-Head Start/Earty Head Start

03.600

93.600

01 CHOI 060205

01HE0004740101

7,593.011

498.553 8,091,564

Sm Netea to Schedule of Expenditures of Fedorsl Awards
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somngaw wsw HAim»8Htpe sgRvicga. iwc. awd apfiuate

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOrTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

FEOSUU. GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRAKTCRff»ROCRAM TITLE

U.S. DgMrtwent of Hgafth A Hmn«n Services /eorrtlnuein

CCDF Ctustar

ChiU Care and Development Slock Grants

CNid Cate Mandatory Matching Funds

Preschoo) Development Grant Bkth through five

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

ASStSTANCE

UST1NG

NUMBER

93.575

93.596

93.434

PASS-THROIiGH

State of NH. DSSH

Slate of NH. DSSH

University of New Hampshka

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

2201NHCCDF

22(»NHCCDF

00TP0060

FEDERAL

eXPENDTTURE

1.S08.543

S3t.693 2.040.436

*a-«»

■ 32.668.567

TOTAL
ie$.1S2.»45

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOiJTHERN^NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE -

NOTESTO.SCHEDUliE OF'EXPENDITURES OF FEDE^bAWARDS
' FOR^tHE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023 ^

NpJEI: !BA%ISQFPRESEN
ThelaQcom^anyingVsch^dute federal/awar3s;.(tKe*^
^'includes the ;federar^ Soytherh New ̂Hampshire:'Services. Inc.-
!,and Affiiiale grider^prograrn% of the f^eral'government .for' the year^erided'July,
31i.'2623v the' infq^ in this SchedOleVis .presented accordance With'the
' reguifemehts-6/ ptie 2 '11,'S. Code, of'Federal Regulatidns Part 200; t/mfomi

A' dministrative Requiramehts, ,Cost Pnncipies, and ̂Audit Requirernents for
■Fede^/'Awi/tfs'(On^ Guidance). Because'the j^Schedule [presents .:oh^^^
^elected portion Of theoperaiiohs of SoutherriiNew Hampshire Sen/ices, Inc. and*
AffiliateMt isfnot inte^^^^ doe's not,presentfhe finaricial posltion^ changes
Jh net ascetsror cash flows 0^

iNQTEi' SUMMARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
, E)rpenditures-repo^ on'-thd'SchedujO are' Reported on 'the accrual basis ;df
:accbuhtihgv-^S\jch Jex^ are - fecogriized following the.,cq'st iAhhclpIes,
'Contaihed Jh the iUnifocm puidahcej whereinoe'rtain typesofoxpendj^^^^^
•allowable or are limited as to reirhbufsemeht.

>N'OTEi INDIRECT COST RATEj ^
^Southern New'Hampshife .Se^ices/ Inc. and^ Affiliate'has-^elected opt tp use;the-
■\er} perceht'de mlnlfriis ipdirecf cost rate' allowed under the Unifqrm GuidahPe.'

NOTEA 'SUBRECIPlENTS
''Southern New'Hampshire'^elVices.'.lric.'iha'dino subrecipfehts fofUie-y^^
July-sT;-20^3^^^^ ^
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McDdnrielJ
&JR6Ij(^s

:qi3rrinHD'titiBUC

•UdVERj^OlTEBORO
■NOR'm cofAvAy-

JNbER;EtiibENT AUDITORS' REPORt jbN internal CONtROl;OVEl^ R
'REP0RTlf4p.ANb ON COMP^ AND OTHERMATTERS BASED ON AN AUDiT-OF

FINANblAL STATEMENTS'PERFORMED IN ACCORDANGE WITH GOVERNMENT
'  ■ * 'AUDltiNd STANDARDS

i to th'e Bdai^ of Directdre of
Southern Ndw;Hampshire"Service§, Inc^ and-Affiliate

We\bave^audited;'in accbrtance w^ .standards, generally.accepted, in the United
,]States'bf, 'America and .th'e'etandafdsibppjicable financialibudlts contained In Gdvernme'nt ■
^Audiilhg: Sfen'dafds-issued ,6y the ■'Gornptfpller General of the. United States,,; Ithe cgmbinVd

\-fihancial st^ements of Southe^^ New Hampshire Services, jhcl^and Affiliate (a New Hampshfre
mgnprofit organizatipn).;whlc^^^ the' statements of firiancial position as pf July ,3lt 2025
ahd\26?2'ancl the related, statements of:activities cash flows for-the yeare^then ended,-

'and the related-notes,tq the'fi'nahdiarstatem'erits; and have issiied our :repoft thereon defed^
■March.1t,:2b24. * * '

Report on'Internal Coniroi pvenFIn^^

'lh;-.planning,an^^ df the. corfibined ■flnancial■:statdrhents, ;we^'w
•.Sbutbejb- ,Ne>y- Harnpfhir^! ServlcesVlnc^''and■■Affiliate's in fe^rtirig
'(iriterhal; .c0htr6l)^a^.'a -basi? fpr^designmg ■ audit - prgcedufes* 'that'; are: . appraphate: iinthe
:crrcumstances 'for-.thd ;pUrpps'e'of e'xpressingiour o^^^^ .on 'the 'financial^dtateiWe^^ tut' hot
for the ipUf^se ipf^exprS :an.;6pinj6n dp- the bftectiyeness.bf'spyther^ '.Hampshire •
'ServiceSj lric: and Affiliate's intehial'tontipl;rAccorciing|y.,wedd not'e^
effectiverlesspfiSputherp, New Harripshire Services; Ind^and Affljiafe

■A,de^dencyM'^^^ confrp? exists when the desjgnof bpVratibn ofsp'Cbntroldbesj.npt allpw.
rnanagemeht'.opefriploy^ the.nonfial cdufse^by.perfb -assigned '.fUnctJohs, *t6 -
brevent.fbrvdetect and correct. 'rhisstatemehts''Dh-a timei^ basis.'A' /hafer/s/ .

ppssibility that.b.'materialirnlsstalerhpnt bf:theentitv''eflnanc|afstatements^^ be.^prevented,
^bf.deteyted'^and'^^^^^^ oh\a; timely, iba^le, 'A s/gn//?canf be/7b/e^
■combjnationbf deficle^ cbnfrofthaf is'Jess'peyere^thah.a/materi^^^
fmportabienpughtp^ those phargeb with ;g6ye^

puf/Cphsideratib 'Ofiiinternal ■bpntrol/w^^ "fpf yhe." ,liibiWd;pUipase; described-jip the.^flfst
. paragraph bfthis^.s'ectipnV^'rt^ aH-deficlendbsiin intern'b ronyrof'
-that might be\ma^^^ significant deflclehcies^Given'the^

■ purraubit^yye* did .hot idehtlfy;enydeficiencl'eslhln't'e^
wea^ine'.s.l^eb.^Ho\yeye^,''h^af br.sighrflcaht deficiencies'rnay exist it^
Identiifibd.' ' ^ ^
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iReport on Compllanceand O^er Mat^^

■'As.,pa'rj[pfpbtaihingvreasonaW about whetheV Southern New Hampshire Services,
Iht: .arid;Affiliate's pombined-fi'h^ are free-frpm material rhlsstatement/.we'
;pertqrrhpd";tests of its cprnpliance' with, ceftaih^ of laWs, feguiations- cohtractSij'and'

r;graht:agfeeiTi.ehts, hbncpiripliarice'with which eould have'a direct pnd/rtiaterial Effect on the:
fi ri aricjaf statern an opinion oh corripnance with those prpvisiohs was.
■jndt ah objective of :o^^ and ^accbrdirigly,. we; do- not express such' ah opinjorl, The results
of;'bur tests^dlsclosed htf jh^ances of ndncorripjiance. or other mattei;s that, are required »t6; be

iepprte^ohder :G6yemh7;ehf A
Purpose, of This; Report

The" purpose of this Peppii Is .eolely to describe the scope of our testing 'of internal control and=
• cbmpliahce and the results of that testing, and hot to proyide ap opiniph onfhe effectiveriess^pf

the brgahizatioh's internal control or on compliance., This fepprt Is an'ihtegral part of ari audit,
!:peiformed : in accordance" wHh'.GoVem^ Standards- in considering, the-
'prgahjzatjoh^s ilnte.rhal.^hfrOl aiid'cornpjlani^. A6cofdingly,.this,cornm^
r fo/any; Other purpose.

.DovenlNew'Hanipshire ■
'MOrch T1/2024.V
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L^one, .
McDonnell
&Edberts

XEKllnM-I'UBUGACCOLjff^^
• ̂l4^BaR'0. '

^NARflirriN'WAV.

•INDEPENDENT;AUbltbRS';REPORT.ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH .
MAJOR PROGRAM'ANb ON internal CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

-to'the/Boai^ of Directors .
Soutbeth New HampisHire Servfces, JhC;^ and Affiliate

ii^eport:on Compliance for Each" Major Federal Program

'.Opinion on Each MaJpr'Federal Pivgi^fh

'We;;haye;audjted 'Hampshlre/.Servides, Jric., and' Affiliate's cpmplja'nde' ;with the^
• types", of'odmplianpe •iidenVlfied^■'as subjeet- to audit in the' 0MB •'Cp/77p//a'(7ca
-Supplement\\)ai Oouldl have'a djrect and mate'ria! effect qa'each' of Southefn';New'HanipshTre'
Seryi^s, Mnc. and 'Affiliate's major federal programs Ton the yea7'ehddd^ July-3J i 2023";:
.Southern New Hampshire.Servlces, Inc. ;and .Affiliate's major federal programs/are" identified, iq
-the summary, o,f'audjtors''VesL!jta- se^^^^^ the accp.rhpaqying .sched.ule of ̂ findings and -
■.que.stidned!cpst^

' Ih'our ppihjbn, Southern New. Mampshlfe Services, Inc., and Affiliate .cphripljed, -Jh" all matdnal
'Xeipectsi^wittj the'types, of ram tp^aboye'that&Dinf^^^^
■and matenal .effectWeaobpf its majorfddeiiaf

v'Se^/i for dpl/iloh dh Each Major Federal Program

^VVe":.cq^du^e^ '6ur ;audit :of,;c6mpllahce In.accordahce with/auditing etahdaiyS'"geh,efa,llV
!  ;accepted. in the ynltedi^State^ Anherica; 1^6 standards' a'pp financiaf aXidlts-
.contained m-ddyernrhent Auqf//i^g'SfaqdWs^ 'by'the^Cbmptroller Oenei^l of {he^United'

; Sfetes; ^and :jh'e\aUdit-'requJ ? 'U pocfe. ph Federal Regulatidns::Pkh 266:'
^UhlformJAdrilinlstratim Repuirenients,^^
?Awaird^^(y'nif6iT^^^ .Our tfesponsibllltl^'Fundef-'thdse'standard thevyniformj
duidanceqce further,.de^scrlbeti .in the 'Auditprs' Responsibilities'fpr^theT^^^ Gompllahcfe.'

.'seqtion'dffpunrep^^ ■ , .. .

We/afi'Tequifed;t6::b>">1ndepe^^^ Hampshife:'Servicds, Jnd ,and.^
.^and td^meet'oUr dthef^ethiqahfespphsiblliti.es, etbidal^fedui/emdh
feiatfrtg to .qur/aUdit'.;Welbeli^^^^^^ that.-'the audit.evidence we•hay6;*obtai60'is ^
.appropriate .to ^provide'a ;basis .fpr pur qplniph prt.cornpliance for eachr^^

•■'p.ur, ;audlt dbpS" hot pipyide^a'jeg^ detefmlnatiPh^bf Southern 'New Hampshire.^Se^vic0^s/ Inpf
•a"ntfA"f0ljatV-s\ctoWp1jande\vyitji/th^^^^ ■ * " =■
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. M^hagerrieMjs rj^spdnsi6^ vyithllheTequirdments'referred to aboyd dnd for.^e;
'design, iiiffiiernentotibn.^and'majhterran internal contrpi;oyer bbrfiplianWwith" the;

t requirements;'of. jaws, statut^, .r^ulatibfis, rules, .and.:provisi6h&/ bf cpntib^s pr-.^grant
< 'agfeemehts ̂ applicebje ;to'' Severn. 'Nevy- iHampsHife .Services, ,Hnc* - and ■ Aftiliate^s ifederal
iprograrha.. ■'

'Auditors^' ti^sfionsibiiitie^^^
^  < -i. -V ^ i '

Our bbjebtlves.-arb to bbtairf reasonable assurance about whether material ndncdrnpllaribe with'
Ithe corripjiahce: requ.lfemehts to^aboye .occurred; whether d^ to fraud or error, and
^'express an ppirilph onsSputH^^^ Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiiiatee ppmpiiarice'
ibdsed bri our iabdit: .Reasbpable assurance ts:e high level of^ assurance bu is riot ̂ absolute

• assurance!.and, therefore,/is jribt ;d' guarante'e. that, .ah. audit, conducted iri accordance with
•g'eneraily ar&epted auditing standards,; ■Gov&mment Auditing Standards, and' the.'U.niforrii
^Ouidance.will i-alvyaysldetect imatefiai nbnconipiiarice "when, it exists. The risk.pf .not-detoctjhg
maferiai noh.cbmpliahce Resulting frbm Jraud is- higjier ifiari Jot thaf Tesuiting' from error,. as
fraMd may irivolyd cb|lusibn,;fbrge^; iritentiona! oniissions>misrepreseh^ onthebvejride,
of intbfnaii'CbntrbL ^Npncornpliance with the botopiiance.Tiqujrements referred'toi'abo^^

' considered materfarifThere' isia substo^^ |ike|ih;ood'that,-individually; p^^ aggregate, it
would Irifluence the judgmeht madp bV.;a reasbhable'^usef of the; report on cpnipliahce, about ■
JSoutKern NewrHampshire;Services, inc.; and Affiiiateb'Compliancejwlth the Vequifenie^^
each'major fedeiarprog ra

in'performing-an audit jn;accprdahce With.genOrally. accepted auditing standardS;-5.oi'en^
^Auditing Standards,.addide UMdm .

-.^erciseJprofessipnbLiMW^^ maintain professlpnal -skeptictsrn^jhrpughputrt
=  audit.' ^ ' ^ "

.•'•rrtdent[fy';and~assess thejri'skS riOncompliahce,-whether, due Ib'.frau
.•^arid design :and .'|3effbr^^^ responsive to thoseTisks^Such iprb^dures'/

i include examining,. .onvd; test basis, eyldence fegafdin^ Southern: ..New ."Harnpshjre
iServices, incV ahd;tAffiliate's,c6rrlplia>ice'with. the corTlpiianc^
'^pve - and . perfdfrrijrig; ,'such b\her vprpcedures . as ;we: considered; necessary' ;in -^the
''.cirturnStahces- ^ ^ . .." ' , ^ ^ _*

•i'f,Obtain ̂ an uhdeYstending pf-Sduthern New Harhpshire; Services;'. iFnc.;.ancf.;Affiliate's -
'internal ^hti^bl oVef.coibpiian^^^i'elevant.lo the.pudi

.1 that are appropriatoJif^th^'cirCuhiS rdpo^pn iinto^
cprhpljanc.e ;inl .accojda^^^^ Unifprm' Guidance, - ■but 'hot fpi; "jhb' purpose \0f

«:expressing;amppinibrj'oKthe'bffectlyeness'pt^Sw
' .and • Affiliate's; [iritefna| • cphtrpl over ■ compliance.- 'Accprdingly, . no fsuch ■'ppihi.bn ■; is
^expressed: ^

'"We'are^;r.e.quired'.,tp:'cbniniunicatevwith";thds^^ re'gardTngVamphgpth^
'ma1teto;.ithe,^plahned"'iSCope>end,.';timingYpf;Yhe:'a^
irn'aterjeiweakn'ess'esjin .intpynaJ^contrbl/QveVcompllan^
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Reportjbii Internal Control oveKCqrnpllance

:A.:MMciency Jh JntemaJ cohtlvl 'd^e> ,comp//a/76e^exists ̂ ihen the. design; pr 'pjDeratioh, of a
- cdptror oyer-compHance.doe's;; not qr^empldyees, in the ndrrflal course of
p^erforming their assigned functions;,to 'prevent, or detect and 'cqireet, < nqncqmpliance^ W a"
,typ.e df-cdrppjiance requireifient of a federal program o basis; A matenal w^aknes^s'in
Memaf ca^ js a d.ef!clericy,-or a 'combination of deficiencies,.In internal
•cohtfol rpyefvcpmpliancfe, isUph" that- dhefe' Is a reasdhable "p'ossibility ttjat. .rnaterial
nonwfnpliance type of donipliance requirement of a federal prdgrarfi-.will not-^be;
prevented, or detected and'corrected, on^a •ti^^eJy'basis^^ signlffcant deficiehcy in internal

'Control over ppmpy/ancd'ls a deficiency, or a; cpmbinatipn of deficiencies, .in internai; cqritroi'
dyerdompliance with'a typepf c reduirerrient of a federal program thai ia [ess';severe
than: a niaten'al/Weakhess. jn, internal-.^ over compliance;, yet!important enough^tp merit
attentiph bj those'charged with gdvernance. '

9"ur considdfatiph Of ihtefnal control pye/>cpnripjiahce was for the lirnited purposedescfibed in
■yhe iftuditors' Responsibilities (for the Audit pf CprripjianGe ^section above and was pot designed
tp^identity' ajli deficiencies , |n Jhternal'contrbK,over 'confipliance that .might be;'material

;Weaknesse$3dr .eignififcant' deficienc iriterrial pohtrpi' pv'er^ cbrnpllance. Given" these
iimitations, internal cpdtrol'pyeY

■ cdrripliance that .we consider to be.rnatenal wea'knessed'Vd.d above. Howdybd, n^'^^^/'^'
<weaVhesses^pX„stgnificant de^^^ intdrhaj contrplpver cpmpljance .rnay exW

hoti.dehtified,c ■ ' . . . >

puf-audit was;ndt designed for the purpose of expressing ahdpinioh on'the effectiveness of
[hterHai contrdipver co.mprianpe.-d^^^^ is expressed

'The purpose of this report onijhterha! control pvercdiripliance Is'splejy to describe.thd$cbpe of
'OUf testing df ioternar ppnlfprdver'dpnip^ the; results of that testing' based, the
lequlrdrhdhtsjof^the.Uhiform.pu'idanpe this.report idnot suitable fpfdhy.pth^^
jpurpOse,. ^ , r - - '

f  - ■

t:

Dover ;-'New Hanipshife'
March :11r 2024'
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES: INC. AND AFFILIATE

^SCHEDULE OFjFINDINGS'AND questioned COSTS'
^  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023 ̂

.SUMMARY QF AUDITORS' RESULTS
•  -r - . P '

.1. T{^fe:audit6rs^r6^ -an un'modified dpiniqn-pn 'whether thp dombihdd .firiahcidli
•statements of Southern J N Hampshire; Services, Inc. .arid AffiliMe were prepared in
.accordance with GMP:- ' " <

'2. Nd'isi^riificaht defidehcies .disclosed'^ the audit of the combined finahciahstaterhents •
"  .are 'feported 'ih/thev/hdependenr Aud/fprs' Report on '.Internal Control 'Over Financial

.Reporting, and' qn ̂CpMpliahce : ̂  .Mafteralea^ed ;dn ian.^Add/f of,Financial.
\Statem'ehts Peffqrhfe^ with G'ove'rhrrieht Auditing-Standards. Ho rriate'rial
weaknesses are rppp^ • ' . - • - •

'Np ;instances;of,dd;hp6mp^ material to the'combih'ed^financlal. statemb ofiSouthefn.
iNewJ-Hampshire ."Services»Inc. and-AffiliateV'Which would be required to be reported-in
' .accprdarfce .with iGpvernrhent''Auditi^^^ Standard's .wereSfsclpSed during the audit.' ^ ■

4.Jl^o -Sghif cant defi'ciericleS\'in; 'iptefnaj control ;'6Yer ■*major -federal .aWard' prograrns; arS; ■
<yepoi1ed In ide'Jnde'pendehi Auditors' Report on Compliancedor\Each .Major Program arid,
'on, ''Internal.Xohtfdi OveKCompliance Required -.by the' .Uniform' Guidance ' No . material
'weaknesses are reported/

B. "ifhe :au.ditp"rs^ report pn^c^^ for the ;majpr federal award prpgrarhSfof/SbutheFn New,.
;Hampshife;Serytces, inc. "and Affiliate express'es;ah 'urimodified opihibh oh all'hiajoVfederal
•JjrQgmrhs ■ " • . .

6. -'TheTe wereVrib*audit fihdjhgsihat;a to b'e feported iri accofdVrice/witV
'  :sectipn2pp.5ig^^^^ " ~ ' ' ' ' • ' ' / " ' " ^ - - ■

:8^Th;f threshold fof;dist(^rfgyi§hihgTy^
:$l .gPutFierh; NewJ Hampshire-gefyjceP;, Ihc.: .:and' Affiliate 'was- detPfmihid to. be.' a Jow^fisk':

>a'uditee*.\ * ' • - -

l-INDINGS ^ Fir^ANGIAt^^^^
^  ft ' •

'Nohe-

FINpiNGS and QUESTIONEDtipSfs^ MA^^ AUDif
^  ', ' ' * • ' . «>. j* - - .

iNbhe.

€ i >
>66'
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SQUtHE^N^NEW' HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

'SUMMARY SCHEDULE ORPRIOR AUDIT FINDING^S .
7 ' :iFOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023: '

Jhefe^were,rid.fi"ndingi orquestiohed:cb4ts^^ rbquired to be reported ih *thb/ScHb^^
of Findings bndiQuestibhediC^^ the ̂ ea/ ehded;July.31, 2022.\ ' ' ^

/' SV
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Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

March 2024

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Molliy Driver

Deborah Gosselin O'Shea

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Henault

Wanda Kennerson

Kathleen Mackin

German Ortiz
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DOlSINALEE LOZEAU

Community/Civic
Involvement- Current

• NH Community Action Partnership

• HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs NH

Chapter, Co-chair
• St. Joseph Hospital Board of

Directors, Quality Council Chair
• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

•- NH Healthy Families Board of

Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company

• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council

• Community College System of NH s

• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic
Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of
Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member

• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors

• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. {www.SNHS.org}
Manchester, NH (January 2016-Present)

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hillsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennichuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County
through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center
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Past Community/Civic
Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building

Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable

Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community

Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Rivier College, Nashua-

Undergraduate work in Political

Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training

• Leadership Institute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hilisborough County, District 30

(1984 - 2000)'Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives
(1996-2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• • Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• \A/ork Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

•  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
■  Space and Prison Programming
■  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs,.Correctlons and
Public Safety

C/fy Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)
City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements
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e

RYAN i
CLOUTHIER

OBJECTIVE

Seeking a leadership role which will allow me the opportunity to utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work performed by Community Action Agencies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we serve.

^ EXPERIENCE
Chief Operating Officcr| Southern New Hampshire Semces Inc.
FEB. 20I8-PRESENT

Serving as part of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a perfonnancc culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Operating OfTiccr
will tie the various component programs including: nutrition; housing; energy; workforce development; income
enhancement; education; and elderly ser\'ices to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting.and communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Chief Executive
Officer and Fiscal Officer the Chief Operating OfTiccr provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the agency's high-performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that ser\'iccs and

•  programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, and city
regulations, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operations Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs, Infonnation Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all facets of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also responsible for maintaining a working relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with the Executive Director and Fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and arc in compliance with all federal, slate, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Encrg)' Director [ Southern New Hampshire Sen'iccs Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs, Wcatherization Program, Lead Hazard Control Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal, slate and local grantors. Intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Wcatherization Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA, NH Legal
Assistance, Office of Strategic Initiative, DOE, Liberty Utilities, Eversourcc, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Wcatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Senices inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the
Weatherization, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and lixal grantors. lntcr\'encd on behalf of the
Community Action Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA, NH
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Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcrsource, NHEC, Uniiil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Served on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch"' pilot elTort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004 - 2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to determine cost efTcctiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Network Analyst | Genuity
2004 - 2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and International subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on diffcrcm types of Cisco routers, Lucent APX's, MAX's, and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with dificrent Tclco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in the areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994-1998: Dover High School
Other: Weatherization written and field eertification, Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, Tl and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training, LAN and WAN
training, 0C3, OC48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting'training, BPl Energy Analyst. Lead contractor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSH A 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization
certification.

SKILLS

Problem solving

New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking

Strategic Planning

Operations Management

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management

Leadership

Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,
TREAT, NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word, Excel, Web, EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

ACTIVITIES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits from the Assistant Secretary of Energy

Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.

Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015.

Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board.
Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board.
Member of the Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board.
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JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience In manufacturing, distribution, reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitofirig performance metrics in a manufacturing environment.
Experienced In private and public corporations, including 8 years in a private equity environment with a strong

fpcus on equity sponsor comrhunication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P8(L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a team
environment. Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal Officer In nonprofit.organizatlon

•  Controller in MFC 8t Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Managernent

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH 5/2009-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people help themselves.
■SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hillsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities
with approxirnately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 million in program funds annually with
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present
•; Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business

risks

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities
Prepare presentation for Board of Directors meetings presenting the organization's financial results

•  Develop arid rhaintain banking relationships
• Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountant 5/2009-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal, Director in oyerseejng all fiscal .and financial activities including compliance with federal, sta.te,
and funding-source requirements as vyejl as accordance with GAAP

•  Developed and implernented Indirect cost calculation and interfaced with General Ledger
•• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending
•  Created specialized reports for the Individual grant's reporting requirements
•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared items to individual grants and programs
•  Prepared rnonthly agency prograrh reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review
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James M. Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. BIddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered in Atlanta,
GA. WSI Is a $70 nillllori manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels and a distributor of engineered
wood products. The corhpan/s products are sold into the residential and light corhmercial construction
markets

Controller 2006-4/2009

Managed all aspects of accounting ar>d reporting In a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution jo.catlpn^that included 2 locations in Maine and 1 in Massachusetts.

•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the company's covenants

• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process frorn the'seller {Harbour Group) and .
buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers and Implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll function of 160+ employees

Accounting Manager 2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes, Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations In Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors

•  Educated, motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed In their rolls of financial responsibility
•  Identified and implemented processes and procedures for all Intercompany sales, transfers,,

consolidation and el.lmmatlons

•  Streamlined the payrpll process that Iricluded transferring to an external supplier (ADP), which reduced
cost by 40%

•  Conducted-physical Inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locMlons.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanford, ME 1978:2001
yishay Sprague is a division of VIshay Intertechnolpgy Inc. (NYSELVSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic cornponents. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum

capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and 1,400 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Manager 1995.-1997

'Division doeratioh Accountant 1989-1995 '

Division Fixed Asset Accountaht 1987-1989

Master Bndihee'rina Technician ■ 1984-1987

Lead Production Techhiciah 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGER, Sprlngvale, ME

B.S. in Business Administration
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

The Community Action Partnership serving Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties
Mailing Address: PC Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603) 668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel

March 2024

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage' Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnalee Lozeau $213,759 .0.00% 0

Chief Operating Officer Ryan Clouthier $133,260 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chaisson $155,009 0.00% 0

/-


